
 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, JULY 19, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
4:30 P.M. – CLOSED SESSION – pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
  
5:30 P.M. – INVOCATION – Percy Flowers, Red Branch Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Terri Prots, Department of Aging Director 
 
CHAIRMAN – Does any Commissioner have a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board will 
address in this meeting? 
 

I. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD (Procedures are attached) 
 

II. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
III. RECOGNITIONS 
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 

 
V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion.  No separate discussion will be 
held except on request of a member of the Board of Commissioners. 
 
A. Minutes: June 21, 2016 Regular Meeting and Closed Session  
B. Budget Amendments 
C. Digital Learning Invoices 
D. Tax Releases and Refunds – June 2016 
E. Revisions to Voluntary Agricultural District Ordinance 
F. Revisions to Bylaws for Local Emergency Planning Committee 
G. Homeland Security Grant Program MOU for Communications Trailer Upgrade 
H. Vac Truck Contract 
 

VI. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
A. Call to Public Hearing/Legal – Economic Development Incentive Agreement with 

Reliance Packaging, LLC (Misty Leland) 
 

B. Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Pinesage – Solar Collector 
Facility – continued from June 19, 2016 (Debra Ensminger) 

 



 2

VII. OLD BUSINESS 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Planning – Acceptance of $100,000 Urgent Repair Program Grant (Debra Ensminger) 
 
B. Planning – Approval of Building Inspection Services Interlocal Agreements (Debra 

Ensminger) 
 

C. Planning – Approval of FY 16-17 Community Transportation Program Grant (Debra 
Ensminger) 

 
D. Planning – Approval of Memorandum of Understanding Between Moore County 

Transportation Services and Department of Aging (Debra Ensminger) 
 

E. Social Services – Approval of Memorandum of Understanding with Moore County 
Transportation Services (John Benton) 

 
F. Social Services – Approval of Contract with Sandhills Transportation (John Benton) 

 
G. Social Services – Approval of Contract with Right Transportation, Inc. (John Benton) 

 
H. Sheriff – Approval of Contract Amendment for Inmate Food Services (Bill Flint) 

 
I. Tax – Approval of Settlement Reports for FY 2015-2016 (Gary Briggs) 

 
J. Tax – Charge of FY 2016-2017 Tax Levy (Gary Briggs) 

 
K. Public Works – Approval of Service Contract for Bio-Solids Tipping (Randy Gould) 

 
L. Public Works – Approval of Transfer of Former Seven Lakes Well Site #12 Back to 

Landowner (Randy Gould) 
 

M. Public Safety – Approval of EMS Management and Consultants Contract Amendment 
(Bryan Phillips) 

 
N. Public Safety – Approval of Purchase Under FY15 Homeland Security Grant Program 

(Bryan Phillips) 
 

O. Public Safety – Approval of Richmond County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement 
(Bryan Phillips) 

 
P. Public Safety – Approval of Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement (Bryan 

Phillips) 
 

Q. Administration – Adoption of Resolution Amending Annual Funding Formula for 
Sandhills Community College (Wayne Vest) 

 
R. Administration – Consideration of Solid Waste Ordinance Revisions (Wayne Vest) 

 



 3

S. Administration – Adoption of Resolution Concerning the Levy of a ¼ Cent County Sales 
and Use Tax (Wayne Vest) 

 
IX. APPOINTMENTS 

 
A. Town of Carthage Planning Board ETJ Member 
B. NCACC Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
C. Board of Health 
D. Voluntary Agricultural District Board 

 
X. ADDITIONAL AGENDA 
 
XI. MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
XII. COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COMMISSIONERS’ UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS: 
 

 DSS Board, Wednesday, July 20, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Library Board, Wednesday, July 20, 3:30pm (Daeke) 
 Pre-agenda Mtg., Wednesday, July 27, 9:00am (Saunders & Picerno) 
 CVB Board, Thursday, July 28, 4:00pm (Saunders) 
 Animal Operations, Thursday, July 28, 6:00pm (Picerno) 
 Recreation Advisory Board, Monday, August 1, 12:00pm (Saunders) 
 JCPC, Tuesday, August 2, 8:30am (Graham) 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 2, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 
 Sandhills Center Board, Tuesday, August 9, 7:00pm (Ritter) 
 Pre-agenda Mtg., Wednesday, August 10, 9:00am (Daeke & Picerno) 
 Drug Free Moore County, Thursday, August 11, 8:30am (Ritter) 
 Local Emergency Planning, Thursday, August 11, 11:00am (Ritter) 
 Fire Commission, Thursday, August 11, 6:00pm (Ritter) 
 Regular Meeting, Tuesday, August 16, closed session 4:30pm, open session 5:30pm 
 DSS Board, Wednesday, August 17, 3:00pm (Graham) 
 Aging Advisory Council, Tuesday, August 23, 8:30am (Saunders) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 4

PUBLIC COMMENT PROCEDURES 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners is committed to allowing members of the public an opportunity to offer comments and suggestions for 
the efficient and effective administration of government.  In addition to public hearings, a special time is set aside for the purpose of receiving such 
comments and suggestions.  All comments and suggestions addressed to the Board during the Public Comment Period shall be subject to the 
following procedures: 
 

1. The Public Comment period will be held at the beginning of the Board meeting.  The comment period will be limited to a maximum of 
thirty minutes. 

 
2. Persons who wish to address the Board during the Public Comment Period will register on a sign-up sheet available on the table 

outside the entrance door to the Commissioners’ Meeting Room indicating contact information and topic.  Sign-up sheets will be 
available beginning 30 minutes before the start of the meeting.  No one will be allowed to have his/her name placed on the list by 
telephone request to County Staff. 

 
3. Each person signed up to speak will have three (3) minutes to make his/her remarks.  Each person signed up to speak will only be 

entitled to the time allotted to each speaker and one additional time period which may be yielded to him/her by another individual who 
has also signed up to speak on a particular topic. 

 
4. Speakers will be acknowledged by the Board Chairperson in the order in which their names appear on the sign-up sheet.  Speakers 

will address the Board from the lectern at the front of the room and begin their remarks by stating their name and address. 
 

5. Public comment is not intended to require the Board to answer any impromptu questions.  However, Board members may, in their 
discretion and after being recognized by the Board Chairperson, respond to speakers’ comments.  Any response by a commissioner to 
a speaker during the public comment period does not open discussion between the commissioner and speaker.  Speakers will address 
all comments to the Board as a whole and not one individual commissioner.  Discussions between speakers and members of the 
audience will not be allowed. 

 
6. Speakers will be courteous in their language and presentation. Matters or comments which are harmful, discriminatory or 

embarrassing to any citizens, official or employee of Moore County shall not be allowed.  Speaker must be respectful and courteous in 
their remarks and must refrain from personal attacks and the use of profanity. 

 
7. Only one speaker will be acknowledged at a time.  If the time period runs out before all persons who have signed up get to speak, 

those names will be carried over to the next Public Comment Period. 
 

8. Any applause will be held until the end of the Public Comment Period. 
 

9. Speakers who have prepared written remarks or supporting documents are encouraged to leave a copy of such remarks and 
documents with the Clerk to the Board. 

 
10. Speakers shall not discuss any of the following:  matters which concern the candidacy of any person seeking public office, including 

the candidacy of the person addressing the Board; matters which are closed session matters, including but not limited to matters 
within the attorney-client privilege, anticipated or pending litigation, personnel, property acquisition, matters which are made 
confidential by law; matters which are the subject of public hearings. 

 
11. Information sheets outlining the process for the public’s participation in Board meetings will also be available in the rear of the 

Commissioner’s Meeting Room. 
 

12. Action on items brought up during the Public Comment Period will be at the discretion of the Board. 
  
Adopted on the 5th day of March 2007 by a 5 to 0 vote of the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 
 
Revised on the 7th day of April 2015. 

 



 1

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
TUESDAY, JUNE 21, 2016 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
 
 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners met for a Regular Meeting at 4:30 p.m., Tuesday, June 21, 2016 in 
the Commissioners’ Meeting Room on the second floor of the Historic Courthouse in Carthage, North Carolina. 

 
Commissioners Present:  Chairman Nick Picerno, Vice Chairman Randy Saunders, Jerry Daeke, Catherine 
Graham, Otis Ritter 
      
Commissioners Absent:  None 
       
Chairman Picerno called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
enter into closed session pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and (a)(6). 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 
At 5:30 p.m., the Board continued the meeting in open session.  Chairman Picerno announced that the Board 
had voted in closed session to increase the salary of Register of Deeds Judy Martin by $3,500. 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest provided the invocation and Animal Operations Director Brenda Sears led the 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
The Chairman asked whether any commissioner had a conflict of interest concerning agenda items the Board 
would discuss during the meeting and no conflicts were stated. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD 
 
Ms. Maureen Burke-Horansky discussed Animal Operations issues. 

 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to 
approve the following consent agenda items: 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.A.7/19/2016

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 2

Minutes: June 7, 2016 Regular Meeting  
Budget Amendments 
Bad Debt Write-Off 
2013 Water Sources Project Ordinance Revision # 3 
Tax Releases/Refunds – May 2016 
 
The budget amendments, water sources project ordinance revision, and tax releases/refunds resolutions are 
hereby incorporated as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendices A, B, and C, respectively. 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
Public Hearing/Planning – Conditional Use Permit Request: Pinesage – Solar Collector Facility 
 
Chairman Picerno reviewed that the hearing on this request by Pinesage Solar Farm, LLC for a conditional use 
permit for the use of a solar collector facility was judicial in nature and would be conducted in accordance with 
special due process safeguards and he discussed information on the process.  Those wishing to testify in the 
matter were called upon to be sworn in by the Clerk and the following were administered the oath:  Debra 
Ensminger, Brian Quinlan, Angus McDonald, Katherine Ross, Tommy Cleveland, Rich Kirkland, and Merrick 
Parrott.  (See sign-in sheet in latter referenced Appendix D for addresses.)   
 
Chairman Picerno discussed prior exposure to evidence and possible Board conflicts and there was none.  
Chairman Picerno then further explained the proceedings and opened the public hearing.  The speakers were: 
 
 Debra Ensminger, Moore County Planning Director, reviewed detail of information regarding this 

request as submitted in her staff report to the Board. 
 Katherine Ross, attorney with Parker, Poe, Adams, and Bernstein, (representing Pinesage Solar in this 

matter), discussed information regarding those who would be speaking in support of the request and 
submitted for the record the developer’s presentation to the Board as well as affidavits by witnesses for 
the developer. 

 Brian Quinlan, developer for Pine Valley Solar Farm, reviewed his request. 
 Thomas Cleveland, licensed engineer in the State of North Carolina, testified in support of the solar farm 

in regards to public health and safety issues. 
 Rich Kirkland, licensed North Carolina appraiser, testified in support of the solar farm regarding the 

lack of impact on surrounding properties. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the visibility of the project along the Highway 211 corridor as well the project’s 
proximity to Pinehurst corporate limits and to a proposed development.  Property owner Angus McDonald 
discussed the location of the project on his property.   
 
Regarding findings of fact, Chairman Picerno expressed his disagreement that the project would be in harmony 
with the area in which it would be located.  Discussion followed regarding the Village of Pinehurst’s position 
on the request.  Commissioners indicated they would like to hear from the Mayor of Pinehurst on this matter.  
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
continue this hearing to July 19, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Ms. Ross reviewed that since this was a quasi-judicial proceeding, some type of sworn evidence would be 
required (with regard to Mayor’s position on the request, etc.) so as to avoid hearsay.  She also requested 
clarification that the hearing was being left open and thus the applicant could further testify and submit 



 3

evidence when the hearing was continued, if so desired and Chairman Picerno so confirmed.  Ms. Ross also 
reminded the Board that this was a quasi-judicial, not legislative decision, and the request was a permitted use 
through a conditional use permit.  She said there had not been any testimony presented regarding how the use 
would not be in harmony with the area.  Ms. Ross requested the County Attorney and the Board consider the 
requirement for substantial, competent, material evidence and the requirement to issue the permit if such was 
presented. 
 
All evidence/information submitted for the record regarding this matter is hereby incorporated as a part of these 
minutes by attachment as Appendix D and includes:  Planning Director Debra Ensminger’s staff report, 
presentation/affidavit packet submitted by attorney Katherine Ross on behalf of the applicant and his witnesses, 
public hearing sign-up sheet, and audio/video recording of the proceedings and live testimony (incorporated by 
reference and available in the office of the Clerk to the Board on a flash drive in the 06/21/2016 hard copy 
meeting file, in an electronic file maintained by the Clerk, and online via the audio/video software vendor 
website: www.avcaptureall.com).   
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Legal: 
 
Alternatives and Oversight for DSS Operations 
 
Contract County Attorney Doug Gill reviewed that the Board had requested information on options for the 
governance of the Department of Social Services (DSS).  He stated that the County currently followed the 
traditional way of governance, and he introduced Aimee Wall, professor with the UNC School of Government, 
to further discuss the County’s current DSS set-up and governance alternatives.  Ms. Wall reviewed this 
information and provided handouts regarding the same.  Chairman Picerno shared the reason for having this 
discussion on the agenda stemmed from public comment made by a Guardian ad Litem at the Board’s previous 
meeting.  He had directed the speaker back to the DSS Board, which had the authority in the matter of concern.  
Chairman Picerno said he felt it important for the press/public to understand how DSS was governed and 
discussed this further.  He indicated that he did not believe the option to consolidate, as allowed under current 
law, was the best fit for Moore County.   
 
Commissioner Graham discussed how hard she and her fellow DSS Board members and the Director had 
worked over the last several days on the case commented on during the commissioners’ last regular meeting, 
and she reviewed the confidential nature of the matter and how that confidentiality was important for the 
protection of the children of Moore County.  Commissioner Graham also commended Associate County 
Attorney Ward Medlin and County Manager Wayne Vest for being great resources as the DSS Board worked 
through this issue.  Commissioner Graham expressed her gratitude to Ms. Wall for her guidance.  Ms. Wall said 
that while the confidentiality requirement may come across as a legal barrier to information, it really was the 
fabric of social work to protect the confidentiality of the records and let DSS do its job in caring for children 
and families.  Vice Chairman Saunders thanked Commissioner Graham for her work on the DSS Board.  He 
said the public likely did not realize what a difficult job it was and said in his opinion, there was not a 
commissioner better suited for this work than Commissioner Graham. 
 
As Ms. Wall’s expertise also included Animal Operations, Chairman Picerno asked her to comment about what 
counties were legally responsible for regarding animal control.  Ms. Wall said there were actually very few 



 4

mandates in State law regarding counties and animal services.  These mandates related to dangerous dogs and 
rabies.  Chairman Picerno thanked Ms. Wall.               

 
DSS: 
 
Approval of Addendum to Contract with Northwoods Consulting Partners, Inc. 
 
Department of Social Services Director John Benton asked the Board to approve an addendum to include five 
additional Compass Capture licenses under the terms of the Compass Software Support Agreement and to also 
increase the contract amount by $1,200.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice 
Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the addendum to the Compass Software Support 
Agreement to include the five additional licenses and increase the contract amount to $36,889. 
 
Sheriff: 
 
Approval of Inmate Medical Plan 
 
Major Andy Conway, Jail Administrator, requested the Board’s approval of the Detention Center Facility 
Medical Plan for fiscal year 2017.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Commissioner 
Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the adoption of the Moore County Detention Center Facility Medical 
Plan dated June 8, 2016. 

 
Aging: 
 
Approval of FY17 Home and Community Care Block Grant 
 
Emily Tostado with the Department of Aging, on behalf of Director Terri Prots, requested the Board’s approval 
for fiscal year 2017 Home and Community Care Block Grant Funds.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to authorize approval of the FY 16-17 Home 
and Community Care Block Grant funds totaling $703,604 and authorize the Chairman to sign on the County’s 
behalf. 

 
JCPC: 
 
FY 17 Juvenile Crime Prevention Council Funding Plan 
 
J. Renee Brooks, Chair of the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council, requested the Board’s approval of the JCPC 
funding plan, which she presented.  Commissioner Graham made a motion, seconded by Vice Chairman 
Saunders, to approve the Juvenile Crime Prevention Council’s funding plan as presented and authorize the 
County Finance Officer to execute the program agreements and any future program revisions on behalf of the 
County, and to authorize the Chairman of the Board of County Commissioners to execute the County Funding 
Allocation and JCPC Council Certification.  Chairman Picerno inquired about the amount of local match 
required and Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong confirmed this information for him.  The motion carried 5-
0. 

 
 
 
 



 5

Animal Operations: 
 
Authorization to Submit Grant Application 
 
Animal Operations Director Brenda Sears requested authorization to apply for $25,000 in grant funding from 
the Petco Foundation with the objective of enhancing adoptions and therefore live release from the Animal 
Center.  She stated this would be a one-time allotment of funds and would not require any match from the 
County.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 
5-0 to approve the application for the grant to Petco Foundation in the amount of $25,000 and authorize the 
Chairman and Chief Financial Officer to sign any necessary documents pertaining to the registration and 
application to Petco.   
 
Chairman Picerno inquired with Ms. Sears regarding allegations of hosing of animals made during the Board’s 
public comment period earlier in the meeting.  Ms. Sears stated that employees were not hosing animals and 
that an investigation was conducted regarding the referenced incident, concluding the same. 
 
Information Technology: 
 
Approval of Duke Energy Progress Attachment Agreement 
 
IT Director Chris Butts requested the Board’s approval of a Duke Energy Progress Attachment Agreement.  
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to 
authorize the Chairman to execute the governmental attachment agreement with Duke Energy Progress to 
approve installation of county aerial fiber on Duke Energy Progress power poles. 
 
Approval of Globe Communications Contract Amendment # 1 
 
Mr. Butts asked the Board to approve contract amendment # 1 with Globe Communications.  Upon motion 
made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to, authorize the 
Chairman to execute the contract amendment # 1 with Globe Communications to meet Duke Energy Progress 
requirements with regards to the installation of the aerial fiber line. 

 
Public Works: 
 
Award of Contract for Lift Station V-1 Elimination Project 
 
Public Works Director Randy Gould asked the Board to award a contract to Columbus Utilities for the Lift 
Station V-1 elimination project.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner 
Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to award a contract to Columbus Utilities, Inc. in the amount of $426,589 for the 
Lift Station V-1 elimination project and authorize the Chairman to sign contingent upon final approval by the 
County Attorney. 
 
(A related revised project ordinance, approved later in the meeting, is hereby incorporated as a part of these 
minutes by attachment as Appendix E). 

 
 
 
 



 6

Award of Contract for Lake Pinehurst Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 
 
Mr. Gould asked the Board to award a contract to VacVision Environmental, LLC for the Lake Pinehurst 
sanitary sewer rehabilitation project.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to award a contract to VacVision Environmental, LLC in the amount 
of $95,900 for the Lake Pinehurst sanitary sewer rehabilitation project and authorize the Chairman to sign 
contingent upon final approval by the County Attorney. 

 
Award of Construction Contract for Generator Project 
 
Mr. Gould asked the Board to award a construction contract to Sanford Electric Company, Inc. for a generator 
project.  Chairman Picerno noted in Mr. Gould’s material presented in the Board’s packet, there were several 
items highlighted that had zero amounts.  Mr. Gould explained that it was hard to stay in budget and so some 
items had to be cut out for now, but would be completed later.  This was just a matter of prioritization.  Upon 
motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to award a 
construction contract to Sanford Electrical Company, Inc. in an amount not to exceed 58,966.55 for the 
generator project and authorize the Chairman to sign the contract. 

 
Award of Contract for Pump Station 3-1 Replacement 
 
Mr. Gould requested award of a contract to AC Schultes of Carolina, Inc. for the Pump Station 3-1 replacement.  
He noted that this item was before the Board at the previous regular meeting; however, projects over $300,000 
require performance and payment bonds so those had been added since that meeting.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to award a construction 
contract to AC Schultes in an amount not to exceed $306,022.50 for the Pump Station 3-1 replacement project 
and authorize the Chairman to sign the contract.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by 
Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the revised project ordinance for the Pump Station 3-1 
replacement project and authorize the Chairman to sign.  The revised project ordinance is hereby incorporated 
as a part of these minutes by attachment as Appendix F. 
 
Chief Financial Officer Caroline Xiong reminded Mr. Gould that there was also a revised project ordinance 
requiring the Board’s approval for the Lift Station V-1 elimination project.  Upon motion made by Vice 
Chairman Saunders seconded by Commissioner Graham, the Board voted 5-0 to approve Vass Wastewater 
System Improvements Project Ordinance Revision 1.  (See Appendix E). 

 
Approval of Rattlesnake Trail Revised Lease Agreement 
 
Mr. Gould requested the Board approve a revised lease agreement for the Public Works Department’s use of 
Pinehurst property on Rattlesnake Trail.  Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by 
Commissioner Daeke, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the revised lease agreement between the Village of 
Pinehurst and County of Moore for use of the property located at Rattlesnake Trail by the Moore County Public 
Works Department. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 7

Legal: 
 
Adoption of Resolution Urging Affirmative Action by the NC House on S727 
 
Contract County Attorney Doug Gill presented a resolution he prepared at the Board’s request urging 
affirmative action by the North Carolina House on Senate Bill 727, to restrict use of Moore County’s local 
option sales tax.  Chairman Picerno said the Board was united in its belief that when the sales tax issue was put 
on the ballot in March, the wording on the ballot was vague, and this bill would clarify the language while also 
restricting the funds for public school construction purposes only.  Chairman Picerno shared that Senator 
Tillman had said this should be a model for all counties going forward (that had not yet passed this referendum).  
The Chairman said after a scheduled “Town Hall” meeting on the coming Thursday, he expected members of 
the House would support the bill as well.  Upon motion made by Chairman Picerno, seconded by Commissioner 
Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to approve the resolution and authorize the Chairman to sign the same, and direct the 
Clerk to the Board to forward copies to the named individuals.  The resolution is hereby incorporated as a part 
of these minutes by attachment as Appendix G. 

 
Administration: 
 
Approval of Fee Waiver for Use of Historic Courthouse by Rep. Boles for Town Hall Meeting Regarding S727 
on June 23, 2016 
 
County Manager Wayne Vest requested the Board waive all fees for Rep. Jamie Boles’ use of the historic 
courthouse for a Town Hall meeting to be held June 23, 2016 regarding Senate Bill 727.  Upon motion made by 
Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to waive all fees for the use of 
the historic courthouse by Rep. Boles on Thursday, June 23, 2016. 

 
APPOINTMENTS 

 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint David Wall to fill the unexpired term of Emily Coltrane in the Chief Court Counselor position on the 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council through June 30, 2017. 
 
Transportation Advisory Board 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
reappoint Mike Andrews and Karey Perez to the Transportation Advisory Board for three-year terms expiring 
June 30, 2019. 
 
Planning Board / Chair 
 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Ritter, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
appoint Joseph Garrison as the Planning Board Chair for FY17.  Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, 
seconded by Commissioner Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to appoint John Cook to the Planning Board to fill the 
unexpired term of Buck Mims through January 31, 2019. 
 
 



 8

Southern Pines Planning Board ETJ 
 
Upon motion made by Vice Chairman Saunders, seconded by Chairman Picerno, the Board voted 5-0 to appoint 
Larry Harward as an ETJ member of the Town of Southern Pines Planning Board for a term commencing June 
14, 2016 and expiring June 14, 2019. 

 
MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
County Manager Wayne Vest reminded the commissioners of an employee recognition luncheon scheduled for 
the following day.  He also informed the Board he would be on vacation the following week, but available if 
needed. 

COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS 
 
Chairman Picerno commented regarding the following: 

- Congratulated the Town of Robbins on cutting its tax rate 
- Expressed that he was glad the legal authority for DSS had been laid out so that the public would know, 

and said the Board appreciated Commissioner Graham and all the work she did on the DSS Board, as 
well as the Director, John Benton and Chair, Katie Dunlap.  He said he felt it was important to get the 
clarification provided and to also recognize the important work done by Guardian ad Litems.    

- Reminded everyone about the Town Hall meeting scheduled for the coming Thursday evening for the 
purpose of receiving input on Senate Bill 727. 

- Discussed issues with Animal Operations and suggested it could be time to go back to providing only 
what was statutorily required.  He said the shelter could be given over and County employees could be 
transitioned to other departments.  He asked the County Manager to investigate whether this was an 
operation that would be better handled in the private sector. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Upon motion made by Commissioner Daeke, seconded by Vice Chairman Saunders, the Board voted 5-0 to 
come out of closed session and seal the minutes. 
 
There being no further business, upon motion made by Commissioner Graham, seconded by Commissioner 
Ritter, the Board voted 5-0 to adjourn the June 21, 2016 regular meeting of the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners at 7:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.B.















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.C.









clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.D.07/19/2016











clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.E.







 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 1. Title. 
Page 1. Authority. 
Page 1. Purpose. 
Page 2. Definitions. 
Page 2-4.  Agricultural Advisory Board. 
Page 4-5. Creation of voluntary agricultural districts (VADs). 
Page 6. Qualifications and certification of farmland. 
Page 6-7. Application, approval and appeal procedure. 
Page 7. Revocation of conservation agreement. 
Page 7-8.  Public hearings. 
Page 8. Public notice. 
Page 9. Subdivision ordinance and z oning ordinance review. 
Page 9. Reserved. 
Page 9. County land-use  planning. 
Page 9. Consultation  authority. 
Page 9-10. North Carolina agency notification. 
Page 10. Legal provisions. 



 

 
 
 

Title 
 

An ordinance of the Board of County Commissioners of Moore County, North Carolina entitled 
"Voluntary Forestry, Open Land and Farmland Protection Program Ordinance." 

 
 

 
The articles and sections of this ordinance are adopted pursuant to the authority conferred by N.C.G.S. 

106-735 through N.C.G.S. 106-743 and N.C.G.S. 153A 
 

 
 

The purpose of this ordinance is to promote agricultural values and the general welfare of the county 
and more specifically, increase identity and pride in the agricultural community and its way of life; 
encourage the economic and financial health of agriculture; and increase protection from non-farm 
development and other negative impacts on properly managed farms and properties. 

 
This ordinance establishes a Voluntary Agricultural District Program that provides the following 

benefits for participating farmers and other county residents: 
 

The program preserves and maintains agriculture, horticulture, silviculture, or open land areas within 
the county; 

 
The program informs non-farming neighbors and potential land purchasers that the participating farm 
may emit noise, dust and smells (a feature which may assist in avoiding conflicts between neighbors and 
potential nuisance claims); 

 
The program gives the farming community a better voice in Moore County Commissioners' decisions 
affecting farmland; 

 
Landowner participation in the program is voluntary and the farmer may terminate his/her participation 
at any time; 

 
The program requires the Moore County Commissioners to use agriculture, horticulture, silviculture or 
open land areas as "a last resort" if they are attempting to condemn county lands; 

 
The program would protect greenspace and natural resources as the county's population increases and 
development expands; 

 
The program maintains opportunities to produce locally grown food and fiber. 

 
 
 
 
 

1 



MOORE COUNTY CODE 
 
 

Definitions 
 

The following are defined for purposes of this Ordinance: 
 

Advisory board means the Moore County Agricultural Advisory Board. 
 

Chairman means the chairman of the Moore County Agricultural Advisory Board. 
 

District means Voluntary Agricultural District as established by this Ordinance. 

Board of Commissioners means the Moore County Board of Commissioners. 

Farmland means agriculture, horticulture, silviculture or open land. 

 
 

 
{a) Creation. The Board of Commissioners establishes the Moore County Agricultural Advisory Board 
to implement the provisions of this program. 

 
{b) Appointments and Membership. The agricultural advisory board shall  consist of seven (7) 
members appointed by the Moore County Board of Commissioners, six of whom are geographically representative of  
the  county and one (1) member at large. The Board of Commissioners shall also appoint seven (7) alternate Agricultural Advisory Board 
members, six (6) geographically representative of the county and one (1) member at large. The Board of Commissioners may expand the 
Agricultural Advisory Board if the need arises.  

 
(1) Requirements . 

 
a. Each board member shall be a county resident and registered to vote in Moore County. 
b. The seven Board members shall be selected for appointment by the Board of Commissioners 

from the names of individuals submitted to the Board of Commissioners by the Agricultural 
Advisory Board, or by application by the following: 

 
1. Soil and Water Conservation District; 
 2.  The Cooperative Extension Service; 
 3.  The Natural Resource Conservation Services; 
 4.  The Farm Service Agency; 
 5.  The Forest Service; and 
 6. The Moore County Farm Bureau, 

with favorable consideration given towards someone who is actively engaged from the following 
classes: Agriculture; Horticulture; Forestry; Swine; Poultry; Livestock and Urban. 

 
2 



(2) Tenure. The members are to serve for terms of three years, with a maximum of six consecutive 
years. Thereafter, any member must be off of the board for at least one year before being 
reappointed. 

 
(3) Vacancies. Any vacancy on the Agricultural Advisory Board is to be filled by the Board of 

Commissioners for the remainder of the unexpired term from the recommendations of the groups 
listed in subsection (b)(1) above. 

 
(4) Removal for cause. Any member of the Agricultural Advisory Board may be removed for cause 

by the Board of Commissioners upon written cause and after a public hearing. 
 
 

(c) Advisory board procedures. 
 

(1) Chairman and vice-chairman. The advisory board shall elect a chairman and vice-chairman each 
year at its first meeting of the fiscal year. The chairman shall preside over all regular or special 
meetings of the advisory board. In the absence or disability of the chairman, the vice chairman 
shall preside and shall exercise all the powers of the chairman. Additional officers may be elected 
as needed. 

 
(2) Jurisdiction. The advisory board may adopt Rules of Procedure consistent with this ordinance or 

with other provisions of state law. 
 

(3) Advisory board year. The advisory board shall adopt the Moore County fiscal year as its meeting 
year. 

 
(4)  Meetings. Meetings of the advisory board shall be held pursuant to the meeting schedule adopted 

by the advisory board, or at the call of the Chairman and at such other times as the advisory board 
may specify in its rules of procedure. A meeting shall be held at least every two months quar terly, 
and in no case more than nine ty (90) days since the previous meeting. Notice of any meetings 
should be in writing unless otherwise agreed to by all advisory board members. Meetings shall 
follow open meetings law. Agenda item preparation and public notice shall be the responsibility of 
the staff of the Soil and Water Conservation District who performs those duties at the pleasure of 
the Chairman of the Advisory Board. An annual schedule of meetings shall be adopted at the final 
meeting of each calendar year. 

 
(5) Majority vote. All issues shall be decided by majority vote of the members of the Advisory Board 

present at any meeting. 
 
 

(6) Records. The advisory board shall keep minutes of the proceedings showing the vote of each 
member upon each question, or if absent or failing to vote, indicating such fact and shall keep 
records of the official actions, which shall be filed in the Office of the Advisory Board, and shall 
be public record. 

(d) Duties. The advisory board shall: 



(1) Review and approve or disapprove applications for qualified farmland and for membership in a 
Voluntary Agricultural District (hereafter VAD) and make recommendations concerning the 
establishment an d modification of any VAD. 

 
(2) Conduct public hearings. 

 

(3) Advise the Board of Commissioners on projects, programs or issues affecting the agricultural 
economy or activities within the county which may affect agricultural districts. 

 
(4) Review and make recommendations concerning proposed amendments to this Ordinance. 

 

(5) Study additional methods of farmland protection and make recommendations to the Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
(6) Perform other agricultural related tasks or duties assigned by the Board of Commissioners. 

 

(7) At the request of the Board of Commissioners, the Advisory Board shall produce a written report to 
the Board of Commissioners that shall include the status, progress and activities of the county's 
VAD program. 

 
(8) Advisory Board members hold their positions for the benefit of the general public and Moore 

County. Conflicts may arise in situations in which an advisory board member's duty to act in the 
public interest conflicts with a potential desire to advance his/her own interest. These conflicts of 
interest may include financial, associative, and personal bias. Each member shall disclose any 
conflict of interest and refrain from taking part in discussing or voting on such matters, if his/her 
situation might reasonably call into question the impartiality or fairness of such discussions. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(a) Implementation. In order to implement the purposes stated in the ordinance, this program 
provides for the creation of VADS which meet the following standards: 

 
(1) The district, when initially established, shall contain the minimum amount of land required for 

taxation based on farm use evaluation, which is: five acres for horticultural use; ten acres for 
agricultural use; and twenty acres for forestry use. When considering acreage, land leased and/or 
rented for the purpose of agriculture shall be taken into account. 

 
 
 

(2) The landowner(s) requesting inclusion in the VAD shall execute an agreement with the county to 
sustain agriculture in the VAD in accordance with subsection "Qualifications and Certification of 

 
 

4 



Farmland" of this program. Said agreement shall be in a form which is reviewed and approved 
by the Advisory Board. 

 
(b) Purpose. The purpose of this section is to help meet the needs of agriculture as an industry and 

prevent conflicts between VAD participants and non-farm landowners in proximity to said 
districts. 

 
(c) Procedure of notification. The Advisory Board, in cooperation with the county, shall provide 

notification to property owners, residents and other interested persons within one-half mile and 
adjacent to any designated VAD. See N.C.G.S. 106-741(a). The purpose of such notification is 
to inform current and potential residents and property owners in and adjacent to a VAD that 
farming and agricultural activities may take place in this district any time during the day or night. 
These activities may include, but are not limited to, the following: pesticide spraying, manure 
spreading, machinery, truck or tractor operations, livestock operations, sawing, and similar 
activities. 

 
(1) Types of notification. 

 
a. Signs identifying approved agricultural districts shall be placed on private property 

adjacent to along the right-of-way of major roads adjoining the VAD in such a manner so 
that current and potential residents and property owners are made aware that farming and 
agricultural activities may occur at any time. Specific location of the signs, including the 
number of signs necessary to provide adequate notice of the specific district, shall be 
approved by the county Planning Director. 

 
b. Maps identifying approved VADS shall be provided to the Register of Deeds office, the Soil 

and Water Conservation District Office, the Cooperative Extension Office, the Farm Service 
Agency, the Natural Resources Conservation Service, the Moore County Planning 
Department and Moore County GIS. 

 
c. The following notice shall be made available to everyone recording a deed or plat with the 

Register of Deeds: 
 

'NOTICE TO REAL ESTATE PURCHASERS IN MOORE COUNTY 
MOORE COUNTY AGRICULTURAL DISTRICTS’ 

 
Moore County has established Agricultural Districts to protect and preserve agricultural 
lands and activities. These districts have been developed and mapped by the County to 
inform all purchasers of real property that certain agricultural activities including, but not 
limited to, pesticide spraying, manure spreading, machinery, tractor or truck operations, 
livestock operations, sawing and similar activities may take place in those districts. This map 
may be obtained from the Register of Deeds Office, Soil and Water Conservation District 
Office, Cooperative Extension Office, Farm Service Agency, the Natural Resources 
Conservation Service, and the Moore County Planning Department." 
 

Qualifications and Certification of Farmland 
 

Requirements. In order for farmland to qualify for inclusion in a VAD and to participate under the terms 
of this program, it shall meet the following requirements: 

 
 
 

5 



(1) The farmland shall be real property. 
 

(2) The farmland must be engaged in agriculture as that word is defined in N.C.G.S. 106-581.1 
which includes:  

(a.) The cultivation of soil for production and harvesting of crops, including but not limited to fruits, 
vegetables, sod, flowers and ornamental plants; 

(b.) The planting and production of trees and timber. 
(c.) Dairying and the raising, management, care, and training of livestock, including horses, bees, 

poultry, and other animals for individual and public use, consumption, and marketing. 
(d.) Aquaculture, as defined in NC.G.S. 106-758; 
(e.) The operation, management, conservation, improvement, and maintenance of a farm and the 

structures and buildings on the farm, including building and structure repair, replacement, 
expansion, and construction incident to the farming operation; 

(f.) When performed on the farm "agriculture," "agricultural," and "farming" also include the 
marketing and selling of agricultural products, agritourism, the storage and use of materials for 
agricultural purposes, packing, treating, processing, sorting, storage and other activities 
performed to add value to crops, livestock, and agricultural iitems produced on the farm, and 
similar activities incident to the operation of a farm. 

(g.) A public or private grain warehouse or warehouse operation where grain is held 10 days or 
longer and includes, but is not limited to, all buildings, elevators, equipment, and warehouses 
consisting of one or more warehouse sections and considered a single delivery point with the 
capability to receive, load out, weigh, dry, and store grain. (N.C.G.S. 106.581.1) 

 
(3) The farmland must be managed in accordance with the Natural Resource Conservation 

Service defined erosion control practices that are addressed to highly erodible land. 
 

(4) The farmland must be the subject of a conservation agreement, as defined in G.S. 121-35, 
between the county and the owner of such land that prohibits nonfarm use or development of 
such land for a period of at least ten years, except for the creation of not more than three lots 
that meet applicable county and municipal zoning and subdivision regulations. 

 
(5) A conservation agreement entered into for the purpose of enrolling real property in a Voluntary 

Agricultural District pursuant to this article and G.S. 106-737(4) shall be recorded by the 
Moore County Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 

6 



 

 
 

(1) Application Procedure   

(a) A landowner may apply to participate in the program by making application to the chairman of 
the Advisory Board or a designated staff person. The application shall be on forms provided by 
the Advisory Board. The application to participate in a VAD may be filed with the certification 
for qualifying farmland. 

 
(b) An agreement to sustain, encourage, and promote agriculture must be executed by the 

landowner and recorded with the advisory board. 
 

(2) Approval Process. Upon submission of the application to the advisory board, the advisory board 
shall meet within 90 days to approve or disapprove the application. The chairman shall notify 
the applicant by first class mail of approval or disapproval of participation in the VAD. Upon 
receipt of an application, the chairman shall forward copies immediately to the Moore County 
Soil and Water Conservation District which shall review, complete and return their copies to the 
chairman within 30 days of receipt. 

 
(3) Appeal. If an application is denied by the Advisory Board, the applicant has 30 days within 

which to appeal the decision to the Board of Commissioners. Such appeal shall be presented in 
writing. The decision of the Board of Commissioner shall be final. 

 
 

 
 

By written notice to the Advisory Board, a landowner of qualifying farmland may revoke the 
Conservation Agreement, or the Advisory Board may revoke the Conservation Agreement based upon 
noncompliance by the landowner subject to the same provisions as contained in section "Application, 
Approval and Appeal Procedure" for appealing denials of applications. Such revocation shall result in 
loss of qualifying farm status and loss of eligibility to participate in a VAD. The process will be completed 
within 30 days of receipt of written notification. The Planning Board and the Register of Deeds shall be 
notified of any revocation. 

 
 

 
 

(1) Purpose. Pursuant to G.S. 106-740, which provides that no State or local public agency or 
governmental unit may formally initiate any action to condemn any interest in  a VAD until 
such agency or unit has requested the advisory board to hold a public hearing on the 
proposed condemnation. This Ordinance provides for such a hearing. 

 
(2) Procedure. 
(a) Upon receiving a request, the Advisory Board shall publish notice describing the proposed action 

in a newspaper of general circulation in Moore County within  five business days of the request, 
and will in the same notice notify the public of a public hearing on the proposed condemnation 
to be held within 30 business days of receipt of the request. 



(B) The advisory board shall meet to review: 
 

1. Whether the need for the project has been satisfactorily established by the agentv or unit of 
government involved, including a review of any fiscal impact analysis conducted by the agency 
involved; 

2.  Alternatives to the proposed action that have less impact and are less disruptive to the 
agricultural activities of the district within which the proposed action is to take place. 

 
(C) The Advisory Board shall consult with the Cooperative Extension Agent, Moore County Forest 

Service, USDA-NRCS District Conservationist, the Moore County Farm Bureau and my consult 
with any other individuals, agencies or organizations deemed by the Advisory Board to be 
necessary for its review of the proposed action. Land value will not be a factor in the selection 
between properties under consideration for the proposed action. 

 
(D) Within ten business days after the public hearings, the Advisory Board shall make a report 

containing its findings and recommendations regarding the proposed action. The report shall be 
made available to the public for comment prior to its being conveyed to the decision-making 
body of the agency proposing acquisition. 

 
(E) Pursuant to G.S. 106-740(3), the Board of Commissioners shall not permit any formal initiation of 

condemnation by local agencies while the proposed condemnation is properly before the 
advisory board within these time limitations. 

 
 

 
 

(1) Procedure.  Pursuant to G.S. 106-741(a), upon certification of qualifying farmland and 
designation of real property as a VAD, the Moore County Land Records System shall be changed 
to include a notice reasonably calculated to alert a person researching the title of a particular 
tract that such a tract is located within one-half mile of a poultry, swine, or dairy qualifying 
farm or within 600 feet of any other qualifying farm or within one-half mile of a voluntary 
agricultural district. 

 
(2) Limit of liability. Pursuant to G.S. 106-741(b), in no event shall the county or any of its officers, 

employees, or agents be held liable in damages for any misfeasance, malfeasance, or 
nonfeasance occurring in good faith in connection with the duties or obligations imposed by this 
ordinance. 

 
(3) No cause of action. Pursuant to G.S. 106-741(c), in no event shall any cause of action arise out 

of the failure of a person researching the title of a particular tract to report to any person the 
proximity of the tract to a qualifying farm or VAD as defined in this ordinance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

8 



 

 
 

Developers of major subdivision or planned unit developments shall designate on preliminary and 
final site developments plans, the existence of the VADs within one-half mile of the proposed 
development. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

(1) Signed registration. Moore County shall require persons applying for a building permit or 
persons registering a deed to sign the following statement, a record of which shall be 
maintained at the office of the Planning Department: 

 
"I certify that I have reviewed the most current Moore County Agricultural Districting Map found 
in the Register of Deeds and/or Planning Office. I have noted the proximity of Agricultural 
District Boundaries to my property. I understand that activities such as pesticide spraying, 
manure spreading, machine operation, livestock operations and or other common farming 
activities may occur at any time in these areas." 

 
 

 
 

The Advisory Board may consult with the Cooperative Extension Office, the Moore County Soil and 
Water Conservation Office, the Natural Resources Conservation Service, the Forestry Service, the Moore 
County Farm Bureau, the North Carolina Farm Bureau, and any other such agency the Advisory Board 
deems necessary to properly conduct its business. 

 
 

 
(1) Record annually with the Department of Agriculture. A record of this ordinance shall be 

recorded with the Office of the North Carolina Commissioner of Agriculture after adoption and 
after any amendment or modification. At least once per year the office of the Advisory Board 
shall submit a written report to the Commissioner of Agriculture concerning the status, progress 
and activities of the county's Farmland Protection Program including the VAD information 
regarding the following: 

 
(a) Number of landowners enrolled; 
(b) Number of acres for which     
applications are pending 
(c)   Date and number of acres certified or de-certified; and 
(d)   Number of acres denied. 

 
 

9 



Legal provisions. 
 

(1) Severability. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for 
any reason determined to be invalid or unconstitutional as determined by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of 
this Ordinance. 

 
(2) Conflict with other ordinances and statutes. Whenever the provisions of this Ordinance conflict 

with other ordinances of Moore County, those  Ordinances shall  gove rn. Whenever the 
provisions of any federal or state statute require more restrictive provisions than are required 
by this Ordinance, the provisions of such statute shall govern. 

  
(3) Amendments . This article may be amended from time to time upon recommendation by the 

Advisory Board to the Board of Commissioners. Upon receipt from the Advisory Board of a 
recommended amendment, the Board of Commissioners shall conduct a public hearing to 
consider the amendment. Any amendment(s) shall be filed with the Commissioner of 
Agriculture upon adoption pursuant to G.S. 106-743. See also section "North Carolina agency 
notification." 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REVISED 
DATE:                                                                    

 
                                                                       June 29, 2016  
                                                                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10 



 
 

 

 
The Moore County Board of Commissioners hereby adopts and enacts the preceding sections of 
this Ordinance as amended. 

 
Adopted this. day of  ___         2016  

Motion adoption by   _ 

Seconded by  _ 

 
MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 
 

 

(CHAIRMAN) 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

 

Clerk to Board of Commissioners 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.F.



























clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.G.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

























  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:  July 19, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy G. Gould, Public Works Director   
 
DATE:  July 15, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Vac Truck Contract       
 
PRESENTER: Randy G. Gould, PE 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Execute the contract for the  purchase of a Vac Truck for Public Works. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Moore County Board of Commissioners authorized the purchase of the Vac Truck at their September 
15, 2015 Board Meeting. 
 
Moore County Policy requires an executed contract for purchases over $90,000. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Authorize contract to be signed. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
Total Cost of the Vac Truck is $373,703.10. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to authorize the chairman to sign the contract with Hi-Vac Corporation for the 
purchase of the Vac Truck. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Contract 
 
 
 
 
 
 
I:PublicWorks/Vehicles/2016/Memo to Board071516 

 
 
 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
V.H.



FN 16-0232 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 

This Contract is made the 19th day of July, 2016, between the County of Moore, a political subdivision of 
the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Hi-Vac Corporation, an entity formed under the laws of 
the State of Ohio (the “Seller”). 

 
1. Description of Goods 

 
The Seller will transfer and deliver to the County, and the County, subject to the conditions set forth 
in this Contract, will take delivery and accept one Aquatech B10 Vacuum Truck meeting the 
County’s specifications (the “Goods”), as provided for in Attachment 1, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
Seller agrees that all Goods must fully conform to this Contract and failure to adhere to any portion, 
including but not limited to, quantity, quality, and time of performance, will constitute a breach. 

 
2. Time of Delivery 

 
The Seller will deliver the Goods covered by this Contract to the County on or before August 15, 
2016.  Delivery will be made to Moore County Public Utilities, which is located at 5227 US 15-501 
HWY, Carthage, NC  28327.  The parties mutually agree that time is of the essence. 
 

3. Payment 
 
The County will pay the Seller $373,703.10, which includes delivery.  Payment will occur within 30 
days of delivery of the Goods.  The payment amount does not include North Carolina taxes or 
registration fees, which the County is responsible for. 
 

4. Inspection 
 

The County will have the right to inspect and test the Goods prior to acceptance. 
 
5. Risk of Loss and Title 
 

The risk of loss will pass to the County upon delivery of the Goods.  In addition, title to the Goods 
will pass to the County upon delivery. 
 

6. Dealer Emblems 
 
Decals or markings of any type pertaining to advertising of the dealer are not allowed. 
 

7. Service Requirements 
 

All vehicles must be properly serviced and in first class operating condition when delivered.  The 
Seller is responsible for servicing each vehicle, in addition to any prior factory servicing, as follows: 
 
a. Complete lubrication; 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 

FN 16-0232 Page 2 of 7 

b. Check all fluid levels to ensure they are filled to manufacturer’s recommended capacity 
(crankcase, differential, radiator, power steering, transmission, etc.); 

c. A minimum of five (5) gallons of gasoline at time of delivery; 
d. Tires inflated to the correct pressure; 
e. Check to ensure operation of all mechanical and electrical features; 
f. Check to ensure there are no defects in the appearance of the Goods; and 
g. Thorough cleaning, including washing, if necessary. 
 

8. Product Recall 
 
In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other important notification affecting 
the Goods, notice will be provided to the County as provided for under Section 16 of this Contract 
and the notice will include the Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) of the Goods affected. 
 

9. Waiver 
 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect that 
party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available to it 
by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract will 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
10. Warranties 
 

The Seller represents and warrants that: 
 
a. It is a company validly existing, in good standing, and qualified to do business in North Carolina; 
b. It has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations 

under this Contract; 
c. The Goods comply with all requirements set forth in this Contract; 
d. The Goods are free of defects in title, claims, liens, labor, material or fabrication; 
e. The Goods are suitable for the purposes intended; and 
f. The Goods are of merchantable quality. 

 
11. Default 

 
In the event the Seller defaults by one of the following, the County may, by written notice to the 
Seller, cancel all or any part of this order or exercise any other remedy allowed under law: 
 
a. Non-delivery, as required; 
b. Not providing adequate assurance of performance; or 
c. Breaches any term or condition of this Contract, 

 
12. Assignment 

 
This Contract is not assignable by either party, by operation of law or otherwise. 

 
13. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Seller will indemnify and hold harmless the County, its 
officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct, 
indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers or architects, 



 

FN 16-0232 Page 3 of 7 

attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising out of or 
resulting from this Contract or the actions of the Seller, its officials, employees, or contractors under 
this Contract or under contracts entered into by the Seller in connection with this Contract.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
14. Governing Law 

 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the 
parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions relating 
to this Contract will be brought in the General Court of Justice in Moore County, North Carolina. 
 

15. Severability 
 
If any provision of this Contract is held to be void, illegal, unenforceable, or in conflict with any law, 
the validity of the remaining portions and provisions of this Contract will not be affected. 
 

16. Notices 
 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when received 
by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY: Randy Gould, Director 
 Moore County Public Works 
 P.O. Box 1927 
 Carthage, NC  28327    
 
SELLER: Hi-Vac Corporation 

117 Industry Road 
Marietta, OH  45750 

 
17. Non-Exclusive Agreement 
 

The County and Seller acknowledge that this is a non-exclusive agreement.  The County may 
purchase like or similar Goods from other sellers and the Seller may sell like or similar Goods to 
other buyers. 
 

18. Modification 
 
This Contract can be modified or rescinded only by written agreement of the Parties. 

 
19. Entire Agreement 

 
This Contract and Attachment 1 constitute the entire understanding between the parties and 
supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 
matter hereof. 
 

20. Headings 
 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of any 
provision. 
 



 

FN 16-0232 Page 4 of 7 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed by their 
duly authorized officers or agents.  This agreement is effective as of the date first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  Attest: 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  Laura M. Williams 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
HI-VAC CORPORATION  Attest: 
 

 

    
By:   By:   
Title:   Title:   
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0232 Page 5 of 7 

VEHICLE SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
A. The Goods to be sold by the Seller to the County are as follows, which includes the additional vehicle 

specifications: 
 
Item Qty. Part # Description Price (Each) Total 

      

1 1 B-10  Aquatech model B10 with the following  $178,675.00 $178,675.00  

 1 NPN  Upgrade to 12 yard debris body  $7,680.00 $7,680.00  

 1 A215523  80 GPM @ 2500 PSI water system  $5,102.00 $5,102.00  

 1 A340407  ROOTS model 827 (4200 CFM)  $15,586.00 $15,586.00  

 1 A215555-22  Unloader valve - Rear reel  $5,250.00 $5,250.00  

 1 A175271-3-
C  

Sewer hose ,1" X 800',Cobra,3000 PSI  $1,585.00 $1,585.00  

 1 A239936-
PATS  

Lateral cleaning kit with hydraulic 
power reel with 200' X 1/2" sewer hose  

$5,683.00 $5,683.00  

 1 A382557-6  Provision split screen system, manhole 
& back up  

$2,301.00 $2,301.00  

 2 A000403  Strobe light on unitStrobe light on unit  $733.00 $1,466.00  

 1 A000404  Strobe light on chassis cab  $1,028.00 $1,028.00  

 3 A220180  Limb guard for standard strobe  $252.00 $756.00  

 1 A383168-1  Strobe lights in front grill  $1,083.00 $1,083.00  

 1 A380713  Strobe linear  $2,070.00 $2,070.00  

 1 A120395-5  LED light board, installed on unit  $1,960.00 $1,960.00  

 5 A120401  Flood light LED (Specify desired 
location)  

$305.00 $1,525.00  

 1 A120111-
LED 

50 50' retractable cord & LED spotlight  $425.00 $425.00  

 1 A130572-4  1/2" low pressure hose reel -100' cap. 
Spring retracted (no hose)  

$2,500.00 $2,500.00  

 1 A131629-
100  

1/2" x 100' hose assembly with fittings  $925.00 $925.00  

 1 A130575  1/2" high pressure hose reel -100' cap. 
Spring retracted (no hose)  

$2,500.00 $2,500.00  

 1 A130592-
100  

High pressure hand gun kit w/ 100' x 
1/2" hose, no reel  

$1,775.00 $1,775.00  

 1 A130641-2  12 Yard internal tank flusher  $2,500.00  $2,500.00  

 1 A338837  Dual floor flusher all body sizes  $2,650.00 $2,650.00  

 1 A245901-4  Debris tank vibrator  $3,750.00 $3,750.00  

 1 A383990-2  Decant hose with quick connect and 
cap  

$500.00 $500.00  

 1 A243924-1  Access steps - tank top  $385.00 $385.00  

 1 A381531-1  Remote lubrication manifold  $6,500.00 $6,500.00  

 1 A180555-S  60"Wx24"Dx24"H aluminum tool box 
w/ shelf  

$1,590.00 $1,590.00  

 1 A306011  Three vertical tube holder behind cab  $805.00 $805.00  

 1 A306031  Four vertical tube holder street side, 
chassis frame mounted  

$823.00 $823.00  

 1 A338664-7  IntelACount digital hose counter  $4,750.00  $4,750.00  

 1 A383276  Hose reel counter (O-ring type) 
mounted to reel  

$1,126.00  $1,126.00  

 1 A110452-1  6 way boom control joy stick  $1,750.00 $1,750.00  

 1 A387082  Omnix wireless remote(14 function)  $4,950.00 $4,950.00  



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0232 Page 6 of 7 

Item Qty. Part # Description Price (Each) Total 

 1 A131402-
12V  

12V cold weather recirculation 
package  

$3,800.00 $3,800.00  

 1 A131402  Cold weather recirculation for units 
with rear reels (reel only)  

$275.00 $275.00  

 3 A131471  Cold weather recirculation for 1/2" 
hose reel  

$250.00 $750.00  

 1  A220271  Left tow hook  $125.00 $125.00  

 1  A220281  Right tow hook  $125.00 $125.00  

 1  A384668-3  Second tiger tail holder under rear 
splash shield  

$250.00 $250.00  

 1  A221370  Fill line strainer  $202.00 $202.00  

 1  A384092-2  Water Tank Signage Kit (Customer to 
Supply Art work)  

$1,750.00 $1,750.00  

 1  A382413-
5A382413-5  

Splash shield, 1/2 rear door(3 o'clock 
to 9 o'clock with splash plate) Splash 
shield, 1/2 rear door(3 o'clock to 9 
o'clock with splash plate)  

$1,250.00 $1,250.00 

 1  A385700  Cyclone separator with collection 
chamber and discharge valve  

$5,715.00 $5,715.00  

 1  A380533-RJ  23 foot extendable boom B series  STANDARD 
ON B12/1000 

$0.00 

 1  A241102-4-
DB 

L Dual side mounted extension 
cylinders  

STANDARD 
ON B12/1000  

$0.00 

 1  A380712-V  In cab digital scale system  $6,500.00 $6,500.00 

  A381239  PTO hour meter  $225.00 $225.00 

  A120002  Back up alarm, 12 volt electric  $125.00  $125.00  

  A120134  Temp gauge for blower  $917.00  $917.00  

  A249164-1  Traffic cone holder, (space permitting) 
NO CONES  

$255.00  $255.00  

  AA383806  Body back-up power system, 12V(in 
case of hydraulic failure)  

$2,065.00  $2,065.00  

      

  A383970  Aluminum intake tube 8" X 6' Ball & 
Socket  

STANDARD 
ON B12/1000  

$0.00 

  A383965  Extension tube 8" X 7' Ball & Socket  STANDARD 
ON B12/1000  

$0.00 

  A383965  Extension tube 8" X 7' Ball & Socket  $435.00  $1,740.00  

  A384071  8" x 3' fluidizer nozzle Ball & Socket  $390.00  $390.00  

  A176150  25' fill hose  $151.00  $151.00  

  ES-Kit  Safety kit (5 lb extinguisher-Triangle 
kit-first aid kit)  

$332.00  $332.00  

      

   NON CONTRACT ITEMS:    

 1  WS-1/2-J  1/2" Warthog w/ball joint  $1,134.40 $1,134.40 

 1  60.050  1/2" ENZ chisel point, Dia. 1.14"  $301.50 $301.50 

 1  RN50B-1-
6054  

1/2" RN style nozzle - setup for 22 
GPM @ 2000 PSI w/1F, 6R  

$62.00 $62.00 

 1  WGRP-PKG  1" Warhog Magnum nozzle with pulling 
head  

$2,830.00 $2,830.00 

 1  60.100  1" ENZ chisel point nozzle  $445.50 $445.50 

 1  30.100  1" Standard nozzle, Dia. 1.89"  $391.50 $391.50 

 1  83-FUD  1" Ultimate penetrator  $373.50 $373.50 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0232 Page 7 of 7 

Item Qty. Part # Description Price (Each) Total 

 1  90-FUD  1" Shamrock-et - setup for 80 GPM @ 
2000 PSI  

$478.80 $478.80 

      

Total List $305,168.20 

NJPA Discount -$29,915.10 

2016 Freightliner 108SD Per Included Specifications $93,950.00 

3-Day Onsite Training $2,500.00 

Deliver $2,000.00 

Total $373,703.10 

 
 
B. This Contract is issued pursuant to the contract between the National Join Powers Alliance (“NJPA”) 

and the Seller as part of the NJPA’s Cooperative Purchasing Program, which is identified as Contract 
#022014-HVC resulting from RFP #022014.  Except where different terms are provided for by this 
Contract, the Seller is bound by the terms and conditions of the contract with the NJPA in the 
performance of this Contract, which includes, but is not limited to, the provision of the same services 
and warranties. 



Agenda Item:    
Meeting Date:  July 19, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Misty Randall Leland, County Attorney   
    
DATE:  July 11, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Economic Development Incentive – CALL TO Public Hearing  
 
REQUEST: 
Request is hereby made for the Moore County Board of Commissioners to hold a public hearing on 
August 16, 2016 at 5:30PM to consider entering into an economic development agreement with 
Reliance Packaging, LLC. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Reliance Packaging, LLC, is an entity operating in the Town of Aberdeen and which was considering 
relocating to another state.  In 2014, Pat Corso, Executive Director of Moore County Partners in 
Progress, approached the County concerning an economic development incentive grant that involved 
the One NC Fund, which would help retain Reliance, provide for Reliance making $3.5 million in 
capital investments within the County, and provide for Reliance hiring 48 new employees making no 
less than the County’s average wage standard as determined by the North Carolina Department of 
Commerce. 
 
The One NC Fund grant, which has already been entered into between the State and Reliance, is in an 
amount not to exceed $52,000 and requires a dollar for dollar match.  As its portion of the match, the 
Town of Aberdeen has entered into an economic development incentive grant with Reliance in an 
amount not to exceed $24,997. 
 
As was presented to the County in 2014, the County’s portion of the One NC Fund grant match will 
be in an amount not to exceed $27,003.  These funds are proposed to be paid out in amounts equal to 
a percentage of ad valorem taxes paid by Reliance throughout the term of the agreement.   
   
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
None 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
In exchange for $27,003 paid by the County over five years, Reliance will make $3.5 million in 
capital investments within the County and hire 48 new employees making no less than the County’s 
average wage standard as determined by the N.C. Department of Commerce. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to call for a public hearing on August 16, 2016, at 5:30PM to consider entering into 
an economic development agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC.  
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Legal Notice 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.A. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The County of Moore proposes to appropriate and expend County funds for an economic 
development incentive pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 158-7.1.  The Moore 
County Board of Commissioners will consider entering into an economic development 
agreement with Reliance Packaging, LLC, in which, in exchange for Reliance remaining 
in the County, making $3.5 million in capital investments, and hiring 48 new employees 
making no less than the County’s average wage standard, the County will provide 
Reliance with an economic development incentive in an amount not to exceed $27,003.  
The incentive will be spread out over five years and paid in amounts equal to a 
percentage of ad valorem taxes paid by Reliance each year throughout the term of the 
agreement. 
  
The Moore County Board of Commissioners will hold the public hearing on the County’s 
proposed appropriation and expenditure of funds for the agreement with Reliance 
Packaging, LLC, at 5:30PM on Tuesday, August 16, 2016, at a Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Commissioners, in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room, located at the Historic 
Courthouse in Carthage, NC. 
 



“Pinesage” Solar Collector Facility – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

Agenda Item: __________ 
Meeting Date: July 19, 2016   

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning & Transportation Director 
 
DATE:  June 22, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit Request: Solar Collector Facility, 

Commercial (“Pinesage” – NC Hwy 211) 
 
PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST 
Pinesage Solar Farm, LLC is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on approximately 33.48 acres of an overall approximately 53.06 acre 
parcel (ParID 00018479) located north of NC Hwy 211, owned by McDonald Family Farms as 
identified in Moore County tax records. 
 
This case was properly advertised, a public hearing sign was posted on the property, and all 
adjacent property owners were notified. 
 
BACKGROUND 

• The Board of Commissioners continued this request on June 21, 2016 in order to receive 
feedback from the Town of Pinehurst.   

• Adjacent land uses include single family homes, undeveloped property, a church, and the 
Pine Forest Planned Unit Development. 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
Hold the public hearing. 
 
ACTION BY THE PLANNING BOARD 
The Planning Board met on May 5, 2016 and unanimously recommended approval on a 6-0 vote.  
 
REQUIRED FINDINGS OF FACT FOR CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 
In considering a Conditional Use Permit, the following Findings of Fact are required: 
 

1. The use will not materially endanger the public health or safety if located where proposed 
and developed according to plan; 

2. The use meets all required conditions and specifications;  
3. The use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or abutting property unless the 

use is a public necessity; 
4. The location and character of the use, if developed according to the plan as submitted and 

approved, will be in harmony with the area in which it is to be located and will be in 
general conformity with the approved Moore County Land Use Plan.   

 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VI.B.



“Pinesage” Solar Collector Facility – Conditional Use Permit – Staff Report 

The applicant submitted a letter summarizing the findings of fact, which is attached. 
 
APPLICATION REVEW COMMENTS 
The proposed site plan meets all Unified Development Ordinance requirements. In addition to 
the minimum requirements, the applicant has elected to install the Type 3 Screening Buffer along 
the front and side property lines as illustrated on the site plan. Staff also recommends the 
additional condition, as agreed upon by the applicant, that should the Zoning Administrator, 
Building Inspector, Environmental Health, the Fire Marshal, or NCDOT identify minor changes 
staff shall be authorized to accept such minor modifications to site plan as necessary. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
No financial impact to the County’s FY 2016-2017 budget.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends the Moore County Board of Commissioners make the following motion:  
 
Motion: Make a motion to approve/deny the Conditional Use Permit to construct a commercial 
Solar Collector Facility on approximately 33.48 acres of an overall approximately 53.06 acre 
parcel (ParID 00018479) located north of NC Hwy 211, owned by McDonald Family Farms with 
the provided conditions, as proposed.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 

• Land Use Map 
• Conditional Use Permit Application  
• Submitted Site Plan 

 
 



TAYLORTOWN

PINEHURST

NC 211 HWY

Land Use Map

Pineforest PUD

Church

Church

Single family 
homes

Single family 
homes

Single family 
homes

Undeveloped 
(former NCDOT
construction site)

West Pines
Middle School















40' 10
'

229'-3"

363'-11"

40' 10
'

333'-9"

290'-8"

85'-6"

119'

59
'-1

1"

60'-8"

92
0'-

11
"

89
2'-

7"

607'-9"

992'-6"

1173'-6"

97'

60'-8"

119'-6"

60'-8"93'-9"

86'-8"

484'-11"

85'-10"

·

·

·
·
·

40
0'

4.996 MWac PV SYSTEM
PV Array:
Number of PV Modules: 21,360
Peak Power: 6,621,600 Wp DC
Module Tilt: 25°
Module Orientation: South (Az. 180°)
Leased Area: 38 acres

Impervious Surface Analysis:
Impervious surface amount, due to access
road and inverter pad, exceeds no more
than 24% of used land.

Leased Area :     38 Acres
Impervious Area:  3.07 Acres
Percentage impervious land: 8.07%

Project Owner:
Pinesage Solar Farm, LLC
4150 St Johns Pkwy, Ste 1000
Sanford, FL 32771

Site Location:
(35°13'N 79°32'W)

Landscaping Legend:

  Landscape Type #3

ESA MANAGEMENT

SERVICES, PLLC

4150 St. Johns Parkway, Suite 1000
Sanford, FL 32771  USA

407.268.6455 tel  |  800.755.0801 fax
Lic: NC# P-1522

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLANDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE FOR UTILITY ACCESS TO DISTRIBUTION RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
GATE FOR UTILITY ACCESS TO DISTRIBUTION RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS ROAD ON EASEMENT TO NC 211

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED LEASE LINE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AREA WITHIN PROPERTY LINE WILL BE ZONED "RA." AREA OUTSIDE WILL BE ZONED "B-2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' ACCESS ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE ENTRANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCOD IS APRROX 800' FROM NEAREST SOLAR PANEL AT CLOSEST POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
38 ACRES (approx) PROPOSED LEASE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' MINIMUM PV MODULE SETBACK FROM FENCE (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANEL, 310 W POLYCRYSTALLINE  72-CELL MODULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RACKING UNIT, 20 MODULES 2 HIGH, 25 DEGREES TILT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER LINE EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
INVERTER PADS, EACH:  2 x 1.249 MW BONFIGLIOLI INVERTER & PAD MOUNTED TRANSFORMER

AutoCAD SHX Text
GROUND LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' POST EMBEDMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYPICAL LANDSCAPE PLAN TYPE 3  15 evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 evergreen trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 trees and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100 and 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  7 evergreen shrubs per 100 7 evergreen shrubs per 100  evergreen shrubs per 100 evergreen shrubs per 100  shrubs per 100 shrubs per 100  per 100 per 100  100 100 linear feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum feet 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum 20 feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum feet wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  wide. Trees to reach out a minimum wide. Trees to reach out a minimum  Trees to reach out a minimum Trees to reach out a minimum  to reach out a minimum to reach out a minimum  reach out a minimum reach out a minimum  out a minimum out a minimum  a minimum a minimum  minimum minimum height of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to of twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to twelve (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to (12) feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to feet in three (3) years. Shrubs to  in three (3) years. Shrubs to in three (3) years. Shrubs to  three (3) years. Shrubs to three (3) years. Shrubs to  (3) years. Shrubs to (3) years. Shrubs to  years. Shrubs to years. Shrubs to  Shrubs to Shrubs to  to to grow to a height of two (2) feet in two (2) years. Setbacks from property line to the fence will be  from property line to the fence will be from property line to the fence will be  property line to the fence will be property line to the fence will be  line to the fence will be line to the fence will be  to the fence will be to the fence will be  the fence will be the fence will be  fence will be fence will be  will be will be  be be covered with existing vegetation to be used as  with existing vegetation to be used as with existing vegetation to be used as  existing vegetation to be used as existing vegetation to be used as  vegetation to be used as vegetation to be used as  to be used as to be used as  be used as be used as  used as used as  as as existing landscape buffer. Evergreen Tree: Green Giant Arborvitae or similar. Evergreen Bush: Needle Point Holly or similar. Natural landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to  landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to landscaping will be enhanced as necessary to  will be enhanced as necessary to will be enhanced as necessary to  be enhanced as necessary to be enhanced as necessary to  enhanced as necessary to enhanced as necessary to  as necessary to as necessary to  necessary to necessary to  to to ensure it meets type 3 requirements

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT. Top view

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' CHAIN LINK FENCE WITH TOP BARBED WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOLAR PANELS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEEDLE POINT HOLLY OR SIMILAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN TREE, 15 TREES EVERY 100 LINEAR FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EVERGREEN SHRUB , 7 SHRUBS EVERY 100 FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING LAYOUT TYPE 3. Front view (Natural landcaping will be enhanced as necessary to ensure it meets Type 3 requirements)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESS ROAD ON EASEMENT TO NC 211

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY CORRIDOR OVERLAY DISTRICT (HCOD) BOUNDARY LINE. 400' FROM HIGHWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' LANDSCAPE BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
B-2 ZONING

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. C. HWY 211

AutoCAD SHX Text
HCOD IS APRROX 800' FROM NEAREST SOLAR PANEL AT CLOSEST POINT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
G202

AutoCAD SHX Text
1:1250

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" x 36"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING Nº

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDRESS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORMAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHK

AutoCAD SHX Text
APP

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL WARNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/04/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
PINESAGE SOLAR FARM, LLC

AutoCAD SHX Text
7353 NC Hwy 211, West End, NC 27376

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/07/24

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
00

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT DRAWING SHEET SIZE AT FULL SCALE: 36" x 24"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/07/27

AutoCAD SHX Text
01

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJUSTED LAYOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/08/10

AutoCAD SHX Text
02

AutoCAD SHX Text
INTERCONNECTION REQUEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/08/20

AutoCAD SHX Text
03

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/08/25

AutoCAD SHX Text
04

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT (WETLAND DELINEATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/08/27

AutoCAD SHX Text
05

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE DEVELOPMENT II

AutoCAD SHX Text
JL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2015/09/11

AutoCAD SHX Text
06

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEY UPDATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
2016/04/13

AutoCAD SHX Text
09

AutoCAD SHX Text
UPDATED LANDSCAPE AND PRESENTATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
ML

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
DC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1/50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1/200'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND DOCUMENT AND THE IDEAS AND  AND THE IDEAS AND AND THE IDEAS AND  THE IDEAS AND THE IDEAS AND  IDEAS AND IDEAS AND  AND AND DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE INCORPORATED HEREIN ARE  HEREIN ARE HEREIN ARE  ARE ARE THE PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT PROPERTY OF ESA MANAGEMENT  OF ESA MANAGEMENT OF ESA MANAGEMENT  ESA MANAGEMENT ESA MANAGEMENT  MANAGEMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC AS PART OF THE  PLLC AS PART OF THE PLLC AS PART OF THE  AS PART OF THE AS PART OF THE  PART OF THE PART OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL  OF PROFESSIONAL OF PROFESSIONAL  PROFESSIONAL PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  AND CANNOT BE USED, IN AND CANNOT BE USED, IN  CANNOT BE USED, IN CANNOT BE USED, IN  BE USED, IN BE USED, IN  USED, IN USED, IN  IN IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  OR IN PART, FOR OTHER OR IN PART, FOR OTHER  IN PART, FOR OTHER IN PART, FOR OTHER  PART, FOR OTHER PART, FOR OTHER  FOR OTHER FOR OTHER  OTHER OTHER PROJECTS WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT WITHOUT THE EXPLICIT  THE EXPLICIT THE EXPLICIT  EXPLICIT EXPLICIT WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA AUTHORIZATION FROM ESA  FROM ESA FROM ESA  ESA ESA MANAGEMENT SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS SERVICES, PLLC. IT IS  PLLC. IT IS PLLC. IT IS  IT IS IT IS  IS IS UNLAWFUL FOR ANY PERSON TO  FOR ANY PERSON TO FOR ANY PERSON TO  ANY PERSON TO ANY PERSON TO  PERSON TO PERSON TO  TO TO ALTER ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  ANY CONTENTS OF THESE ANY CONTENTS OF THESE  CONTENTS OF THESE CONTENTS OF THESE  OF THESE OF THESE  THESE THESE DRAWINGS UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  UNLESS THEY HAVE THE UNLESS THEY HAVE THE  THEY HAVE THE THEY HAVE THE  HAVE THE HAVE THE  THE THE APPROVAL OF THE LICENSED  OF THE LICENSED OF THE LICENSED  THE LICENSED THE LICENSED  LICENSED LICENSED PROFESSIONAL EXPLICITLY IN WRITING.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEER: NC LIC#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID K. CLICK 041877

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1/150'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE 1/2000'



2016 Urgent Repair Program Acceptance   

 
       Agenda Item: ___________ 
  Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 

 
MEMORANDUM TO THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 
   Planning Director  
 
DATE:  June 8, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Acceptance of the $100,000 Urgent Repair Program offered by the North Carolina 

Housing Finance Agency, approve Budget Amendment and execution of documents 
to implement this grant. 

 
PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 
 
REQUEST: 
This is a request to accept the $100,000 Urgent Repair Program, approve Budget Amendment; and adopt the 
Procurement Policy and Assistance Policy as required under the terms of the grant. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The County’s 2016 Urgent Repair Program is designed to eliminate threats to the health and human safety of at 
least 13 qualifying resident homeowners. 
 
The County administered this same program in 2010, 2012, 2013, and is currently within the 2015 version.  To 
date 54 qualified low income homes with 120 residents were served and of the applicants served in these four 
program years, 88% were disabled and 83% were over the age of 62.  Work performed under the 2010, 2012, 
2013 and 2015 versions of this program included new and patched roofs, handicap ramps, creating handicapped 
accessible bathrooms, floor repair, new heating and cooling units and repairs to plumbing and electrical 
systems. 
 
Grant requirements include a “Post Approval Documentation” packet consisting of a Procurement Policy and 
Assistance Policy. The county attorney’s office has reviewed and approved both policies.  Once NCHFA has 
accepted these Policies it will convey the final grant funding agreement to the County Manager for signature. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Follow guidelines for action by deadlines set forth in Assistance Policy. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
$5,000 in matching funds committed toward this grant. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make motion to accept the $100,000 Urgent Repair Program offered to Moore County through the North 
Carolina Housing Finance Agency. Make a motion to approve the Budget Amendment; and, allow the 
Chairman to execute the attached Procurement Policy, Assistance Policy, Budget Amendment and any other 
subsequent documents related to the implementation of the Urgent Repair Program grant.   
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Procurement Policy, Assistance Policy, Budget Amendment, and Post Approval Documentation 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.A.







 

 1 

MOORE COUNTY 

ASSISTANCE POLICY 

For the 2016 Cycle of the  

Urgent Repair Program 

 
What is the Urgent Repair Program?  Moore County has received funding from the 
North Carolina Housing Finance Agency (“NCHFA”) in the amount of $100,000 under 
the 2016 cycle of the Urgent Repair Program (“URP16”).  This program provides funds 
to 1) alleviate housing conditions which pose an imminent threat to the life or safety of 
very low-income homeowners defined on page two with special needs; and/or 2) to 
provide accessibility modifications and other repairs necessary to prevent the imminent 
displacement of very low to low-income homeowners defined on page two with special 
accessibility needs, such as frail elderly and persons with disabilities.  According to the 
URP16 Program Guidelines we may spend up to $8,000 of URP16 funds – depending 
upon need - for each household served.  The number of households that will be served 
will depend upon the amount of funds spent on each unit.  However, a minimum of 13 
households will be assisted under URP16.   
 

The Urgent Repair Program objectives are: 
 
1) To assist very low to low-income homeowners with special needs (elderly 

> 62 years of age, handicapped or disabled, single parent, large households 
(five or more), or households with children who have elevated blood lead 
levels (between 5µg/dl and 20µg/dl), or a military veteran; 

2) To serve households with urgent repair needs which cannot be met 
through other state- or federally-funded housing assistance programs; and, 

3) To enable frail elderly homeowners, and others with physical disabilities 
to remain in their homes by providing essential accessibility 
modifications. 

 
This URP16 Assistance Policy describes: 1) who is eligible to apply for assistance, 2) 
how applications for assistance will be prioritized, 3) the form of assistance, and 4) how 
the repair/modification process will be managed.  The County has designed this URP16 
project to be fair, open and consistent with the County’s approved application for funding 
and with NCHFA’s URP Program Guidelines. 
 
Who is eligible to apply?  There are four major requirements to be eligible for URP16 
assistance.   
 

 First, the homeowner’s household income must not exceed 50% of the area 
median income for the household size (See URP16 Income Limits for Moore 

County below) 
 Secondly, the applicant must own and occupy the house, current on all property 

taxes, or have life estate rights and it must be located within the County limits of 
Moore County.  



 

 2 

• Third, the household must qualify as having a special need (e.g. household 
members must be at least 62 years old, handicapped, disabled, or a single parent 
with a dependent living at home, or a person who is a military veteran.) Or, the 
household must have five or more permanent residents, a child below the age of 
six with an elevated blood lead level of between 5µg/dl and 20µg/dl, or a family 
member other than the head of the household that is either 62 years old or has a 
disability.    

• Fourth, the house must have urgent repair needs that cannot be met through other 
state or federally-funded housing assistance programs. 

 
Duplexes and triplexes and the like are not eligible for assistance with this 
program. 

 
 

URP16 Income Limits for Moore County 
Number in 
Household 

30% of Median 
(very-low income) 

50% of Median 
(low income) 

1 $12,800 $21,300 
2 $14,600 $24,350 
3 $16,450 $27,400 
4 $18,250 $30,400 
5 $19,750 $32,850 
6 $21,200 $35,300 
7 $22,650 $37,700 
8 $24,100 $40,150 

 
 

Selection of Applicants:  The County has devised the following priority system to rank 
eligible applicants, determine which of them will be selected for assistance and in what 
order.  Under this system applicants will receive points for falling into certain categories 
of special need and income.  The applications will be ranked according to which receive 
the most points.   
 
However, URP16 Program Guidelines require that at least 50% of the applicants served 
must have household incomes at or below 30% of the County median income limits for 
the household size. (see URP16 Income Limits for Moore County above).   
 

Priority Ranking System for Moore County’s 
2015 Urgent Repair Program 

Special Needs (for definitions, see below) Points 
Disabled Household Member  8 
Elderly Household member (62 or older)  6 
Single-Parent Household (with one or more children in home) 4 
Large Family (5 or more permanent residents) 6 
Elevated Blood Lead Level Child 1 
Military Veteran 5 



 

 3 

Never Been Served by Moore County 10 
Income (See Income Table above) Points 
Less than 30% of County Median Income 9 
30% to 50% of County Median Income 3 
 
**NOTE**  If the household has more than one special need as outlined above then that 
applicant will receive the allotted points for all applicable categories (e.g. If a household 
has an elderly household member who is also disabled and has more than 5 permanent 
residents, that applicant would receive 20 priority points.) 
 
The reason for rating applications is to ensure that all recipients of assistance are selected 
by a fair and open process.  Also, all recipients of assistance will be chosen without 
regard to race, creed, sex, color, religion, familial status, or national origin. 
 
Definitions regarding Special Needs’ populations under URP16 are: 
 

• Elderly:  An individual aged 62 or older. 
• Disabled:  A person who has a physical, mental or developmental disability that 

greatly limits one or more major life activities, has a record of such impairment, 
or is regarded as having such impairment. 

• Single-Parent Household:  A household in which one and only one adult resides 
with one or more dependent children. 

• Disabled or elderly household member (not head of household):  A household that 
has a household member - that is not the head of the household - who is either 
elderly or disabled according to the definitions above. 

• Large Family:  A large family household is composed of five or more individuals, 
where at least four are immediate family members. 

• Elevated blood lead level child:  A child below the age of six that has been tested 
and determined to have an elevated blood lead level between 5µg/dl and 20µg/dl. 

• Head of Household:  The person or persons who own(s) the house. 
• Household Member:  Any individual who is an occupant (defined below) of the 

unit to be rehabilitated shall be considered a “household member” (the number of 
household members will be used to determine household size and all household 
members - 18 years old or older - are subject to income verification. 

• Occupant:  An occupant is defined as an immediate family member (mother, 
father, spouse, son/daughter of the head of the household, regardless of the time 
of occupancy); or non-immediate family member who has resided in the dwelling 
at least 3 months prior to the submission of the family’s application. 

• Military Veteran:  One who served in the active military, naval, or air service (e.g. 
Army, Navy, Air Force, Marine Corps, and Coast Guard; as a commissioned 
officer of the Public Health Service; or as a commissioned officer of the National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration or its predecessors), and who was 
discharged or released there from under conditions other than dishonorable. 

 
Form o f a ssistance u nder URP16?  Moore County - through the North Carolina 
Housing Finance Agency - will provide assistance to homeowners, whose homes are 



 

 4 

selected for repair/modification in the form of a loan.  Homeowners will receive an 
unsecured deferred, interest-free loan, forgiven a rate of $1,000 per year, until the 
principal balance is reduced to zero. 
 
What is the amount of the loan?  The amount of the loan will vary from one applicant 
to another and will depend on the scope of work necessary to address the identified 
imminent threats to life and/or safety - and that will be determined by the County’s 
Community Development Staff and ultimately the bids received from the contractors that 
will do the work.  There is no minimum to the amount of the loan; however the maximum 
life-time limit according to the guidelines of the UPR16 program is $8,000.  
 
What ki nds o f work w ill be  do ne?  Each house selected for assistance will be 
repaired/modified to: 1) address imminent threats to the life and/or safety of the 
occupants of the dwelling unit; and/or 2) to make required accessibility modifications.  In 
all cases these repairs/modifications will be determined by the County’s Community 
Development Staff and disclosed to the homeowner prior to beginning the work. 
 
All repairs completed under URP16 will meet all applicable NC Residential Building 
Codes.   
 
Please note that the Urgent Repair Program cannot address all the deficiencies with 
any house.  The program is designed and limited to addressing only those determined 
to be the most immediate or urgent needs. 
 
What about Lead-Based Paint?  If your house was built before 1978, there is a good 
possibility that your home has lead-based paint.  Lead is an extreme health hazard for 
children under 6 years old.  If there is a child with an elevated blood lead level between 
5µg/dl and 20µg/dl occupying your residence, URP16 funds can assist to eliminate  
hazard reduction activities such as removing lead containing mini-blinds or replacing 
doors or windows that have a high concentration of lead-based paint.  Since the costs of 
lead hazard reduction and/or lead-based paint abatement can easily exceed the program 
maximum cost per unit of $8,000; it is highly unlikely that URP16 funds will be 
sufficient in addressing all the needs of a unit with an at-risk child.  For that reason, the 
County’s Project Administrator for URP16 will defer work on any unit whose lead-
hazard reduction costs exceed the Program maximum of $8,000/unit until it can be 
addressed under one of the county’s comprehensive housing rehabilitation project grants. 
 
Who will do the work on the homes?  The County is obligated under URP16 to ensure 
that quality work is done at reasonable prices and that all work is contracted through a 
fair, open and competitive process.  To meet these very difficult requirements, the County 
will conduct a bid which will allow qualified vendors to provide quotes, bids or proposals 
for the product or services needed.  Every reasonable effort will be made to receive at 
least three quotes, bids or proposals. 
 
All bidding contractors must (1) fill out an application form, listing several references 
and recent jobs completed, and (2) are required to present proof of liability insurance and, 



 

 5 

if required, workers compensation insurance.  (Homeowners who know quality 
rehabilitation contractors that have not been invited to bid are welcome to invite them to 
attend the public bid.) 
 
A minimum of three contractors will be invited to bid on each job (unless the repair is of 
an urgent nature and cannot be delayed, then the first available contractor that can 
successfully and expediently make the repair will be used).  When bids are received the 
award standard will be the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, taking into 
consideration quality, performance, and the time specified in the bids for the performance 
of the contract.  “Responsive and responsible” means the contractor, 1) that returned an 
eligible bid by the pre-designated bid due date, 2) who is deemed able to complete the 
work in a timely manner, and 3) whose bid is within 20% (in either direction) of the 
County’s cost estimate, 4) there is no conflict of interest (real or apparent). 
 
What a re t he s teps i n t he p rocess, f rom a pplication t o co mpletion?  Now that you 
have the information about how to qualify for Moore County’s 2016 Urgent Repair 
Program, you may be wondering, “What work can be done?” and “Who will do it?” 
 
The following is a list of the major steps in the process:  
 

1. Completing a n A pplication F orm:  Homeowners who wish to apply for 
assistance must do so by 4:30 pm on September 9, 2016.  Apply by contacting the 
County‘s Planning & Community Development Department at (910) 947-5010.     
If you have applied for housing assistance through the County in the past, a new 
application is required, as different programs have different application 
requirements. 

2. Application R ank a nd R ating:  Applications will be rated and ranked by the 
County based on the Priority Ranking System as listed on page 2.  The 
households to be offered assistance will be selected by November 1, 2016.  
Household income will be verified for program purposes only; all income 
information required by HUD and NCHFA will be kept confidential.  If income 
verification is not received from all applicants and household members over 18 
years old by January 13, 2017, that household will be ineligible for assistance.  
From this review, the thirteen (13) most qualified applicants will be selected, 
along with fifteen (15) alternates. 

3. Preliminary Assessment:  The County’s Community Development Staff will 
visit the homes of potential recipients to determine the need and feasibility of the 
home for rehabilitation. 

4. Applicant I nformation:  Approved applicants will be provided detailed 
information on assistance, lead hazards, program rehabilitation standards, 
contracting procedures, the rehabilitation process, the loan documents and 
conditions.  Applicants are encouraged to consult with family members and their 
legal advisors in order to determine the best course of action for them. 

5. Work Wr ite-up:  The County’s Community Development Staff will visit the 
home again for a more thorough inspection.  All parts of the home must be made 
accessible for inspection, including the attic and crawlspace.  The County can 



 

 6 

refuse to serve a home that has not made portions of the home available for 
inspection.  The owner should report any known problems such as electrical short 
circuits, blinking lights, roof leaks, etc.  Community Development Staff will 
prepare a complete and detailed work specification (known as the “work write-
up”).  A final cost estimate will be prepared by Community Development Staff 
and held in confidence until bidding is complete, and award of contract. 

6. Formal agr eement:  After approval of the work write-up, the homeowner will 
sign a Promissory Note that will explain and govern the rehabilitation process.  
This agreement will define the roles of the parties involved throughout the 
rehabilitation process.  Community Development Staff will present the 
homeowner with a copy of the work write-up and read it to them.  The 
homeowner will sign an acknowledgement of receipt of the work write-up. 

7. Bidding:  The work write-up and required list of bid documents will be provided 
to all contractors whom attend the public pre-bid meeting.  Inspections of the 
property will occur on the day of the pre-bid meetings.  Contractors will then have 
at least a week to prepare bid proposals and complete bid documents before 
submitting to the county.  Each contractor will need access to all parts of the 
house in order to prepare a bid.  A non public bid opening will be conducted at the 
County Offices at a specified date and time.  All bidders and the homeowner will 
be made aware of the bid award upon request once a contract has been signed by 
all parties. 

8. Contractor selection: Within four weeks of the bid opening after review of bid 
breakdown and timing factors, a contract for work will be prepared and executed 
by the contractor, homeowner and the County.  This executed contract shall serve 
as the bid award.  Upon bid award, all bidders and the homeowners will be 
notified of (1) the selection, (2) the amount, and (3) if other than the lowest bidder 
is selected, of the specific reason(s) for the selection.   

9. Loan Agreement a nd C ontract E xecution:  Loan agreement and contract 
documents will bind all parties and make the project official.  The Rehabilitation 
contract will be between the contractor and the homeowner, with the County 
signing as an interested third party.  The loan agreement documents will be 
executed at the same time as the contract and will be between the owner and 
Moore County. 

10. Pre-construction co nference:  A pre-construction conference will be held 
between the contractor and program representative to discuss the details of the 
work to be done.   Homeowner will be consulted on Notice to Proceed dates that 
work best for them.  Starting and ending dates will be agreed upon, along with 
any special arrangements such as weekend or evening work hours and disposition 
of items to be removed from the home (such as old cabinets, old appliances, etc.)  
at the pre-construction conference, the County will issue a “Notice to Proceed” 
formally instructing the contractor to commence by the agreed-upon date. 

11. Construction:  If appropriate, the contractor will be responsible for obtaining a 
zoning and building permit for the project before beginning work.  The permit 
must be posted at the house during the entire period of construction.  Program 
staff will closely monitor the contractor during the construction period to make 
sure that the work is being done according to the work write-up (which is made a 



 

 7 

part of the rehabilitation contract by reference) and in a timely fashion.  Moore 
County Building Inspectors or local jurisdiction Building Inspectors will inspect 
rehab work for compliance with the State Building Code.  The homeowner will be 
responsible for working with the contractor to protect personal property by 
clearing work areas as much as possible. 

12. Change orders:  All change orders to the scope of work must be approved by the 
all parties of the contract and at least two representatives of Moore County, and 
reduced to writing as a contract amendment (“change order”).  If the changes 
require an adjustment in the loan agreement amount, that amount must be 
specified in the change order. 

13. Closeout:  When the contractor declares the work complete, program staff and 
building inspectors (as necessary) will thoroughly inspect the work.  If 
deficiencies are observed, the contractor will be required to correct them.  When 
the Community Development Staff and the homeowner are satisfied that the 
contract has been fulfilled, each will sign off and, after receipt of the contractor’s 
invoice, the final payment will be ordered.  The contractor will submit all lien 
releases prior to the release of the final payment. All material and workmanship 
will be guaranteed for a one-year period after the date of project completion. 

14. Post-construction co nference:  Following construction, Community 
Development Staff will meet with the homeowner to review operation and general 
maintenance of the home with the homeowner.  The homeowner will have the 
opportunity to ask any final questions about work and will be asked to complete a 
survey about homeowner satisfaction with the work performed. 

15. Payment:  The contractor is entitled to request one payment at the completion of 
the contracted work.  When a payment is requested, Community Development 
Staff will inspect the work within five business days.  If all items are deemed 
100% complete a payment will be issued for the entire contract amount within 
thirty (30) days of the inspection.  Note that contractors must provide Community 
Development Staff with all owners’ manuals and warranties on equipment before 
payment can be made.  IMPORTANT:  The homeowner will not be responsible 
for making payments to the contractor during the repair/modification process. 

16. The warranty period:  It is extremely important that any problems with the work 
that was performed be reported to Community Development Staff as soon as 
possible.  All bona fide defects in materials and workmanship reported within one 
year of completion of construction will be corrected at no charge to the 
homeowner. 

 
What are the key dates?  If after reading this document you feel that you qualify for this 
program and wish to apply, please keep the following dates in mind: 

• Applications available to the public starting August 1, 2016. 
• Applications must be turned in at Moore County’s Planning Department by 

4:30 pm on September 9, 2016. 
• Households informed of selection status by November 1, 2016. 
• Income documents due by January 13, 2017. 
• All repair/modification work must be under contract by September 29, 2017. 
• All repair/modification work must be completed by October 31, 2017. 



 

 8 

 
How do I request an application?  In person, or over the phone, contact: 
 

Moore County Planning Department 
 PO Box 905 

1048 Carriage Oaks Drive 
Carthage, NC 28327  
910-947-5010 

 
 
Is there a  procedure for dealing with complaints, disputes and appeals?  Although 
the application process and repair/modification guidelines are meant to be as fair as 
possible, Moore County realizes that there is still a chance that some applicants or 
participants may feel that they are not treated fairly.  The following procedures are 
designed to provide an avenue for resolution of complaints and appeals. 
 
During the application process: 
 

1. If an applicant feels that his or her application was not fairly reviewed or 
rated and would like to appeal the decision made about it, he or she should 
contact the Project Administrator and voice their concern within five days 
of the date on their letter notifying them of their status under the program 
If the applicant remains dissatisfied with the decision, the detailed 
complaint must be put into writing. 

2. A written appeal by the applicant must be made within 10 business days of 
the initial decision on an application. 

3. Moore County will respond in writing to any complaints or appeals within 
10 business days of receiving written complaints. 

 
During the rehabilitation process: 
 

1. If the homeowner feels that construction is not being completed according 
to the contract, he/she must inform the contractor and the Community 
Development Staff. 

2. Community Development Staff will inspect the work in question.  If 
he/she finds that the work is not being completed according to the 
contract, Community Development Staff will review the contract and the 
work write-up with the contractor and ask the contractor to remedy the 
problem. 

3. If problems persist, a mediation conference between the homeowner and 
the contractor may be convened by the Community Development Staff 
and facilitated by the Project Administrator. 

4. Should the mediation conference fail to resolve the dispute, the Project 
Administrator will render a written final decision. 

5. If the Community Development Staff finds that the work is being 
completed according to the contract, the complaint will be noted and the 



 

 9 

Community Development Staff and the homeowner will discuss the 
concerns and the reason for the Community Development Staff decision. 

 
IMPORTANT N OTE:  Do not hesitate to contact the County’s Community 
Development Staff at any time during the process, but please keep in mind that the work 
involved WILL CAUSE SOME INCONVENIENCE AT TIMES DURING THE 
REPAIR/MODIFICATION.  Repair/modification work in general can be quite stressful.  
We ask that all recipients of assistance be patient with the workers and any delays that 
may occur.   
 
Will the personal information provided remain confidential?  Yes.  All information in 
applicant files will remain confidential.  Access to the information will be provided only 
to County employees directly involved in the Project, the North Carolina Housing 
Finance Agency and auditors. 
 
What about conflicts of interest?  No officer, employee or other public official of the 
County, member of the County Board of Commissioner, or entity contracting with the 
County, who exercises any functions or responsibilities with respect to the URP16 shall 
have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract for work to be 
performed with project funding, either for themselves or those with whom they have 
family or business ties, during their tenure or for one year thereafter.  Relatives of these 
County employees, Board of Commissioner members and others closely identified with 
the County may be approved for rehabilitation assistance only upon public disclosure 
before the Board of Commissioners and written permission from NCHFA. 
 
What about favoritism?  All activities under the URP16, including rating and ranking 
applications, inviting bids, selecting contractors and resolving disputes, will be conducted 
in a fair, open and non-discriminatory manner, entirely without regard to race, creed, sex, 
color, national origin, familial status, or religion. 
 
Will the program be advertised?  Yes.  The program will be advertised County-wide by 
press release, newsletters, letters to the 500+ persons on the Community Development 
mailing list, and emails to service providers countywide.  Referrals will be encouraged 
from social service agencies, health care providers and county agencies. 
 
Referrals and Client Relations?   The County makes Moore County service providers 
aware of housing rehab opportunities and responds to their clientele and questions.  
Moore County’s Community Development office also works to inform those in need of 
housing rehab programs outside of county government and also refer clients to other non-
housing services.  Most applicants will have already been screened for other social and 
physical needs and referred to service agencies. 
 
Each of the following Agencies will be notified of this Project: 
 

• Moore County Department of Social Services 
• Moore County Health Department 



 

 10 

• Moore County Senior Enrichment Center 
• Moore County Council on Aging 
• Local Municipalities within the County 
• Weatherization Program (WAP) 
• Meals on Wheels 
• Moore County Transportation Services 
• Veteran’s Administration 
• Habitat for Humanity 
• Independent Living  
• American Red Cross 
• ARC of Moore 
• Legal Aid of NC 
• Northern Moore Family Resource Center 
• Salvation Army 
• Coalition for Human Care 

 
In the event that a client has not already been made aware of other potential benefits that 
he/she may be eligible to receive the Project’s Client Counselor will make verbal 
referrals as needed and provided printed materials to clients detailing available services. 
 
Who c an I  c ontact ab out t his program?  Any questions regarding any part of this 
application or program should be addressed to: 
 
Moore County Planning & Community Development 

 
Carlis P. Sweat   Stephanie Cormack 
PO Box 905    PO Box 905 
1048 Carriage Oaks Dr.  1048 Carriage Oaks Dr. 
Carthage, NC 28327   Carthage, NC 28327 
(910) 947-5010   (910) 947-5010 
  
  
This Assistance Policy is adopted this 19th day of July, 2016 
 
 
________________________________ 
Nick Picerno 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners 
Moore County 
 
________________________ 
Laura Williams 
Clerk to the Board 



Moore County 
Procurement and Disbursement Policy 

2016 URGENT REPAIR PROGRAM 
 
PROCUREMENT POLICY 

 
1.   To the maximum extent practical, Moore County (the County) promotes a fair, open and 

competitive procurement process as required under the North Carolina Housing Finance 
Agency’s Urgent Repair Program (URP).  The County will conduct a public bid which will 
allow qualified vendors to provide quotes, bids or proposals for the product or services 
needed.  Every reasonable effort will be made to receive at least three quotes, bids or 
proposals.   

 
2.   At least three contractors shall be invited to bid on each job and award standard will be 

the lowest responsible, responsive bidder, taking into consideration quality, performance, 
and the time specified in the bids for the performance of the contract.  “Responsive  and  
responsible”  means  (a)  the  contractor  is deemed able to complete the work in a timely 
fashion, (b) the bid is within 20%, in either direction, of the County’s cost estimate, and 
(c) there is no conflict of interest (real or apparent). 

 
3.   Although bid packages may be bundled for multiple job sites, the bids for multiple job 

sites shall be considered separate and apart when awarded and shall be awarded to the 
lowest responsive and responsible bidder(s) for each job site. 

 
4.   Bid packages shall consist of an invitation to bid, work write up(s) and bid sheet(s) for 

each job. 
 
5.   Bids must include a cost-per-item breakdown with line item totals equaling the submitted 

bid price. Discrepancies must be reconciled prior to a contract being awarded. 
 
6.   Any change to the original scope of work must be reduced to writing in the form of a 

change order to be agreed upon and signed by all parties to the original contract and two 
representatives of the County.  The change order must also detail any changes to the 
original contract price. 

 
7.  No work may begin prior to a contract being awarded and a written “Notice to Proceed” 

provided to the contractor.   In addition, a pre-construction conference shall be held at 
prior to commencement of repair work. 

 
8. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids at any time during the 

procurement process. 
 
9.  In the event of a true emergency situation, the County reserves the right to waive 

normal procurement procedures in favor of more expedient methods, which may include   
seeking telephone quotes, faxed bids and the like.  Should such methods ever become 
necessary the transaction will be fully documented by noting all parties spoken to, creating 
a bid tab sheet and indicating the needed work within a service contract. 

 
10. A non public bid opening will be conducted at the County Offices at a specified date and           

time.  All bidders and the homeowner will be made aware of the bid award once a contract 
has been signed by all parties. 



DISBURSEMENT POLICY 
 

1.   All repair work must be inspected by: (a) the County’s Community Development Staff, 
and (b) the homeowner, prior to any payment to the contractor.  If all work is deemed 
satisfactory and all other factors and written agreements are in order, payment shall be 
issued upon presentation of final invoice provided to the contractor, generated by Moore 
County.  *Note that contractors must provide Community Development Staff with all 
owners’ manuals, warranties on equipment and an executed Release of Liens before 
payment can be made.  Contractor should allow 30 days for processing of the invoice for 
payment. 

 
2.   If any of the work is deemed unsatisfactory or does not meet building code, it must be 

corrected prior to authorization of payment.  If the contractor fails to correct the work to 
the satisfaction of the County’s Community Development Staff or local Building 
Inspector, payment may be withheld until such time the work is satisfactory.    
(Contractors may follow the County’s Urgent Repair Program Assistance Policy if a 
dispute occurs; however, contractors shall abide by the final decision as stated in the 
policy). 

 
3.   The County assures, through this policy, that adequate funds shall be available to pay 

the contractor for satisfactory work. 
 

4.   All  contractors,  sub-contractors  and  suppliers  must  sign  a  lien  waiver  prior  to 
disbursement of final payment. 

 
The Procurement and Disbursement Policies are adopted this the 19th day of July, 2016. 

 
 

 
Moore County 

 
BY:    

  Nick Picerno, Chairman 
  Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
 

ATTEST:    
  Laura Williams, Clerk 
  Moore County Board of Commissioners 





  Agenda Item:         

         Meeting Date:  July 19, 2016 
 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning & Transportation Director   

 
DATE:  July 1, 2016   

 
SUBJECT:  Interlocal Agreement Building Inspection Services Mutual Aid Agreement

   Town of Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines & Village of Pinehurst 

 

PRESENTER: Debra Ensminger 

 
REQUEST: 

A request to approve the interlocal agreement building inspection services mutual aid agreements by 
and between the County of Moore and the Town Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines & Village of 
Pinehurst 
 

BACKGROUND: 

During the Board of Commissioners 2016 Winter Retreat staff presented to the Board the need of 
having a backup plan in place regarding building inspection services with the municipalities who 
provide this service in the event one of us needed assistance due to staff shortages. Staff reached out 
to the Town of Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines & the Village of Pinehurst to consider the 
adoption of an interlocal agreement for building inspection services.  The Towns of Aberdeen, 
Southern Pines & Village of Pinehurst without hesitation agreed.   
 
The agreement has been adopted and approved by each respective board. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

Mutual Aid Agreement will be effective upon approval and adoption by the Board of Commissioners. 
 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

Funding allotment within the Planning Department FY 16-17 budget  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Make a motion to approve to the Interlocal Agreement for Building Inspection Services A Mutual 
Aid Agreement with the Town of Aberdeen, Town of Southern Pines and the Village of Pinehurst; 
and authorize the Chairman to sign. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

Interlocal Agreements Building Inspection Services a Mutual Aid Agreement (Town of Aberdeen, 
Town of Southern Pines & Village of Pinehurst) 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.B.



























  Agenda Item:         

         Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning and Transportation Director 

 
DATE:  July 8, 2016   

 
SUBJECT: Request for approval of the grant agreement for the FY16-17 Community 

Transportation Program 

 

PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 

    

 
 

REQUEST: 

Request for approval of the grant agreement for the FY16-17 Community Transportation Program. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

On October 20, 2015 the Moore County Board of Commissioners held a public hearing to solicit 
public input and ask for approval to submit all documents related to the Community Transportation 
Program 5311.  
 
Moore County Transportation Services submitted all required documentation and received grant 
approval by the Board of Transportation on March 3, 2016. 
 
The FY16-17 Community Transportation Program total project amount is $310,233 with $246,333 
representing administrative funding and $63,900 representing capital funding. The capital funding is 
a reduction of $62,850 due to one van being replaced instead of two. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

Following approval of the grant agreement staff will submit all required documentation through the 
fiscal year as noted in the agreement. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

The Community Transportation Program requires a 15% match on administrative expenditures 
($36,951) and a 10% match on capital expenditures ($6,390). These matching funds are covered 
through the revenue received through user fees. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Make a motion to approve the grant agreement for the FY16-17 Community Transportation Program. 
 

SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

Grant agreement for FY16-17 Community Transportation Program  

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.C.



 

 
State of North Carolina | Department of Transportation | Public Transportation Division 

1 South Wilmington Street, Room 542 | 1550 Mail Service Center | Raleigh, NC 27699-1550 
919 707 4670 T 

 

June 10, 2016 
 
Mr. Nick Picerno, Chairperson 
Moore County 
P.O. Box 905 
Carthage, North Carolina 28327-0905 
 
RE:  FY17 Community Transportation Program (Section 5311) 
Project No.  17-CT-062 
WBS Element No(s).   
Agreement No.(s)  TBD 
Period of Performance:  7/1/16 – 6/30/17 
 
Dear Mr. Picerno: 
 

On March 3, 2016, the Board of Transportation approved your organization’s request for 
a FY17 Community Transportation Program (Section 5311) grant in the amount of $ 266,892.  
The agreement to be executed between Moore County and NCDOT is enclosed.  The individual 
authorized to enter into this agreement for the financial assistance on behalf of your agency will 
sign the agreement.  Please provide a copy of the agreement to all parties that will be involved in 
the administration of the grant, and request that the agreement be reviewed carefully.  Instructions 
for completion of the grant agreement process are enclosed.  

 
Please refer to Section 7d of the grant agreement that requires sub-recipients to submit 

monthly or quarterly requests for reimbursement.  
 
If you have any question related to the grant agreement, please contact Myra Freeman, 

Financial Manager at 919-707-4672 or your assigned Accounting Specialist.  In any 
correspondence, please reference your assigned project number, WBS element, Agreement 
number and period of performance referenced on this letter. 
 
 Sincerely,      

  
 Debbie Collins  
 Director 
 
DC\mf 
Attachments  
 
Cc: Tawanna Williams,  Transportation Manager 

 



Updated 05/27/2015 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA NONURBANIZED AREA 
COUNTY OF WAKE PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

 GRANT AGREEMENT FOR 
 PUBLIC BODY ORGANIZATIONS 

NORTH CAROLINA COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM – SECTION 5311 

  
and CFDA NUMBER: 20.509 

  
MOORE COUNTY PROJECT NUMBER: 17-CT-062 

  

************************************************************************************************************* 
 THIS AGREEMENT made this the       day of              , 20   , (hereinafter referred to as 
AGREEMENT) by and between the NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(hereinafter referred to as "Department", an agency of the State of North Carolina) and MOORE 
COUNTY, (acting in its capacity as the designated Section 5311 recipient hereinafter referred to as the 
"Contractor"). 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 53 of 49 U.S.C. app 5311 et seq. (formerly Section 18 program) provides 
federal administrative, operating, and capital assistance for public transportation in rural and small 
urban areas by way of a formula grant program to be administered by the State; and 
 WHEREAS, the purpose of 49 U.S.C. 5311 is to enhance access of people in nonurbanized 
areas for purposes such as health care, shopping, education, recreation, public services, and 
employment by encouraging the maintenance, development, improvement, and use of public 
passenger transportation systems; and 
 WHEREAS, the Contractor has been designated as the recipient of 49 U.S.C. 5311 funds, and 
 WHEREAS, Article 2B of Chapter 136 of the North Carolina General Statutes (N.C.G.S.) 
designated the Department of Transportation as the agency of the State of North Carolina responsible 
for administering all Federal and/or State programs relating to public transportation, and granted the 
Department authority to do all things required under applicable Federal and/or State legislation to 
properly administer the public transportation within the State of North Carolina; and 
 WHEREAS, the Governor of North Carolina, in accordance with Section 5311 of the Safe, 
Accountable, Flexible, and Efficient Transportation Equity Act - A Legacy for Users (SAFETEA-LU), 
Public Law 109-59, August 10, 2005, and the Transportation Equity Act for the 21st Century (TEA-21), 
Public Law 105-178, June 1998, as amended, has designated the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation as the agency to receive and administer Federal funds under this program; and 
 WHEREAS, in order to assist in providing transportation services, the Department, under the 
terms of this Agreement shall make grants of administrative, operating and capital assistance to the 
Contractor; and 
 WHEREAS, the Department and the Contractor desire to secure and utilize Section 5311 grant 
funds and State funds for the above referenced purposes. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein set forth, the Department 
and the Contractor agree as follows: 
 Section 1.  Purpose of Agreement.  The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the 
undertaking of nonurbanized area public transportation services as described in the project application 
(hereinafter referred to as "Project") properly prepared, endorsed, approved, and transmitted by the 
Contractor to the Department, and to state the terms and conditions as to the manner in which the 
Project will be undertaken and completed. 
 Section 2. Project Implementation. The Contractor shall carry out the Project as follows: 

a. Scope of Project   Moore County (operating as Moore County Transportation) 
will use administrative funds for providing community transportation services 
to human service agencies and to the general public. They will use capital 
funds to replace one vehicle that has met useful life with one lift equipped 



05/27/2015  Page 2 of 35 

high-top vehicle. They will also purchase and replace a repeater station that 
has met useful life. 

b. The Contractor shall undertake and complete the nonurbanized area public 
transportation services in accordance with the procedures and guidelines set forth in 
the following documents: 
(1) Federal Transit Administration (hereinafter referred to as "FTA")  
 Circular 9040.1F, dated April 1, 2007 at: 

   (www.fta.dot.gov/laws/leg_reg_circulars_guidance.html); 
(2) FTA Master Agreement, FTA MA (21), October 1, 2014 
  at (www.fta.dot.gov/documents/16-Master.pdf); 
(3) The State Management Plan for Federal and State Transportation  
 Programs (hereinafter referred to as "State Management Plan");and 
(4) The Section 5311 grant application for financial assistance. 

The aforementioned documents, and any subsequent amendments or revisions thereto, are herewith 
incorporated by reference, and are on file with and approved by the Department in accordance with the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. Nothing shall be construed under the terms of this Agreement 
by the Department or the Contractor that shall cause any conflict with Department, State, or Federal 
statutes, rules, or regulations. 
Section 3:  Cost of Project/Project Budget. The total cost of the Project approved by the Department 
is THREE HUNDRED TEN THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED THIRTY-THREE DOLLARS ($310,233) as 
set forth in the Project Description and Budget, incorporated into this Agreement as Attachment A.  The 
Department shall provide, from Federal and State funds, the percentages of the actual net cost of the 
Project as indicated below, not in excess of the identified amounts for eligible administrative, operating, 
and capital expenses. The Contractor hereby agrees that it will provide the percentages of the actual 
net cost of the Project, as indicated below, and any amounts in excess of the Department’s maximum 
(Federal plus State shares).  The net cost is the price paid minus any refunds, rebates, or other items of 
value received by the Contractor which have the effect of reducing the actual cost.  
 

Administration 
WBS 

Administration 
Total  

Administration  
Federal (80%) 

Administration 
State (5%) 

Administration 
Local (15%) 

36233.74.17.1 $246,333 $197,066 $12,316 $36,951 
Agreement                            
Capital 
WBS 

Capital  
Total 

Capital  
Federal (80%) 

Capital  
State (10%) 

Capital  
Local (10%) 

36233.74.17.3 $63,900 $51,120 $6,390 $6,390 
Agreement     
Project  
Total 

Project  
Total 

Project  
Total Federal  

Project  
Total State 

Project  
Total Local  

 $310,233 $248,186 $18,706 $43,341 
   
Section 4:   Period of Performance.  This Agreement shall commence upon the date of execution, 
unless specific written authorization from the Department to the contrary is received. The period of 
performance for all expenditures shall extend from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017, unless written 
authorization to the contrary is provided by the Department.  Any requests to change the Period of 
Performance must be made in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the 
Department or FTA.  The Contractor shall commence, carry on, and complete the approved Project 
with all practicable dispatch, in a sound, economical, and efficient manner.    
 
Section 5.  Contractor’s Capacity.  
 a. The Contractor agrees to maintain sufficient legal, financial, technical, and managerial 
capability to:  
   (1) Plan, manage, and complete the Project and provide for the use of Project 

property;  



05/27/2015  Page 3 of 35 

   (2) Carry out the safety and security aspects of the Project; and  
(3) Comply with the terms of this agreement, the Master Agreement  

 between the FTA and the Department, the Approved Project Budget, the 
Project schedules, the Contractor’s annual Certifications and Assurances to 
the Department, and applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and 
directives. 

  b.  Administrative Requirements. The Contractor agrees to comply with the following 
Federal and State administrative requirements: 

(1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for 
  Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local Governments," 49 
C.F.R. Part 18 at (http://www.access.gpo.gov/nara/cfr/cfr-table-
search.html#page1). 

(2) Title 19A North Carolina Administrative Code (N.C.A.C.) Subchapter  
 5B at (http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp). 

  c.  Application of Federal, State, and Local Laws, Regulations, and Directives. To 
achieve compliance with changing federal requirements, the Contractor makes note that federal, state 
and local requirements may change and the changed requirements will apply to this Agreement as 
required. 
  d.  Contractor's Primary Responsibility to Comply with Federal and State Requirements. 
Irrespective of involvement by any other participant in the Project, the Contractor agrees that it, rather 
than the participant, is ultimately responsible for compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives, the Master Agreement between the FTA and the Department, and this 
Agreement, except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing. Unless otherwise 
authorized in writing by the Department, the Contractor shall not assign any portion of the work to be 
performed under this Agreement, or execute any contract, amendment, or change order thereto, or 
obligate itself in any manner with any third party with respect to its rights and responsibilities under this 
Agreement without the prior written concurrence of the Department.  Further, the Contractor shall 
incorporate the provisions of this Agreement into any lease arrangement and shall not enter into any 
lease arrangement without the prior concurrence of the Department.  Any lease approved by the 
Department shall be subject to the conditions or limitations governing the lease as set forth by the FTA 
and the Department.  If the Contractor leases any Project asset to another party, the Contractor agrees 
to retain ownership of the leased asset, and assure that the Lessee will use the Project asset to provide 
mass transportation service, either through a "Lease and Supervisory Agreement" between the 
Contractor and Lessee, or another similar document.  The Contractor agrees to provide a copy of any 
relevant documents. 

(1) Significant Participation by a Third Party Contractor.  Although the  
Contractor may enter into a third party contract, after obtaining approval from the Department, in which 
the third party contractor agrees to provide property or services in support of the Project, or even carry 
out Project activities normally performed by the Contractor (such as in a turnkey contract), the 
Contractor agrees that it, rather than the third party contractor, is ultimately responsible to the 
Department for compliance with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, 
except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing. 

(2) Significant Participation by a Subcontractor.  Although the Contractor  
may delegate any or almost all Project responsibilities to one or more subcontractors, the Contractor 
agrees that it, rather than the subcontractor, is ultimately responsible for compliance with all applicable 
Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, except to the extent that the Department 
determines otherwise in writing. 

(3) Significant Participation by a Lessee of a Contractor.  Although the  
contractor may lease project property and delegate some or many project responsibilities to one or 
more lessees, the Contractor agrees that it, rather than any lessee, is ultimately responsible for 
compliance with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, and directives, except to the extent that FTA 
determines otherwise in writing.   
  e.  Contractor's Responsibility to Extend Federal and State Requirements to Other 
Entities. 

http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp)


05/27/2015  Page 4 of 35 

   (1) Entities Affected.  Only entities that are signatories to this Agreement for the 
Project are parties to this agreement.  To achieve compliance with certain Federal and State laws, 
regulations, or directives, however, other Project participants, such as subrecipients and third party 
contractors, will necessarily be involved.  Accordingly, the Contractor agrees to take the appropriate 
measures necessary to ensure that all Project participants comply with applicable Federal and State 
laws, regulations, and directives affecting their performance, except to the extent the Department 
determines otherwise in writing. 
   (2) Documents Affected.  The applicability provisions of Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives determine the extent to which their provisions affect a Project participant.  
Thus, the Contractor agrees to include adequate provisions to ensure that each Project participant 
complies with those Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, except to the extent that the 
Department determines otherwise in writing.  In addition, the Contractor also agrees to require its third 
party contractors, subrecipients, and lessees to include adequate provisions to ensure compliance with 
applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives in each lower tier subcontract and 
subagreement for the Project, except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing.  
Additional requirements include the following: 
    (a) Third Party Contracts.  Because Project activities performed by a third 
party contractor must comply with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, 
except to the extent the Department determines otherwise in writing, the Contractor agrees to include 
appropriate clauses in each third party contract stating the third party contractor's responsibilities under 
Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives, including any provisions directing the third party 
contractor to extend applicable requirements to its subcontractors at the lowest tier necessary.  When 
the third party contract requires the third party contractor to undertake responsibilities for the Project 
usually performed by the Contractor, the Contractor agrees to include in that third party contract those 
requirements applicable to the Contractor imposed by the Grant Agreement for the Project or the FTA 
Master Agreement and extend those requirements throughout each tier except as the Department 
determines otherwise in writing.  Additional guidance pertaining to third party contracting is contained in 
the FTA’s “Best Practices Procurement Manual.”  FTA and the Department caution, however, that 
FTA’s “Best Practices Procurement Manual” focuses mainly on third party procurement processes and 
may omit certain other Federal requirements applicable to the work to be performed. 
    (b) Subagreements.  Because Project activities performed by a 
subcontractor/ subrecipient must comply with all applicable Federal and State laws, regulations, and 
directives except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing, the Contractor 
agrees as follows: 
     1 Written Subagreement.  The Contractor agrees to enter into a 
written agreement with each subrecipient (subagreement) stating the terms and conditions of 
assistance by which the Project will be undertaken and completed. 
     2 Compliance with Federal Requirements.  The Contractor agrees 
to implement the Project in a manner that will not compromise the Contractor’s compliance with Federal 
and State laws, regulations, and directives applicable to the Project and the Contractor’s obligations 
under this Agreement for the Project and the FTA Master Agreement.  Therefore, the Contractor agrees 
to include in each subagreement appropriate clauses directing the subrecipient to comply with those 
requirements applicable to the Contractor imposed by this Agreement for the Project or the FTA Master 
Agreement and extend those requirements as necessary to any lower level subagreement or any third 
party contractor at each tier, except as the Department determines otherwise in writing. 
  f. No Federal/State Government Obligations to Third Parties.  In connection with 
performance of the Project, the Contractor agrees that, absent the Federal/State Government's express 
written consent, the Federal/State Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to 
any subrecipient, third party contractor, lessee or other person or entity that is not a party to this 
Agreement for the Project.  Notwithstanding that the Federal/State Government may have concurred in 
or approved any solicitation, subagreement, or third party contract, the Federal/State Government has 
no obligations or liabilities to such entity, including any subrecipient, third party contractor, or lessee. 
  g. Changes in Project Performance (i.e., Disputes, Breaches, Defaults, or Litigation).  
The Contractor agrees to notify the Department immediately, in writing, of any change in local law, 



05/27/2015  Page 5 of 35 

conditions (including its legal, financial, or technical capacity), or any other event that may adversely 
affect the Contractor's ability to perform the Project as provided in this Agreement for the Project.  The 
Contractor also agrees to notify the Department immediately, in writing, of any current or prospective 
major dispute, breach, default, or litigation that may adversely affect the Federal/State Government's 
interests in the Project or the Federal/State Government's administration or enforcement of 
Federal/State laws or regulations; and agrees to inform the Department, also in writing, before naming 
the Federal or State Government as a party to litigation for any reason, in any forum.   
  h. Limitations of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be subject to the availability of 
Federal and State funds, and contingent upon the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement 
between the FTA and the Department. 
  
Section 6. Ethics.  
  a. Code of Ethics.  The Contractor agrees to maintain a written code or standards of 
conduct that shall govern the actions of its officers, employees, board members, or agents engaged in 
the award or administration of third party contracts, subagreements, or leases financed with 
Federal/State assistance.  The Contractor agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall specify 
that its officers, employees, board members, or agents may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, 
or anything of monetary value from any present or potential third party contractor at any tier, any 
subrecipient at any tier or agent thereof, or any lessee.  Such a conflict would arise when an employee, 
officer, board member, or agent, including any member of his or her immediate family, partner, or 
organization that employs, or intends to employ, any of the parties listed herein has a financial interest 
in the firm selected for award.  The Contractor may set de minimis rules where the financial interest is 
not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value.  The Contractor agrees that 
its code or standards shall also prohibit the its officers, employees, board members, or agents from 
using their respective positions in a manner that presents a real or apparent personal or organizational 
conflict of interest or personal gain.  As permitted by State or local law or regulations, the Contractor 
agrees that its code or standards of conduct shall include penalties, sanctions, or other disciplinary 
actions for violations by its officers, employees, board members, or their agents, its third party 
contractors or sub-recipients or their agents. 
   (1) Personal Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor agrees that its code or 
standards of conduct shall prohibit the Contractor's employees, officers, board members, or agents 
from participating in the selection, award, or administration of any third party contract, or sub-
agreement supported by Federal/State assistance if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be 
involved.  Such a conflict would arise when an employee, officer, board member, or agent, including 
any member of his or her immediate family, partner, or organization that employs, or intends to employ, 
any of the parties listed herein has a financial interest in the firm selected for award.   
   (2)  Organizational Conflicts of Interest.  The Contractor agrees that its code or 
standards of conduct shall include procedures for identifying and preventing real and apparent 
organizational conflicts of interest.  An organizational conflict of interest exists when the nature of the 
work to be performed under a proposed third party contract or sub-agreement, may, without some 
restrictions on future activities, result in an unfair competitive advantage to the third party contractor or 
sub-recipient or impair its objectivity in performing the contract work. 
  b. Debarment and Suspension.  The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures the 
compliance of each third party contractor, sub-recipient, or lessee at any tier, with Executive Orders 
Nos. 12549 and 12689, "Debarment and Suspension," 31 U.S.C. § 6101 note, and U.S. DOT 
regulations, "Government-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement)," 49 C.F.R. Part 29.  
The Contractor agrees to, and assures that its third party contractors, sub-recipients, and lessees will, 
review the Excluded Parties Listing System at (http://epls.arnet.gov/) before entering into any contracts.  
  c. Bonus or Commission.  The Contractor affirms that it has not paid, and agrees not to 
pay, any bonus or commission to obtain approval of its Federal/State assistance application for the 
Project. 
  d.  Lobbying Restrictions.  The Contractor agrees that: 

(1) In compliance with 31 U.S.C. 1352(a), it will not use Federal assistance  



05/27/2015  Page 6 of 35 

to pay the costs of influencing any officer or employee of a Federal agency, Member of Congress, 
officer of Congress or employee of a member of Congress, in connection with making or extending the 
Grant Agreement; 

(2) It will comply with other applicable Federal laws and regulations  
prohibiting the use of Federal assistance for activities, designed to influence Congress or a State 
legislature with respect to legislation or appropriations, except through proper, official channels; and 

(3) It will comply, and will assure the compliance of each sub-recipient,  
lessee, or third party contractor at any tier, with U.S. DOT regulations, “New Restrictions on Lobbying,” 
49 C.F.R. Part 20, modified as necessary by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. 
  e.  Employee Political Activity.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to 
comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act, 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501 through 1508, and 7324 through 7326, 
and U.S. Office of Personnel Management regulations, "Political Activity of State or Local Officers or 
Employees," 5 C.F.R. Part 151.  The Hatch Act limits the political activities of State and local agencies 
and their officers and employees, whose principal employment activities are financed in whole or part 
with Federal funds including a Federal grant, cooperative agreement, or loan.  Nevertheless, in 
accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5307(k)(2)(B) and 23 U.S.C. § 142(g), the Hatch Act does not apply to a 
non-supervisory employee of a public transportation system (or of any other agency or entity 
performing related functions) receiving FTA assistance to whom the Hatch Act would not otherwise 
apply. 
  f.  False or Fraudulent Statements or Claims.  The Contractor acknowledges and 
agrees that: 
   (1) Civil Fraud.  The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 
U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, 
apply to its activities in connection with the Project.  By executing this Agreement for the Project, the 
Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it makes, or 
it may make in connection with the Project.  In addition to other penalties that may apply, the Contractor 
also understands that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, 
certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal/State Government concerning the Project, the 
Federal/State Government reserves the right to impose on the Contractor the penalties of the Program 
Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, to the extent the Federal/State Government deems 
appropriate. 
   (2) Criminal Fraud.  If the Contractor makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, 
statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal/State Government or 
includes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in any agreement with the 
Federal/State Government in connection with a Project authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any 
other Federal law, the Federal/State Government reserves the right to impose on the Contractor the 
penalties of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l), 18 U.S.C. § 1001 or other applicable Federal/State law to the extent 
the Federal/State Government deems appropriate.  
  
 Section 7.  Project Expenditures/Payment/Reimbursement.   
  a. General. The Department shall reimburse the Contractor for allowable costs for work 
performed under the terms of this Agreement which shall be financed with Federal Section 5311 funds 
and State matching funds.  The Contractor shall expend funds provided in this Agreement in 
accordance with the approved Project Budget(s), included as Attachment A to this Agreement.  It is 
understood and agreed that the work conducted pursuant to this Agreement shall be done on an actual 
cost basis by the Contractor. Expenditures submitted for reimbursement shall include all eligible 
cost incurred within the Period Covered.  The Period Covered represents the monthly or 
quarterly timeframe in which the project reports expenditures to the Department.   All payments 
issued by the Department will be on a reimbursable basis unless the Contractor requests and the 
Department approves an advance payment. The Department allows grantees in good standing to 
request advance payment (prior to issuing payment to the vendor) for vehicles and other high-cost 
capital items.  The Contractor agrees to deposit any advance payments into its account when received 
and issue payment to the vendor within 3 (three) business days.  The amount of reimbursement from 



05/27/2015  Page 7 of 35 

the Department shall not exceed the funds budgeted in the approved Project Budget.  The Contractor 
shall initiate and prosecute to completion all actions necessary to enable the Contractor to provide its 
share of project costs at or prior to the time that such funds are needed to meet project costs.  The 
Contractor shall provide its share of project costs from sources other than FTA and State funds from 
the Department.  Any costs for work not eligible for Federal and State participation shall be financed 
one hundred percent (100%) by the Contractor. 
  b.  Administrative Expenditures.  In order to assist the Contractor in financing the 
administrative costs of the project, the Department shall reimburse the Contractor up to the percentage 
specified in the Approved Project Budget of allowable administrative costs which shall be determined 
by available funding. 
  c.  Operating Expenditures.  In order to assist in financing the operating costs of the 
project, the Department shall reimburse the Contractor for the lesser of the following when providing 
Section 5311 operating assistance:  
   (1)  The balance of unrecovered operating expenditures after deducting all farebox 
and other operating revenues, or  
  d.   Payment and Reimbursement.  The Contractor shall submit a request for 
reimbursement to the Department  for the Period Covered not more frequently than monthly, nor less 
frequently than quarterly, reporting on the Department's Uniform Public Transportation Accounting 
System (UPTAS) invoicing forms furnished by the Department for work performed under this 
Agreement.  Expenditures submitted for reimbursement shall include all eligible cost incurred 
within the Period Covered. Failure to request reimbursement for expenses incurred within the 
Period Covered may result in non-payment.  All requests for reimbursement must be submitted 
within (30) days following the end of the project’s reporting period. Any contractor that fails to 
submit a request for reimbursement for the first two quarters of agreement fiscal year by 
January 31st or the last two quarters by July 30th will forfeit their ability to receive 
reimbursement for those periods. 
  
Additional forms must be submitted with reimbursement requests to report on contracting activities with 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) firms.  Invoices shall be supported by documentation of 
costs unless otherwise waived by the Department.  All requests must be submitted within thirty (30) 
days following the end of the quarter.  Failure to request reimbursement for eligible projects costs as 
outlined may result in termination of the Project.  Invoices shall be approved by the Department’s Public 
Transportation Division and reviewed by the Department's External Audit Branch prior to payment. 
  e. Excluded Costs.  The Contractor understands and agrees that, except to the extent 
the Department determines otherwise in writing, ineligible costs will be treated as follows: 

(1) In determining the amount of Federal/State assistance the Department  
    will provide, the Department will exclude: 

(a) Any Project cost incurred by the Contractor before the effective  
  date of the grant; 
(b) Any cost that is not included in the latest Approved Project  
  Budget; 
(c) Any cost for Project property or services received in connection  

with a third party contract, sub-agreement, lease, or other arrangement 
that is required to be, but has not been, concurred in or approved in 
writing by FTA; 

(d) Any non-project cost consistent with the prohibitions of 49  
  U.S.C. § 5323(h); and 
(e) Any profit or fee sought by the recipient for its services under the Grant 

Agree, except to the extent determined by applicable. 
(f) Any cost ineligible for FTA participation as provided by applicable 

Federal/State laws, regulations, or directives. 
 

(2) The Contractor shall limit reimbursement for meals, lodging and travel to  



05/27/2015  Page 8 of 35 

the rates established by the State of North Carolina Travel Policy.  Costs incurred by the Contractor in 
excess of these rates shall be borne by the contractor.  

(3) The Contractor understands and agrees that payment to the Contractor 
for any Project cost does not constitute the Federal/State Government’s final decision about whether 
that cost is allowable and eligible for payment and does not constitute a waiver of any violation by the 
Contractor of the terms of this Agreement.  The Contractor acknowledges that the Federal/State 
Government will not make a final determination about the allowability and eligibility of any cost until an 
audit of the Project has been completed.  If the Federal/State Government determines that the 
Contractor is not entitled to receive any portion of the Federal/State assistance the Contractor has 
requested or provided, the Department will notify the Contractor in writing, stating its reasons.  The 
Contractor agrees that Project closeout will not alter the Contractor 's responsibility to return any funds 
due the Federal/State Government as a result of later refunds, corrections, or other transactions; nor 
will Project closeout alter the Federal/State Government's right to disallow costs and recover funds on 
the basis of a later audit or other review.  Unless prohibited by Federal/State law or regulation, the 
Federal/State Government may recover any Federal/State assistance funds made available for the 
Project as necessary to satisfy any outstanding monetary claims that the Federal/State Government 
may have against the Contractor. 
  f.  Program Income 

1. State, Local, or Indian Tribal Governments.  In addition to uses of program 
income authorized under 49 C.F. R Section 18.25, FTA reserves the right to 
permit the Department to add program income to the funds FTA and the 
recipient have committed to that Grant agreement and use that program 
income for the purposes of and under the conditions of the grant agreement. 

2. Institutions of Higher Education, private Non-Profit Organizations, and Private 
For Profit Organizations.  In addition to uses of program income permitted 
under 49 C.F.R. Section 19.24, FTA reserves the right to permit a recipient to 
add the program income to the funds FTA and the recipient have committed to 
that Grant agreement and use that program income to further eligible project 
or program objectives. 

3. Dost Associated With Program Income.  Except to the extent FTA determines 
otherwise in writing, the cost incident to the earning program income may be 
deducted from the Recipient’s gross income to determine program income, 
provided these costs have not been charged to the Grant Agreement. 

 
  g. Federal/State Claims, Excess Payments, Disallowed Costs, including Interest. 
   (1) Contractor 's Responsibility to Pay.  Upon notification to the Contractor that 
specific amounts are owed to the Federal/State Government, whether for excess payments of 
Federal/State assistance, disallowed costs, or funds recovered from third parties or elsewhere, the 
Contractor agrees to remit to the Department promptly the amounts owed, including applicable interest 
and any penalties and administrative charges. 
   (2) Amount of Interest.  The Contractor agrees to remit to the Department interest 
owed as determined in accordance with N.C.G.S. 147-86.23.   Upon notification to the Contractor that 
specific amounts are owed to the Federal Government, whether for excess payments of Federal 
assistance, disallowed costs, or funds recovered from third parties or elsewhere, the Contractor agrees 
to remit to the Federal Government promptly the amounts owed, including applicable interest, penalties 
and administrative charges. 
   (3)  Payment to FTA. Upon receipt of repayment from the Contractor, the 
Department shall be responsible to remit amounts owed to FTA. 
  h. De-obligation of Funds.  The Contractor agrees that the Department may de-obligate 
unexpended Federal and State funds before Project closeout. 
 
 Section 8. Accounting Records. 
  a.  Establishment and Maintenance of Accounting Records.  The Contractor shall 
establish and maintain separate accounts for the public transportation program, either independently or 



05/27/2015  Page 9 of 35 

within the existing accounting system. All costs charged to the program shall be in accordance with 
most current approved Annual Budget and shall be reported to the Department in accordance with 
UPTAS.  
  b.  Documentation of Project Costs.  All costs charged to the Project, including any 
approved services performed by the Contractor or others, shall be supported by properly executed 
payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in detail the nature and propriety of 
the charges, as referenced in 49 C.F.R. 18, the Office of Management and Budget Circulars A-87, 
“Costs Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments” and A-102 “Grants and Cooperative 
Agreements with State and Local Governments." 
  c.  Allowable Costs.  Expenditures made by the Contractor shall be reimbursed as 
allowable costs to the extent they meet all of the requirements set forth below.  They must be: 

(1) Consistent with the Project Description, plans, specifications, and  
 Project Budget and all other provisions of this Agreement; 

   (2) Necessary in order to accomplish the Project; 
    (3) Reasonable in amount for the goods or services purchased; 
   (4) Actual net costs to the Contractor, i.e., the price paid minus  

 any refunds (e.g., refundable sales and use taxes pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-
164.14), rebates, or other items of value received by the Contractor that have 
the effect of reducing the cost actually incurred; 

(5) Incurred (and be for work performed) within the period of performance and 
period covered of this Agreement unless specific authorization from the 
Department to the contrary is received; 

(6) Satisfactorily documented;  
(7) Treated uniformly and consistently under accounting principles and procedures 

approved or prescribed by the Department; and 
(8) In compliance with U.S. DOT regulations pertaining to allowable costs at 49 

C.F.R. § 18.22(b) or 49 C.F.R. § 19.27, which regulations specify the 
applicability of 2 CFR 200, “Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards as follows: 

  (a1) Title 2 CFR 200, Subpart E – Cost Principles  
     (formerly OMB Circulars A-87, A-21, and A-122) 
     (d1) FAR, at 48 C.F.R., Subpart 31.2, “Contracts with  
      Commercial Organizations” applies to Project costs 
       incurred by a Contractor that is a for-profit organization. 
 

 
Section 9. Reporting, Record Retention, and Access.    
  a. Reports.  The Contractor shall advise the Department regarding the progress of the 
Project at a minimum quarterly and at such time and in such a manner as the Department may 
require. Such reporting and documentation may include, but not be limited to: operating statistics, 
equipment usage, meetings, progress reports, and monthly performance reports.  The Contractor 
shall collect and submit to the Department such financial statements, data, records, contracts, and 
other documents related to the Project as may be deemed necessary by the Department.  Such 
reports shall include narrative and financial statements of sufficient substance to be in 
conformance with the reporting requirements of the Department.  Progress reports throughout the 
useful life of the project equipment shall be used, in part, to document utilization of the project 
equipment.  Failure to fully utilize the project equipment in the manner directed by the Department shall 
constitute a breach of contract, and after written notification by the Department, may result in 
termination of the Agreement or any such remedy as the Department deems appropriate. 
  b. Record Retention. The Contractor and its third party contractors shall retain all 
records pertaining to this Project for a period of five (5) years from the date of final payment to the 
Contractor, or until all audit exceptions have been resolved, whichever is longer, in accordance with 
“Records Retention and Disposition Schedule – Public Transportation Systems and Authorities, April 1, 
2006,” at (http://www.ah.dcr.state.nc.us/records/local/). 



05/27/2015  Page 10 of 35 

  c.  Access to Records of Contractor and Subcontractors.  The Contractor shall permit 
and shall require its third party contractors to permit the Department, the Comptroller General of the 
United States, and the Secretary of the United States Department of Transportation, or their authorized 
representatives, to inspect all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records with regard to the 
Project, and to audit the books, records, and accounts of the Contractor pertaining to the Project.  The 
Department shall reserve the right to reject any and all materials and workmanship for defects and 
incompatibility with Project Description or excessive cost. The Department shall notify the Contractor, in 
writing, if materials and/or workmanship are found to be unacceptable.  The Contractor shall have 
ninety (90) days from notification to correct defects or to provide acceptable materials and/or 
workmanship.  Failure by the Contractor to provide acceptable materials and/or workmanship, or to 
correct noted defects, shall constitute a breach of contract. 
  d.  Project Closeout. The Contractor agrees that Project closeout does not alter the 
reporting and record retention requirements of this Section 6 of this Agreement. 
  
 
 Section 10. Project Completion, Audit, Settlement, and Closeout. 
  a.  Project Completion.  Within thirty (30) calendar days following Project completion, 
the end of the Project’s period of performance, or termination by the Department, the Contractor agrees 
to submit a final reimbursement request to the Department for eligible Project expenses. 
  b.  Financial Reporting and Audit Requirements.  In accordance with 2 CFR 200 
Subpart F, “Audit Requirements” effective December 26, 2014and N.C.G.S. 159-34, the Contractor 
shall have its accounts audited as soon as possible after the close of each fiscal year by an 
independent auditor.  The Contractor agrees to submit the required number of copies of the audit 
reporting package to the Local Government Commission four months after the Contractor’s fiscal year-
end. 

  c.  Audit Costs. Unless prohibited by law, the costs of audits made in 
accordance with Title 2 CFR 200, Subpart F – Audit Requirements (formerly OMB 
Circular A-133),are allowable charges to State and Federal awards.  The charges may 
be considered a direct cost or an allocated indirect cost, as determined in accordance 
with cost principles outlined in  
Title 2 CFR 200, Subpart E – Cost Principles (formerly OMB Circular A-87The cost of 
any audit not conducted in accordance with Title 2 CFR 200 and N.C.G.S. 159-34 is 
unallowable and shall not be charged to State or Federal grants. 

  d.  Funds Owed to the Department.  The Contractor agrees to remit to the Department 
any excess payments made to the Contractor, any costs disallowed by the Department, and any 
amounts recovered by the Contractor from third parties or from other sources, as well as any penalties 
and any interest required by Subsection 7g of this Agreement.  
  e.  Project Closeout.  Project closeout occurs when the Department issues the final 
project payment or acknowledges that the Contractor has remitted the proper refund.  The Contractor 
agrees that Project closeout by the Department does not invalidate any continuing requirements 
imposed by this Agreement. 
 
 Section 11. Civil Rights. The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable civil rights laws and 
implementing regulations including, but not limited to, the following: 
  a. Nondiscrimination in Federal Public Transportation Programs.  The Contractor 
agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each third party contractor at any tier and each 
subrecipient at any tier of the Project, with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age, and prohibits 
discrimination in employment or business opportunity. 
  b.  Nondiscrimination – Title VI of the Civil Rights Act.  The Contractor agrees to comply, 
and assures the compliance of each third party contractor at any tier and each subrecipient at any tier 
of the Project, with all provisions prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin 
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq., and with U.S. DOT 



05/27/2015  Page 11 of 35 

regulations, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation – 
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act," 49 C.F.R. Part 21.   
  c.  Equal Employment Opportunity.  The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures the 
compliance of each third party contractor at any tier of the Project and each subrecipient at any tier of 
the Project, with all equal employment opportunity (EEO) provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5332, with Title VII 
of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., and implementing Federal 
regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto.  Except to the extend FTA determines otherwise 
in writing, the recipient also agrees to follow all applicable Federal EEO directives that may be issued.  
Accordingly: 
    (1)  General.  The Contractor agrees that it will not discriminate against any 
employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, or national 
origin.  The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed and that 
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, creed, sex, disability, age, 
or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to, employment, upgrading, demotion or 
transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
   (2)  Equal Employment Opportunity Requirements for Construction Activities.  For 
activities determined by the U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) to qualify as “construction,” the 
Contractor agrees to comply and assures the compliance of each third party contractor at any tier or 
subrecipient at any tier of the Project, with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of 
U.S. DOL regulations, "Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment 
Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., which implement Executive Order No. 
11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending 
Executive Order No. 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000(e) note, and 
also with any Federal laws, regulations, and directives affecting construction undertaken as part of the 
Project. 
  d. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises. 
        (1)  Policy.  It is the policy of the North Carolina Department of Transportation that 
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBEs) as defined in 49 CFR Part 26 shall have the equal 
opportunity to compete fairly for and to participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or 
in part by Federal Funds. 
 
The Contractor is also encouraged to give every opportunity to allow DBE participation in Supplemental 
Agreements. 
        (2)  Obligation  The Contractor, subconsultant, and subcontractor shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, religion, color, national origin, age, disability or sex in the 
performance of this contract.  The Contractor shall comply with applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 
26 in the award and administration of federally assisted contracts.  Failure by the Contractor to comply 
with these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which will result in the termination of this 
contract or such other remedy, as the Department deems necessary. 
        (3)  Goals.  Even though specific DBE goals are not established for this project, the 
Department encourages the Contractor to have participation from DBE contractors and/or suppliers.  
        (4)  Listing of DBE Subcontractors.  The contractor, at the time the Letter of Interest 
is submitted, shall submit a listing of all known DBE contractors that will participate in the performance 
of the identified work.  The participation shall be submitted on the Department’s Form RS-2.  In the 
event the contractor has no DBE participation, the contractor shall indicate this on the Form RS-2 by 
entering the word ‘None’ or the number ‘zero’ and the form shall be signed.  Form RS-2 may be 
accessed on the website at https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/quickfind/forms/Default.aspx. 
        (5)  Certified Transportation Firms Directory.  Real-time information about 
contractors doing business with the Department and contractors that are certified through North 
Carolina’s Unified Certification Program is available in the Directory of Transportation Firms.  The 
Directory can be accessed by the link on the Department’s homepage or by entering 
https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/vendor/directory/ in the address bar of your web browser.  Only contractors 
identified as DBE certified in the Directory shall be listed in the proposal. 

https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/quickfind/forms/Default.aspx
https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/vendor/directory


05/27/2015  Page 12 of 35 

 
The listing of an individual contractor in the Department’s directory shall not be construed as an 
endorsement of the contractor’s capability to perform certain work. 
        (6)  Reporting Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Participation.  When payments 
are made to Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) contractors, including material suppliers, 
contractors at all levels (Contractor, subconsultant or subcontractor) shall provide the Contract 
Administrator with an accounting of said payments.  The accounting shall be listed on the Department’s 
Subcontractor Payment Information Form (Form DBE-IS). In the event the contractor has no DBE 
participation, the contractor shall indicate this on the Form DBE-IS by entering the word ‘None’ or the 
number ‘zero’ and the form shall be signed. Form DBE-IS may be accessed on the website at 
https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/quickfind/forms/Default.aspx. 
 
A responsible fiscal officer of the payee Contractor, subconsultant or subcontractor who can attest to 
the date and amounts of the payments shall certify that the accounting is correct. A copy of an 
acceptable report may be obtained from the Department of Transportation. This information shall be 
submitted as part of the requests for payments made to the Department. 
 
e.  Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA) 29 U.S.C. Section 621 through 634 and with 
implementing U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (U.S. EEOC) regulations, “Age  
Discrimination in Employment Act,”  29 C.F. R. Part 1625, which prohibits discrimination against 
individuals on the basis of age. 
 
  f.  Access for Individuals with Disabilities.  The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 
U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities 
have the same right as other individuals to use public transportation services and facilities, and that 
special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement 
transportation accessibility rights for elderly individuals and individuals with disabilities.  The Contractor 
also agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended, with 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability; with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et seq., which 
requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to individuals with disabilities; and 
with the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that 
buildings and public accommodations be accessible to individuals with disabilities.  In addition, the 
Contractor agrees to comply with applicable Federal regulations and directives and any subsequent 
amendments thereto, except to the extent the Department determines otherwise in writing, as follows: 

(1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with  
 Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37; 
(2) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in  

 Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial 
Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27; 

(3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board  
 (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) 
Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 
and 49 C.F.R. Part 38; 

(4) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in  
 State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35; 
(5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by  

 Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. 
Part 36; 

(6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, 
  "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R.  
 Subpart 101-19; 
(7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to  
 Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with 

https://apps.dot.state.nc.us/quickfind/forms/Default.aspx
file://///DOT/DFSROOT01/GROUPS-PUBTTRB/PUBT/FMS/Contract%20Templates/Need%20to%20be%20reviewed%202015/www.ncdot.org/
file://///DOT/DFSROOT01/GROUPS-PUBTTRB/PUBT/FMS/Contract%20Templates/Need%20to%20be%20reviewed%202015/www.ncdot.org/
file://///DOT/DFSROOT01/GROUPS-PUBTTRB/PUBT/FMS/Contract%20Templates/Need%20to%20be%20reviewed%202015/www.ncdot.org/


05/27/2015  Page 13 of 35 

 Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630; 
(8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations,  
 "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises  
 Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64,  
 Subpart F; and 
(9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, “Electronic and Information Technology  
 Accessibility Standards,” 36 C.F.R. Part 1194;  
(10) FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped  
 Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609; and 
(11) Federal civil rights and nondiscrimination directives implementing the  

foregoing regulations. 
  g.  Drug or Alcohol Abuse-Confidentiality and Other Civil Rights Protections.  To the 
extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with the confidentiality and other civil rights 
protections of the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 1101 et 
seq., with the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4541 et seq., and with the Public Health Service Act of 1912, 
as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 201dd -290dd-2 et seq, and any subsequent amendments to these acts. 
  h.  Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency.  To the extent 
applicable and except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing, the Contractor 
agrees to comply with the policies of Executive Order No. 13166, "Improving Access to Services for 
Persons with Limited English Proficiency," 42 U.S.C. § 2000d-1 note, and with the provisions of U.S. 
DOT Notice, “DOT Guidance to Recipients on Special Language Services to Limited English Proficient 
(LEP) Beneficiaries,” 70Fed. Reg. 74087 et seq., December 14, 2005. 
  i.  Environmental Justice.  The Contractor agrees to comply with the policies of 
Executive Order No. 12898, "Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Minority Populations 
and Low-Income Populations," 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note, except to the extent that the Department 
determines otherwise in writing. 
  i.  Other Nondiscrimination Laws.  The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable 
provisions of other Federal laws, regulations, and directives pertaining to and prohibiting discrimination 
that are applicable, except to the extent the Department determines otherwise in writing. 
 
 Section 12.  Planning and Private Enterprise.   

a. General.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to implement the Project in 
a manner consistent with the plans developed in compliance with the Federal 
planning and private enterprise provisions of the following: 

(1)   49 U.S.C. §§ 5303, 5304, 5306, and 5323(a)(1); 
(2)  Joint Federal Highway Administration (FHWA)/FTA document,  
“Interim Guidance for Implementing Key SAFETEA-LU Provisions on Planning, 
Environment, and Air Quality for Joint FHWA/FTA Authorities,” dated 
September 2, 2005, as amended by joint FHWA/FTA guidance, “SAFETEA-LU 
Deadline for New Planning Requirements (July 1, 2007),” dated May 2, 2006 
[clarifying Guidance on Implementation of SAFETEA-LU Planning Provisions], 
and subsequent Federal directives implementing SAFETEA-LU, except to the 
extent FTA determines otherwise in writing; 
(3)  Joint FHWA/FTA regulations, "Planning Assistance and  
Standards,” 23 C.F.R. Part 450 and 49 C.F.R. Part 613 to the extent that those 
regulations are consistent with the SAFETEA-LU amendments to public 
transportation planning and private enterprise laws, and subsequent 
amendments to those regulations that may be promulgated; and  
(4) FTA regulations, “Major Capital Investment Projects,” 49 C.F.R.  
 Part 611, to the extent that those regulations are consistent with the 
SAFETEA-LU amendments to the public transportation planning and private 
enterprise laws, and any subsequent amendments to those regulations that 
may be subsequently promulgated. 



05/27/2015  Page 14 of 35 

  b. Governmental and Private Nonprofit Providers of Nonemergency Transportation.  In 
addition to providing opportunities to participate in planning as described in Subsection 12a of this 
Agreement, to the extent feasible the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 
5323(k), which afford governmental agencies and nonprofit organizations that receive Federal 
assistance for nonemergency transportation from Federal Government sources (other than U.S. DOT) 
an opportunity to be included in the design, coordination, and planning of transportation services. 
  c. Infrastructure Investment.  During the implementation of the Project, the Contractor 
agrees to take into consideration the recommendations of Executive Order No. 12803, "Infrastructure 
Privatization," 31 U.S.C. § 501 note, and Executive Order No. 12893, "Principles for Federal 
Infrastructure Investments," 31 U.S.C. § 501 note. 
 
 Section 13.  Preference for United States Products and Services. To the extent 
applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with the following U.S. domestic preference requirements: 
  a. Buy America.  The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5323(j) and FTA 
regulations, "Buy America Requirements," 49 C.F.R. Part 661 to the extent those regulations are 
consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions, and subsequent amendments to those regulations that may 
be promulgated.  The Contractor also agrees to comply with FTA directives to the extent those 
directives are consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions, except to the extent that FTA or the Department 
determines otherwise in writing. 
  b. Cargo Preference-Use of United States-Flag Vessels.  The Contractor agrees to 
comply with U.S. Maritime Administration regulations, "Cargo Preference-U.S.-Flag Vessels," 46 C.F.R. 
Part 381, to the extent those regulations apply to the Project. 
  c. Fly America.  The Contractor understands and agrees that the Federal/State 
Government will not participate in the costs of international air transportation of any individuals involved 
in or property acquired for the Project unless that air transportation is provided by U.S.-flag air carriers 
to the extent service by U.S.-flag air carriers is available, in accordance with the requirements of the 
International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974, as amended, 49 U.S.C. 
§ 40118, and with U.S. GSA regulations, “Use of United States Flag Air Carriers," 41 C.F.R. 
§§ 301-10.131 through 301-10.143. 
  
Section 14. Procurement. To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with the following 
third party procurement provisions: 
  a. Federal Standards.  The Contractor agrees to comply with the third party 
procurement requirements of 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 and other applicable Federal laws in effect now or 
as subsequently enacted; with U.S. DOT third party procurement regulations of 49 C.F.R. §§ 18.36 and 
other applicable Federal regulations pertaining to third party procurements and subsequent 
amendments thereto, to the extent those regulations are consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions; and 
Article 8 of Chapter 143 of the North Carolina General Statutes. The Contractor also agrees to comply 
with the provisions of FTA Circular 4220.1F, "Third Party Contracting Requirements," to the extent 
those provisions are consistent with SAFETEA-LU provisions and with any subsequent amendments 
thereto, except to the extent the Department or the FTA determines otherwise in writing.   Although the 
FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual” provides additional procurement guidance, the Contractor 
understands that the FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual” is focused on third party procurement 
processes and may omit certain Federal requirements applicable to the third party contract work to be 
performed.  The Contractor shall establish written procurement procedures that comply with the 
required Federal and State standards. 
  b. Full and Open Competition.  In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(a), the Contractor 
agrees to conduct all procurement transactions in a manner that provides full and open competition as 
determined by the Department and FTA. 
  c. Exclusionary or Discriminatory Specifications.  Apart from inconsistent requirements 
imposed by Federal laws or regulations, the Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of 49 
U.S.C. § 5325(h) by not using any Federal assistance awarded by FTA to support a procurement using 
exclusionary or discriminatory specifications. 



05/27/2015  Page 15 of 35 

  d. Geographic Restrictions.  The Contractor agrees that it will not use any State or local 
geographic preference, except State or local geographic preferences expressly mandated or as 
permitted by FTA.  However, for example, in procuring architectural, engineering, or related services, 
the Contractor’s geographic location may be a selection criterion, provided that a sufficient number of 
qualified firms are eligible to compete. 
  e. In-State Bus Dealer Restrictions.  The Contractor agrees that in accordance with 49 
U.S.C. § 5325(i), any State law requiring buses to be purchased through in-State dealers will not apply 
to purchases of vehicles acquired with funding authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53. 
  f. Neutrality in Labor Relations.  To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor agrees 
to comply with Executive Order No. 13502, “Use of Project Labor Agreements (PLA) for Federal  
Construction Projects,”  February 6, 2009, 74 Fed. Reg. 6985 et seq. As a result, the Recipient is no 
longer prohibited from requiring an affiliation with a labor organization, such as a project labor 
agreement, as a condition for award of any third party contract or subcontract at any tier for 
construction or construction management services, except to the extent that the Federal Government 
determines otherwise in writing.   
  g. Federal Supply Schedules.  State, local, or nonprofit Recipients may not use Federal 
Supply Schedules to acquire federally assisted property or services except to the extent permitted by 
U.S. GSA, U.S. DOT, or FTA laws, regulations, directives, or determinations. 
  h. Force Account.  The Contractor agrees that FTA may determine the extent to which 
Federal assistance may be used to participate in force account costs. 
  i. Department Technical Review.  The Contractor agrees to permit the Department to 
review and approve the Contractor 's technical specifications and requirements to the extent the 
Department believes necessary to ensure proper Project administration.  The Contractor agrees to 
submit the following to the Department for its review and approval prior to solicitation: 
   (1) New/adapted specifications for equipment, supplies, apparatuses and new-type 
rolling stock.  This requirement does not apply to equipment, supplies, or apparatuses with cost of less 
than $30,000; or to Minivans; Conversion and Lift Vans; Center Aisle Vans and Standard Vans; and 
Light Transit Vehicles (Cutaway-type Bus). 
   (2) Drawings, designs, and/or description of work for construction, renovation, or 
facility improvement projects, including the purchase or construction of bus shelters. 
  j. Department Pre-award Approval. The Contractor agrees to submit procurement 
documents to the Department for its review and approval prior to award of a contract/ subcontract 
under this Agreement for any of the following: 

(1) All new-type rolling stock, excluding Minivans; Conversion and Lift  
 Vans; Center Aisle Vans and Standard Vans; and Light Transit Vehicles 
(Cutaway-type Bus). 

(2) All construction projects equal to or greater than $30,000; 
(3) Any “brand name” product or sole source purchase equal to or greater  
 than $2,500; 
(4) Any contract/subcontract to other than apparent lowest bidder equal to  
 or greater than $2,500; 
(5) Any procurement equal to or greater than $90,000; 
(6) Any contract modification that would change the scope of a contract or  

 increase the contract amount up to or over the formal (sealed) bid threshold of 
$90,000. 

  k. Project Approval/Third Party Contract Approval.  Except to the extent the Department 
determines otherwise in writing, the Contractor agrees that the Department's award of Federal and 
State assistance for the Project does not, by itself, constitute pre-approval of any non-competitive third 
party contract associated with the Project. 
  l. Preference for Recycled Products.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees 
to comply with U.S. EPA regulations, “Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines for Products Containing 
Recovered Materials,” 40 C.F.R. Part 247, which implements Section 6002 of the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6962, and with subsequent Federal 
regulations that may be promulgated.  Accordingly, the Contractor agrees to provide a competitive 



05/27/2015  Page 16 of 35 

preference for products and services that conserve natural resources, protect the environment, and are 
energy efficient. 
  m. Clean Air and Clean Water.  The Contractor agrees to include in each third party 
contract and subagreement exceeding $100,000 adequate provisions to ensure that each Project 
participant will agree to report the use of facilities placed on or likely to be placed on the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency (U.S. EPA) "List of Violating Facilities," to not use any violating 
facilities, to report violations to the Department and the Regional U.S. EPA Office, and to comply with 
the inspection and other applicable requirements of: 
   (1) Section 306 of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7606, and other 
applicable provisions of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 through 7671q; and 
   (2) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1368, and other 
applicable requirements of the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 through 1377. 
  n. National Intelligent Transportation Systems Architecture and Standards.  To the 
extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to conform to the National Intelligent Transportation Systems 
(ITS) Architecture and Standards as required by SAFETEA-LU § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 512 note, and 
comply with FTA Notice, "FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit Projects" 66 Fed. Reg. 1455 
et seq., January 8, 2001, and any subsequent further implementing directives, except to the extent FTA 
or the Department determines otherwise in writing. 
  o. Rolling Stock.  In acquiring rolling stock, the Contractor agrees as follows: 
   (1) Method of Acquisition. The Department’s Public Transportation Division, 
through the North Carolina Department of Administration, Purchase and Contract Division, awards 
vehicle contracts for its grant recipients to purchase public transit vehicles.  These vehicle contracts 
comply with FTA and State requirements.  The Contractor will utilize these vehicle contracts to 
purchase public transit vehicles included in the Approved Budget for this Project.  For public transit 
vehicles not included in these contracts, the Contractor shall conduct a competitive procurement 
process in accordance with this Agreement.  
   (2) Multi-year Options.  In accordance with 49 U.S.C. § 5325(e)(1), the Contractor 
may not enter into a multi-year contract with options, exceeding five (5) years after the date of the 
original contract, to purchase additional rolling stock and replacement parts. 
   (3) Pre-Award and Post-Delivery Requirements.  The Contractor agrees to comply 
with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m) and FTA regulations, “Pre-Award and Post-Delivery 
Audits of Rolling Stock Purchases,” 49 C.F.R. Part 663 and, when promulgated, any amendments to 
those regulations.  The Contractor understands and agrees that to the extent the provisions of 49 
U.S.C. § 5323(m), as amended by SAFETEA-LU conflict with FTA’s implementing regulations, as 
currently promulgated, the provisions of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(m), as amended, prevail. 
   (4) Bus Testing.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with 
the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5318(e) and FTA regulations, "Bus Testing," 49 C.F.R. Part 665, and 
any amendments to those regulations that may be promulgated. 
  p.  Bonding. For construction projects, the Contractor agrees to provide bid guarantee 
bond (5% of bid price) and performance and payment bonds (100% of contract price) and comply with 
any other construction bonding provisions as the Department may determine. 
  q. Architectural, Engineering, Design, or Related Services. For all architectural, 
engineering, design, or related services the Contractor shall use qualifications-based competitive 
proposal [Request for Qualifications (RFQ) in accordance with the Brooks Act] procedures.  The 
Contractor shall follow applicable statutes, N.C.G.S. 143-64.31-34 and requirements set forth in FTA 
Circular 4220.1F, to retain a qualified, registered architect or professional engineer.   
   (1)  The Contractor agrees to comply with qualifications-based competitive 
proposal procedures, which require: 
    (a)  An offeror's qualifications be evaluated; 
    (b)  Good faith effort to use minority-owned businesses; 
    (c)  Price be excluded as an evaluation factor; 

(d)      Negotiations be conducted with only the most qualified offeror;  
  and 
(e)     Failing agreement on price, negotiations with the next most 



05/27/2015  Page 17 of 35 

qualified offeror be conducted until a contract award can be made to the 
most qualified offeror whose price is fair and reasonable. 

   (2)  Geographic location may be a selection criterion in procurements for 
architectural and engineering (A&E) services provided its application leaves an appropriate number of 
qualified firms, given the nature and size of the project, to compete for the contract. 
   (3) The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that qualifications-based competitive 
proposal procedures can only be used for procurement of the following services: 
    (a)  Program management; 
    (b)  Construction management; 
    (c)  Feasibility studies; and  
    (d)  Preliminary engineering, design, architectural, engineering, surveying, 

mapping, and related services. 
   (4)  The Contractor also agrees to: 
    (a)  Include applicable Federal requirements and certifications in the 

solicitation;  
    (b)  Submit procurement documents to the Department for its review and 

approval prior to the award of any contract for A&E services for the 
Project; and  

   (c) Maintain written documentation to support each step of the  
         procurement process. 

  r.  Design-Bid-Build Projects. The Design-Bid-Build method of construction is where 
there are separate contracts and procurement processes for the design and construction.  Typically the 
designer coordinates the numerous prime contractors that are involved in the construction process.  
The Contractor may use design-bid-build procurements to implement its projects after it has complied 
with applicable Federal and State requirements and obtains approval from the Department prior to 
solicitation and award of the contract. 
  s.  Design-Build Projects. The Design-Build method of construction is where a single 
contractor is given responsibility for both design and construction, thus eliminating an intermediate 
procurement step with possible time saving, and more effective coordination and opportunities for cost 
savings.  Currently, this procurement method is not an allowable method of procurement by the State of 
North Carolina.  The Contractor may request to use the design-build method as an “alternate” method.  
Submission of justification must be presented to the State Building Commission for a 2/3-majority vote 
of approval.  One of the drawbacks of design-build is that the owner does not have an independent 
source (the A/E in traditional construction) overseeing design implementation and verifying 
conformance with the drawings and specifications. 
  t. Competitive Proposal/Request for Proposal (RFP). The competitive proposal/ 
request for proposal (RFP) method of procurement is normally conducted with more than one source 
submitting an offer, i.e., proposal.  Either a fixed price or cost reimbursement type contract is awarded.  
This method of procurement is generally used when conditions are not appropriate for the use of sealed 
bids.  The Contractor acknowledges that certain restrictions apply under North Carolina law for use of 
the RFP method and these restrictions and exceptions are discussed below. 
   (1)  The Contractor agrees that the RFP Method may not be used in lieu of an 
invitation for bids (IFB) for: 
    (a)  Construction/repair work; or 
    (b)  Purchase of apparatus, supplies, materials or equipment.  See 

Subsection 14t(2), this Agreement, regarding information technology 
goods as services. 

   (2)  The Contractor agrees that the RFP method of solicitation may be used (in 
addition to or instead of any other procedure available under North Carolina law) for the procurement of 
information technology goods and services [as defined in N.C.G.S. 147-33.81(2)].  This applies to 
electronic data processing goods and services, telecommunications goods and services, security goods 
and services, microprocessors, software, information processing, office systems, any services related 
to the foregoing, and consulting or other services for design or redesign of information technology 



05/27/2015  Page 18 of 35 

supporting business processes.  The Contractor will comply with the following minimum requirements 
[N.C.G.S. 143-129.8]: 
    (a)  Notice of the request for proposals shall be given in accordance with 

N.C.G.S. 143-129(b).  
    (b)  Contracts shall be awarded to the person or entity that submits the best 

overall proposal as determined by the awarding authority.  Factors to be 
considered in awarding contracts shall be identified in the request for 
proposals. 

(c) The Contractor may use procurement methods set forth in  
N.C.G.S. 143-135.9 in developing and evaluating requests for proposals.  

(d) The Contractor may negotiate with any proposer in order to obtain a final 
contract that best meets the needs of the Contractor.  

(e) Any negotiations shall not alter the contract beyond the scope of  
 the original request for proposals in a manner that deprives the 
proposers or potential proposers of a fair opportunity to compete for the 
contract; and would have resulted in the award of the contract to a 
different person or entity if the alterations had been included in the 
request for proposals. 

    (f)  Proposals submitted shall not be subject to public inspection until  
  a contract is awarded. 

   (3)  The Contractor agrees that the RFP method, in accordance with FTA Circular 
4220.1F, under the guidelines of FTA “Best Practices Procurement Manual,” should be used for 
procurements of professional services, such as consultants for planning activities and for transit system 
operations/management.  The Contractor acknowledges that certain restrictions apply under North 
Carolina law for use of the RFP method and these restrictions and exceptions are discussed in 
Subsections 14t(1) and 14t(2) of this Agreement.  For all architectural, engineering, design, or related 
services, the Contractor agrees that the qualifications-based competitive proposal process shall be 
used (see Subsection 14q, this Agreement).  
   (4)  When the RFP method is used for procurement of professional services, the 
Contractor agrees to abide by the following minimum requirements: 

(a) Normally conducted with more than one source submitting an  
  offer (proposal); 
(b) Either fixed price or cost reimbursement type contract will be  
  used; 
(c) Generally used when conditions are not appropriate for use of  
  sealed bids; 

    (d)  Requests for proposals will be publicized; 
(e)     All evaluation factors will be identified along with their relative  
  importance;  
(f) Proposals will be solicited from an adequate number (3 is  
  recommended) of qualified sources;  
(g) A standard method must be in place for conducting technical  
  evaluations of the proposals received and for selecting  
  awardees; 
(h) Awards will be made to the responsible firm whose proposal is  
  most advantageous to the Contractor's program with price and  
  other factors considered; and 
(i) In determining which proposal is most advantageous, the  
  Contractor may award to the proposer whose proposal offers the  
  greatest business value (best value) to the agency.  “Best value”  
  is based on determination of which proposal offers the best  
  tradeoff between price and performance, where quality is  
  considered an integral performance factor. 



05/27/2015  Page 19 of 35 

  u.  Award to Other than the Lowest Bidder.  In accordance with Federal and State 
statutes, a third party contract may be awarded to other than the lowest bidder, if the award furthers an 
objective (such as improved long-term operating efficiency and lower long-term costs).  When specified 
in bidding documents, factors such as discounts, transportation costs, and life cycle costs will be 
considered in determining which bid is lowest.  Prior to the award of any contract equal to or greater 
than $2,500 to other than apparent lowest bidder, the Contractor shall submit its recommendation along 
with basis/reason for selection to the Department for pre-award approval.   
  v.  Award to Responsible Contractors. The Contractor agrees to award third party 
contracts only to responsible contractors who possess potential ability to successfully perform under 
the terms and conditions of the proposed procurement.  Consideration will be given to such matters as 
contractor integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial and 
technical resources. Contracts will not be awarded to parties that are debarred, suspended, or 
otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in Federal assistance programs or activities in 
accordance with the Federal debarment and suspension rule, 49 C.F.R. 29.  For procurements over 
$25,000, the Contractor shall comply, and assure the compliance of each third party contractor and 
subrecipient at any tier, with the debarment and suspension rule.  FTA and the Department recommend 
that grantees use a certification form for projects over $25,000, which are funded in part with Federal 
funds. A sample certification form can be obtained from the Department.  The Contractor also agrees to 
check a potential contractor’s debarment/suspension status at the following Web site: 
http://epls.arnet.gov/. 
  w. Procurement Notification Requirements.  With respect to any procurement for goods 
and services (including construction services) having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more (in 
Federal funds), the Contractor agrees to: 
   (1) Specify the amount of Federal and State funds that will be used to finance the 
acquisition in any announcement of the contract award for such goods or services; and 
   (2) Express the said amount as a percentage of the total costs of the planned 
acquisition.    
  x. Contract Administration System. The Contractor shall maintain a contract 
administration system that ensures that contractors/subcontractors perform in accordance with the 
terms, conditions, and specifications of their contracts or purchase orders. 
  y. Access to Third Party Contract Records.  The Contractor agrees, and agrees to 
require its third party contractors and third party subcontractors, at as many tiers of the Project as 
required, to provide to the Federal and State awarding agencies or their duly authorized 
representatives, access to all third party contract records to the extent required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g), 
and retain such documents for at least five (5) years after project completion.   
 
 Section 15.  Leases. 
  a. Capital Leases.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with FTA 
regulations, "Capital Leases," 49 C.F.R. Part 639, and any revision thereto. 
  b. Leases Involving Certificates of Participation.  The Contractor agrees to obtain the 
Department’s concurrence before entering into any leasing arrangement involving the issuance of 
certificates of participation in connection with the acquisition of any capital asset. 
 
 Section 16.  Hold Harmless. Except as prohibited or otherwise limited by State law or except to 
the extent that FTA or the Department determines otherwise in writing, upon request by the Federal or 
State Government, the Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal and State 
Government and its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties 
against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by 
the Contractor of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, 
translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under the Project.  The 
Contractor shall not be required to indemnify the Federal or State Government for any such liability 
caused by the wrongful acts of Federal or State employees or agents. 
 
 Section 17.  Use of Real Property, Equipment, and Supplies. The Contractor understands 



05/27/2015  Page 20 of 35 

and agrees that the Federal/State Government retains a Federal/State interest in any real property, 
equipment, and supplies financed with Federal/State assistance (Project property) until, and to the 
extent, that the Federal/State Government relinquishes its Federal/State interest in that Project 
property.  With respect to any Project property financed with Federal/State assistance under this 
Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with the following provisions, except to the extent FTA or 
the Department determines otherwise in writing: 
a. Use of Project Property.  The Contractor agrees to maintain continuing control of the use of 
Project property to the extent satisfactory to FTA.  The Contractor agrees to use Project property for 
appropriate Project purposes (which may include joint development purposes that generate program 
income, both during and after the award period and used to support public transportation activities) for 
the duration of the useful life of that property, as required by FTA or the Department.  Should the 
Contractor unreasonably delay or fail to use Project property during the useful life of that property, the 
Contractor agrees that it may be required to return the entire amount of the Federal and State 
assistance expended on that property.  The Contractor further agrees to notify the Department 
immediately when any Project property is withdrawn from Project use or when any Project property is 
used in a manner substantially different from the representations the Contractor has made in its 
Application or in the Project Description for this Agreement for the Project.  In turn, the Department 
shall be responsible for notifying FTA. 
 
b. General. The Contractor agrees to comply with the property management standards of 49 C.F.R. 
§§ 18.31 through 18.33, including any amendments thereto, and with other applicable Federal and 
State regulations and directives.  Any exception to the requirements of 49 C.F.R. §§ 18.31 through 
18.33 requires the express approval of the Federal Government in writing.  The Contractor also 
consents to the Department’s reimbursement requirements for premature dispositions of certain Project 
equipment, as set forth in Subsection 17i of this Agreement. 
 
c. Maintenance and Inspection of Vehicles, Facilities and Other Project Equipment .  The Contractor 
shall maintain all project equipment at a high level of cleanliness, safety, and mechanical soundness in 
accordance with the minimum maintenance requirements recommended by the manufacturer.  The 
Contractor shall register all vehicle maintenance activities in a Comprehensive Maintenance Record or 
an electronic version of same.  The Department shall conduct frequent inspections to confirm proper 
maintenance pursuant to this Subsection 17c of this Agreement and the State Management Plan.  The 
Contractor shall collect and submit to the Department at such time and in such manner as it may 
require information for the purpose of the Department’s Public Transportation Management System 
(PTMS). 
The Contractor shall maintain the facility, including any and all equipment installed into or added on to 
the facility as part of the Project, in good operating order and at a high level of cleanliness, safety and 
mechanical soundness in accordance with good facility maintenance and upkeep practices and in 
accordance with the minimum maintenance requirements recommended by the manufacturer for all 
equipment installed in or added to the facility as part of the Project.  Such maintenance shall be in 
compliance with applicable Federal and state regulations or directives that may be issued, except to the 
extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing.  The Department shall conduct inspections 
as it deems necessary to confirm proper maintenance on the part of the Contractor pursuant to 
Subsection 17c of the Agreement and the State Management Plan.  Such inspections may or may not 
be scheduled ahead of time, but will be conducted such that they shall not significantly interfere with the 
ongoing and necessary functions for which the Project was designed.  The Contractor shall make every 
effort to accommodate such inspections by the Department in accordance with the Department’s 
desired schedule for such inspections.  The Contractor shall collect and submit to the Department at 
such time and in such manner as the Department may require information for the purpose of the 
Department’s Public Transportation Management System (PTMS) and any and all other reports the 
Department deems necessary.  The Contractor shall also maintain and make available to the 
Department upon its demand all documents, policies, procedures, purchase orders, bills of sale, 
internal work orders and similar items that demonstrate the Contractor’s maintenance of the facility in 
good operating order and at a high level of cleanliness, safety and mechanical soundness. 



05/27/2015  Page 21 of 35 

 
d. Records.  The Contractor agrees to keep satisfactory records pertaining to the use of Project 
property, and submit to the Department upon request such information as may be required to assure 
compliance with this Section 14 of this Agreement. 
 
e. Incidental Use.  The Contractor agrees that: 
(1) General.  Any incidental use of Project property will not exceed that permitted under applicable 

Federal and State laws, regulations, and directives. 
 
(2) Alternative Fueling Facilities.  As authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(p), any incidental use of its 

federally financed alternative fueling facilities and equipment by non-transit public entities and 
private entities will be permitted, only if the: 

 (a)  Incidental use does not interfere with the Contractor’s Project or public transportation 
operations; 

 
 (b)  Contractor fully recaptures all costs related to the incidental use from the non-transit public 

entity or private entity; 
 
 (c)  Contractor uses revenues received from the incidental use in excess of costs for planning, 

capital, and operating expenses that are incurred in providing public transportation; and 
     
 (d)  Private entities pay all applicable excise taxes on fuel. 
 
f.  Title to Vehicles.  The Certificate of Title to all vehicles purchased under the Approved Budget for 
this Project shall be in the name of the Contractor.  The Department’s Public Transportation Division 
shall be recorded on the Certificate of Title as first lien-holder.  In the event of project termination or 
breach of contract provisions, the Contractor shall, upon written notification by the Department, 
surrender Project equipment and/or transfer the Certificate(s) of Title for Project equipment to the 
Department or the Department's designee.  
 
g.  Encumbrance of Project Property.  The Contractor agrees to maintain satisfactory continuing 
control of Project property as follows: 
 
(1) Written Transactions.  The Contractor agrees that it will not execute any transfer of title, lease, 

lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, third party contract, subagreement, grant anticipation 
note, alienation, innovative finance arrangement (such as a cross border lease, leveraged 
lease, or otherwise), or any other obligation pertaining to Project property, that in any way would 
affect the continuing Federal and State interest in that Project property. 
 

(2) Oral Transactions.  The Contractor agrees that it will not obligate itself in any manner to any 
third party with respect to Project property. 

 
(3) Other Actions.  The Contractor agrees that it will not take any action adversely affecting the 

Federal and State interest in or impair the Contractor's continuing control of the use of Project 
property. 
 

h. Transfer of Project Property.  The Contractor understands and agrees as follows: 
 
(1) Contractor Request. The Contractor may transfer any Project property financed with Federal 

assistance authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 to a local governmental authority to be used 
for any public purpose with no further obligation to the Federal Government, provided the 
transfer is approved by the Federal Transit Administrator and conforms with the requirements of  
49 U.S.C. §§ 5334(h)(1) through 5334(h)(3). 

 



05/27/2015  Page 22 of 35 

(2) Federal/State Government Direction.  The Contractor agrees that the Federal or State 
Government may direct the disposition of, and even require the Contractor to transfer title to any 
Project property financed with Federal/State assistance under this Agreement. 

 
(3) Leasing Project Property to Another Party.   
 (a) General. Prior to entering into any third party contract for leasing Project property to 

another party, the Contractor agrees to obtain approval from the Department.  If the 
Contractor leases any Project property to another party, the Contractor agrees to retain 
ownership of the leased Project property, and assure that the lessee will use the Project 
property appropriately, through a written lease between the Contractor and lessee.  The 
Contractor agrees to use the standard lease agreement form provided by the Department 
and to provide a copy of the signed, executed lease agreement to the Department.  In 
accordance with Subsection 5g of this Agreement, regardless of assignment of work to be 
completed under this Project or lease of Project assets to a third party, it is the 
Contractor's primary responsibility to comply with Federal and State requirements of this 
Agreement and assure the compliance of any third party contractors. 

 
 (b)  Lease of Vehicles. The lease of vehicles acquired with financial assistance authorized for 

49 U.S.C. 5311 to any third party is contingent upon approval of the Department.  It is 
allowable to lease vehicles to another Community Transportation System providing 
general public service in the State of North Carolina, upon approval of the Department.  It 
is also allowable for vehicles to be leased to a third party operator or transportation 
management company that operates the transit service within a county/region under 
contract to the Contractor, upon approval of the Department.  The Contractor agrees to 
use the vehicle lease agreement provided by the Department when vehicles are leased, 
even if on a short-term basis, to another Community Transportation System or a 
management company.  The Contractor agrees to obtain written approval from the 
Department before the lease is executed and forward a copy of the signed, executed lease 
agreement to the Department.  The Contractor, as a Community Transportation System, 
shall not lease vehicles to human service agencies, county agencies/government, 
community agencies or school systems.  The Contractor agrees not to loan vehicle(s) to 
other agencies/individuals for short-term use, even during hours that the transportation 
system is not providing service, as the vehicle(s) will generally be used to provide service 
that is “closed-door,” i.e., not open to the general public.  

 
i. Disposition of Project Property.  With prior Department approval, the Contractor may sell, 
transfer, or lease Project property and use the proceeds to reduce the gross project cost of other 
eligible capital public transportation projects to the extent permitted by 49 U.S.C. § 5334(h)(4).  The 
Contractor also agrees that the Department shall determine “useful life” for all Project property and that 
the Contractor will use Project property continuously and appropriately throughout the useful life of that 
property.  Upon the end of the period of useful life, the Contractor may dispose of Project property after 
notifying and receiving disposition instructions from the Department. 
(1)  Project Property Whose Useful Life Has Expired.  When the useful life of Project property has 

expired, the Contractor agrees to comply with the Department's disposition requirements. 
 
(2)  Project Property Prematurely Withdrawn from Use.  For Project property withdrawn from 

appropriate use before its useful life has expired, the Contractor agrees as follows: 
 (a) Notification Requirement.  The Contractor agrees to notify the Department immediately 

when any Project property is prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use, whether by 
planned withdrawal, misuse, or casualty loss. 

 
 (b) Calculating the Fair Market Value of Prematurely Withdrawn Project Property.  The 

Contractor agrees that the Federal/State Government retains a Federal/State interest in 
the fair market value of Project property prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use.  The 



05/27/2015  Page 23 of 35 

amount of the Federal/State interest in the Project property shall be determined by the 
ratio of the Federal/State assistance awarded for the property to the actual cost of the 
property.  The Contractor agrees that the fair market value of Project property prematurely 
withdrawn from use will be calculated as follows: 

  1. Equipment and Supplies.  The Contractor agrees that the fair market value of Project 
equipment and supplies shall be calculated by straight-line depreciation of that property, 
based on the useful life of the equipment or supplies as established by the Department.  
The fair market value of Project equipment and supplies shall be the value immediately 
before the occurrence prompting the withdrawal of the equipment or supplies from 
appropriate use.  In the case of Project equipment or supplies lost or damaged by fire, 
casualty, or natural disaster, the fair market value shall be calculated on the basis of the 
condition of that equipment or supplies immediately before the fire, casualty, or natural 
disaster, or the amount of insurance coverage, whichever is greater. 

 
  2. Real Property.  The Contractor agrees that the fair market value of real property 

financed under the Project shall be determined by FTA either on the basis of competent 
appraisal based on an appropriate date approved by FTA, as provided by 49 C.F.R. Part 
24, by straight line depreciation of improvements to real property coupled with the value of 
the land as determined by FTA on the basis of appraisal, or other Federal law or 
regulations that may be applicable. 

 
  3. Exceptional Circumstances.  The Contractor agrees that the Department may require 

the use of another method to determine the fair market value of Project property.  In 
unusual circumstances, the Contractor may request that another reasonable valuation 
method be used including, but not limited to, accelerated depreciation, comparable sales, 
or established market values.  In determining whether to approve such a request, the 
Department may consider any action taken, omission made, or unfortunate occurrence 
suffered by the Contractor with respect to the preservation of Project property withdrawn 
from appropriate use. 

 
 (c) Financial Obligations to the Federal/State Government.  The Contractor agrees to remit to 

the Department the Federal and State interest in the fair market value of any Project 
property prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use.  In turn, the Department shall be 
responsible to remit the Federal interest to the FTA.  In the case of fire, casualty, or natural 
disaster, the Contractor may fulfill its obligations to remit the Federal and State interest by 
either: 

  1. Investing an amount equal to the remaining Federal and State interest in like-kind 
property that is eligible for assistance within the scope of the Project that provided 
Federal/State assistance for the Project property prematurely withdrawn from use; or 

 
  2. Returning to the Department an amount equal to the remaining Federal and State 

interest in the withdrawn Project property. 
 
j. Insurance Proceeds.  If the Contractor receives insurance proceeds as a result of damage or 
destruction to the Project property, the Contractor agrees to: 
(1) Apply those insurance proceeds to the cost of replacing the damaged or destroyed Project 

property taken out of service, or  
 
(2) Return to the Department an amount equal to the remaining Federal and State interest in the 

damaged or destroyed Project property. 
 
k. Transportation - Hazardous Materials.  The Contractor agrees to comply with applicable 
requirements of U.S. Pipeline and Hazardous Materials Safety Administration regulations, "Shippers - 
General Requirements for Shipments and Packaging," 49 C.F.R. Part 173, in connection with the 



05/27/2015  Page 24 of 35 

transportation of any hazardous materials. 
 
l. Misused or Damaged Project Property.  If any damage to Project property results from abuse or 
misuse occurring with the Contractor 's knowledge and consent, the Contractor agrees to restore the 
Project property to its original condition or refund the value of the Federal and State interest in that 
property, as the Department may require. 
 
m. Responsibilities after Project Closeout.  The Contractor agrees that Project closeout by the 
Department will not change the Contractor’s Project property management responsibilities as stated in 
Section 14 of this Agreement, and as may be set forth in subsequent Federal and State laws, 
regulations, and directives, except to the extent the Department determines otherwise in writing. 
 
 Section 18.  Insurance:  The Contractor shall be responsible for protecting the state and/or 
federal financial interest in the facility construction/renovation and equipment purchased under 
this Agreement throughout the useful life.  The Contractor shall provide, as frequently and in 
such manner as the Department may require, written documentation that the facility and 
equipment are insured against loss in an amount equal to or greater than the state and/or 
federal share of the real value of the facility or equipment.  Failure of the Contractor to provide 
adequate insurance shall be considered a breach of contract and, after notification may result in 
termination of this Agreement.  In addition, other insurance requirements may apply, the 
Contractor agrees as follows: 
  a. Minimum Requirements.  At a minimum, the Contractor agrees to comply with the 
insurance requirements normally imposed by North Carolina State and local laws, regulations, and 
ordinances, except to the extent that the Department determines otherwise in writing.   
  b. Flood Hazards.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with the 
flood insurance purchase provisions of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, 42 
U.S.C. § 4012a(a), with respect to any Project activity involving construction or an acquisition having an 
insurable cost of $10,000 or more. 
 
 Section 19.  Relocation. When relocation of individuals or businesses is required, the 
Contractor agrees as follows: 
  a. Relocation Protections.  The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5324(a), 
which requires compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4601 et seq.; and U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs," 49 
C.F.R. Part 24, which provide for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced and persons whose 
property is acquired as a result of Federal and federally assisted programs.  [See, new U.S. DOT final 
rule, “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted 
Programs,” 49 C.F.R. Part 24, at 70 Fed.  Reg. 590 et seq., January 4, 2005.]  These requirements 
apply to relocation in connection with all interests in real property acquired for the Project regardless of 
Federal participation in the costs of that real property. 
  b. Nondiscrimination in Housing.  In carrying out its responsibilities to provide housing 
that may be required for compliance with Federal relocation requirements for individuals, the Contractor 
agrees to comply with Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 3601 et seq., 
and with Executive Order No. 12892, "Leadership and Coordination of Fair Housing in Federal 
Programs: Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing," 42 U.S.C. § 3608 note. 
  c. Prohibition Against Use of Lead-Based Paint.  In undertaking construction or 
rehabilitation of residential structures on behalf of individuals affected by real property acquisition in 
connection with implementing the Project, the Contractor agrees that it will not use lead-based paint, 
consistent with the prohibitions of Section 401(b) of the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act, 42 
U.S.C. § 4831(b), and the provisions of U.S. Housing and Urban Development regulations, “Lead-
based Paint Poisoning in Certain Residential Structures." 
 
 Section 20. Real Property. For real property acquired with Federal assistance, the Contractor 



05/27/2015  Page 25 of 35 

agrees as follows: 
a. Land Acquisition.  The Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 5324(a), which requires 
compliance with the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 
as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4601 et seq.; and with U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Relocation 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for Federal and Federally Assisted Programs," 49 C.F.R. Part 
24.  [See, new U.S. DOT final rule, “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition for 
Federal and Federally Assisted Programs,” 49 C.F.R. Part 24, 70 Fed. Reg. 590 et seq., January 4, 
2005.]  These requirements apply to all interests in real property acquired for Project purposes 
regardless of Federal participation in the cost of that real property. 
 
b. Covenant Assuring Nondiscrimination.  The Contractor agrees to include a covenant in the title 
of the real property acquired for the Project to assure nondiscrimination during the useful life of the 
Project. 
 
c. Recording Title to Real Property.  To the extent required by FTA and the Department, the 
Contractor agrees to record the Federal and/or State’s interest in title to real property used in 
connection with the Project and/or execute at the request of the Department any instrument or 
documents evidencing or related to the State’s interest in the Project’s property.  
(1) As a condition of its participation in a Facility Project, the Department will retain a secured 

interest in the Project for the estimated life of the Project, expected to be forty  (40) years, 
following completion of the Project; or the prorated share of the original investment or current 
fair market value (the higher value of the two); whichever comes first. 

   
d. Department Approval of Changes in Real Property Ownership.  The Contractor agrees that it 
will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the terms of the real property title, or other interest in 
the site and facilities used in the Project without prior written permission and instructions from the 
Department. 
 
e. Disposal of Real Property.   
(1) If useful life is not attained, upon the sale or disposition of any Project facility, the Department 

shall be entitled to a refund of the original state and/or federal investment or the state and/or 
federal prorated share of the current fair market value of the project facility, whichever is 
greater.  

 
(2) For the purpose of this Agreement, the term “any sale or disposition of the Project facility” shall 

mean any sale or disposition of the facility for a use not consistent with purposes for which the 
state and/or federal share was originally granted pursuant to the Project Agreement, or for a use 
consistent with such purposes wherein the transferee in the sale or disposition does not enter 
into an assignment and assumption agreement with the Contractor with respect to the 
Contractor’s obligation under this Agreement or the Grant Agreement, so that the transferee 
becomes obligated as if the transferee had been the original party. 

 
  
 
Section 21.  Employee Protections. 
  a. Construction Activities.  The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures the 
compliance of each third party contractor and each subrecipient at any tier of the Project, with the 
following laws and regulations providing protections for construction employees: 
   (1) Davis-Bacon Act, as amended,   49 U.S.C. § 5333(a), which requires 
compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 et seq., and implementing U.S. DOL 
regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and 
Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts 
Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5; 



05/27/2015  Page 26 of 35 

   (2) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 
3701 et seq., specifically, the wage and hour requirements of Section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 
3702, and implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts 
Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable 
to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 
C.F.R. Part 5; and the safety requirements of Section 107 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3704, and 
implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Safety and Health Regulations for Construction," 29 C.F.R. Part 
1926; and 
   (3) Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act, as amended, 18 U.S.C. § 874 and 40 U.S.C. 
Section 3145  and implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public 
Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in part by Loans or Grants from the United States," 29 
C.F.R. Part 3. 
  b. Activities Not Involving Construction.  The Contractor agrees to comply, and assures 
the compliance of each third party contractor and each subrecipient at any tier of the Project, with the 
employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and 
Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq., in particular the wage and hour 
requirements of Section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor 
Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction 
(also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract 
Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5. 
  c. Activities Involving Commerce.  The Contractor agrees that the provisions of the Fair 
Labor Standards Act, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq., apply to employees performing Project work involving 
commerce. 
  d. Public Transportation Employee Protective Arrangements for Projects in 
Nonurbanized Areas Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311.  The Contractor agrees to comply with the terms 
and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. 
Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, U.S. DOL implementing procedures, and 
any revisions thereto. 
 Section 22.  Environmental Protections. The Contractor recognizes that many Federal and 
State laws imposing environmental and resource conservation requirements may apply to the Project.  
Some, but not all, of the major Federal laws that may affect the Project include: the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 through 4335; the Clean Air Act, as 
amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 through7671q and scattered sections of Title 29, United States Code; the 
Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 through 1377; the Resource Conservation and 
Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6901 through 6992k; the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 9601 through 9675, as well as 
environmental provisions within Title 23, United States Code, and 49 U.S.C. chapter 53.  The 
Contractor also recognizes that U.S. EPA, FHWA and other Federal agencies have issued, and in the 
future are expected to issue, Federal regulations and directives that may affect the Project.  Thus, the 
Contractor agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each third party contractor, with any 
applicable Federal laws, regulations and directives as the Federal Government are in effect now or 
become effective in the future, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in 
writing.  Listed below are environmental provisions of particular concern to FTA and the Department.  
The Contractor understands and agrees that those laws, regulations, and directives may not constitute 
the Contractor's entire obligation to meet all Federal environmental and resource conservation 
requirements. 
  a. National Environmental Policy.  Federal assistance is contingent upon the 
Contractor’s facilitating FTA’s compliance with all applicable requirements and implementing 
regulations of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, as amended, (NEPA) 42 U.S.C. §§ 4321 
through 4335 (as restricted by 42 U.S.C. § 5159, if applicable); Executive Order No. 11514, as 
amended, "Protection and Enhancement of Environmental Quality," 42 U.S.C. § 4321 note; FTA 
statutory requirements at 49 U.S.C. § 5324(b); U.S. Council on Environmental Quality regulations 
pertaining to compliance with NEPA, 40 C.F.R. Parts 1500  through 1508; and joint FHWA/FTA 



05/27/2015  Page 27 of 35 

regulations, "Environmental Impact and Related Procedures," 23 C.F.R. Part 771 and 49 C.F.R. Part 
622, and subsequent Federal environmental protection regulations that may be promulgated.   
 
The Recipient agrees to comply with the applicable provisions of 23 U.S.C. Section 139 pertaining to 
environmental procedures, and 23 U.S.C. Section 326, pertaining to State responsibility for categorical 
exclusions, in accordance with the provisions of joint FHWA/FTA final guidance, “SAFETA-LU 
Environmental Review Process (Public Law 109-59),” 71 fed. Reg. 66576 et seq., November 15, 2006 
and any applicable Federal directives that may be issued at a later date, except to the extent that FTA 
determines otherwise in writing. 
 
  b. Air Quality.  Except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in 
writing, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable Federal laws, regulations, and directives 
implementing the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 through 7671q, and: 
   (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of Section 
176(c) of the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7506(c), consistent with the joint FHWA/FTA document, 
“Interim Guidance for Implementing Key SAFETEA-LU Provisions on Planning, Environment, and Air 
Quality for Joint FHWA/FTA Authorities,” dated September 2, 2005, and any subsequent applicable 
Federal directives that may be issued; with U.S. EPA regulations, "Conformity to State or Federal 
Implementation Plans of Transportation Plans, Programs, and Projects Developed, Funded or 
Approved Under Title 23 US.C. or the Federal Transit Act," 40 C.F.R. Part 51, Subpart T; and 
"Determining Conformity of Federal Actions to State or Federal Implementation Plans," 40 C.F.R. Part 
93, and any subsequent Federal conformity regulations that may be promulgated.  To support the 
requisite air quality conformity finding for the Project, the Contractor agrees to implement each air 
quality mitigation or control measure incorporated in the Project.  The Contractor further agrees that 
any Project identified in an applicable State Implementation Plan (SIP) as a Transportation Control 
Measure will be wholly consistent with the design concept and scope of the Project described in the 
SIP. 
   (2) U.S. EPA also imposes requirements implementing the Clean Air Act, as 
amended, which may apply to public transportation operators, particularly operators of large public 
transportation bus fleets.  Accordingly, the Contractor agrees to comply with the following U.S. EPA 
regulations to the extent they apply to the Project: "Control of Air Pollution from Mobile Sources,” 40 
C.F.R. Part 85; "Control of Air Pollution from New and In-Use Motor Vehicles and New and In-Use 
Motor Vehicle Engines," 40 C.F.R. Part 86; and "Fuel Economy of Motor Vehicles," 40 C.F.R. Part 600. 
   (3) The Contractor agrees to comply with notice of violating facility provisions of 
Executive Order No. 11738, "Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans," 42 U.S.C. § 7606 note. 
  c. Clean Water.  Except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in 
writing, the Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable Federal regulations and directives issued 
pursuant to the Clean Water Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1251 through 1377.  In addition: 
   (1) The Contractor agrees to protect underground sources of drinking water 
consistent with the provisions of the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 300f 
through 300j-6. 
   (2) The Contractor agrees to comply with notice of violating facility provisions of 
Executive Order No. 11738, "Administration of the Clean Air Act and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act with Respect to Federal Contracts, Grants, or Loans," 42 U.S.C. § 7606 note. 
  d. Use of Public Lands.  The Contractor agrees that in implementing its Project, it will 
not use any publicly owned land from a park, recreation area, or wildlife or waterfowl refuge of national, 
State, or local significance as determined by the Federal, State, or local officials having jurisdiction 
thereof, and it will not use any land from a historic site of national, state, or local significance, unless the 
Federal Government makes the findings required by 49 U.S.C. §§ 303(b) and 303(c).  The Contractor 
also agrees to comply with joint FHWA/FTA regulations, “Parks, Recreation Areas, Wildlife and 
Waterfowl Refuges, and Historic Sites,” 23 C.F.R. Parts 771 and 774, and 49 C.F.R. Part 622, when 
promulgated. 



05/27/2015  Page 28 of 35 

  e. Wild and Scenic Rivers.  The Contractor agrees to comply with applicable provisions 
of the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1271 through 1287, relating to 
protecting components of the national wild and scenic rivers system; and to the extent applicable, to 
comply with U.S. Forest Service regulations, “Wild and Scenic Rivers,” 36 C.F.R. Part 297, and with 
U.S. Bureau of Land Management regulations, “Management Areas,” 43 C.F.R. Part 8350. 
  f. Coastal Zone Management.  The Contractor agrees to assure Project consistency 
with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 
1972, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 1451 through 1465. 
  g. Wetlands.  The Contractor agrees to facilitate compliance with the protections for 
wetlands in accordance with Executive Order No. 11990, as amended, "Protection of Wetlands," at 42 
U.S.C. § 4321 note. 
  h. Floodplains.  The Contractor agrees to comply with the flood hazards protections in 
floodplains in accordance with Executive Order No. 11988, as amended, "Floodplain Management," 42 
U.S.C. § 4321 note. 
  i. Endangered Species and Fisheries Conservation.  The Contractor agrees to comply 
with protections for endangered species set forth in the Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, 
16 U.S.C. §§ 1531 through 1544, and the Magnuson Stevens Fisheries Conservation Act, as amended, 
16 U.S.C. §§ 1801 et seq. 
  j. Historic Preservation.  The Contractor agrees to encourage compliance with the 
Federal historic and archaeological preservation requirements of Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act, as amended, 16 U.S.C. § 470f; with Executive Order No. 11593, "Protection and 
Enhancement of the Cultural Environment," 16 U.S.C. § 470 note; and with the Archaeological and 
Historic Preservation Act of 1974, as amended, 16 U.S.C. §§ 469a through 469c, as follows: 
   (1) In accordance with U.S. Advisory Council on Historic Preservation regulations, 
"Protection of Historic and Cultural Properties," 36 C.F.R. Part 800, the Contractor agrees to consult 
with the State Historic Preservation Officer concerning investigations to identify properties and 
resources included in or eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places that may be 
affected by the Project, and agrees to notify FTA of those properties that are affected. 
   (2) The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable Federal regulations and 
directives to avoid or mitigate adverse effects on those historic properties, except to the extent the 
Federal Government determines otherwise in writing. 
  k. Indian Sacred Sites.  The Contractor agrees to facilitate compliance with the 
preservation of places and objects of religious importance to American Indians, Eskimos, Aleuts, and 
Native Hawaiians, in compliance with the American Indian Religious Freedom Act, 42 U.S.C. § 1996, 
and with Executive Order No. 13007, “Indian Sacred Sites,” 42 U.S.C. § 1996 note, except to the extent 
the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing. 
  l. Mitigation of Adverse Environmental Effects.  Should the proposed Project cause or 
result in adverse environmental effects, the Contractor agrees to take all reasonable measures to 
minimize the impact of those adverse effects, as required by 49 U.S.C. § 5324(b), and other applicable 
Federal laws and regulations, including 23 C.F.R. Part 771 and 49 C.F.R. Part 622.  The Contractor 
agrees to comply with all environmental mitigation measures that may be identified as commitments in 
applicable environmental documents, (i.e., environmental assessments, environmental impact 
statements, memoranda of agreement, and other documents as required by 49 U.S.C. § 303) and 
agrees to comply with any conditions the Federal Government might impose in a finding of no 
significant impact or record of decision.  The Contractor agrees that those environmental mitigation 
measures are incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement for the Project.  The 
Contractor also agrees that any deferred mitigation measures will be incorporated by reference and 
made part of this Agreement for the Project as soon as agreement with the Federal Government is 
reached.  The Contractor agrees that those mitigation measures agreed upon may not be modified or 
withdrawn without the express written approval of the Federal Government. 
 Section 23. Energy Conservation. The Contractor agrees to comply with the North Carolina 
Energy Policy Act of 1975 (N.C.G.S. 113B) issued in accordance with the Energy Policy and 
Conservation Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6321 et seq., except to the extent that the Department 
determines otherwise in writing.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to perform an energy 



05/27/2015  Page 29 of 35 

assessment for any building constructed, reconstructed, or modified with FTA assistance, as provided 
in FTA regulations, “Requirements for Energy Assessments,” 49 C.F.R. Part 622, Subpart C. 
 
 Section 24. Charter Service Operations. 
  The Contractor acknowledges that Federal and State requirements prohibit the use of 
vehicles, facilities and equipment funded by Federal or State grant programs for the provision of charter 
services unless it is determined that there are no willing and able charter operators in the service area.  
Federal law does not provide exceptions to these regulations for vehicles that are loaned or leased to 
other agencies or entities. 
 The Contractor agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in 
connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 will engage in charter service 
operations, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d) and FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49 
C.F.R. Part 604, and any subsequent Charter Service regulations or FTA directives that may be issued, 
except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing.  Any charter service agreement required 
by FTA regulations is incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement for the Project.  The 
Contractor understands and agrees that in addition to any remedy specified in the charter service 
agreement, if a pattern of violations of that agreement is found, the violator will be barred from receiving 
Federal transit assistance in an amount to be determined by FTA or U.S. DOT. 
 
 Section 25. School Transportation Operations. The Contractor agrees that neither it nor any 
public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. 
chapter 53 will engage in school transportation operations for the transportation of students or school 
personnel exclusively in competition with private school transportation operators, except as authorized 
by 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as applicable, and FTA regulations, "School Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. 
Part 605, and any subsequent School Transportation Operations regulations or FTA directives that may 
be issued.  Any school transportation operations agreement required by FTA regulations is 
incorporated by reference and made part of this Agreement for the Project.  The Contractor 
understands and agrees that if it or an operator violates that school transportation operations 
agreement the violator will be barred from receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount to be 
determined by FTA or U.S. DOT. 
 
 Section 26. Geographic Information and Related Spatial Data.  In accordance with U.S. OMB 
Circular A-16, “Coordination of Geographic Information and Related Spatial Data Activities,” August 
19,2002, the Contractor agrees to implement its Project so that any activities involving spatial data and 
geographic information systems activities financed directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, by Federal 
assistance, consistent with the National Spatial Data infrastructure promulgated by the Federal 
Geographic Data Committee, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. 
 
 Section 27.  Motor Carrier Safety.  To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply 
with, and assures the compliance of its subrecipients, lessees, and third party contractors with, 
applicable provisions of the following regulations promulgated by the U.S. Federal Motor Carrier Safety 
Administration (U.S. FMCSA): 

a. Financial Responsibility.  The Contractor agrees as follows: 
(1) To the extent that the Contractor is engaged in interstate commerce and 

not within a defined commercial zone, the Contractor agrees to comply 
with U.S. FMCSA regulations, “Minimum Levels of Financial 
Responsibility for Motor Carriers,” 49 U.S.C. Part 387, dealing with 
economic registration and insurance requirements.  For recipients of 
Federal assistance under 49 U.S.C. §§ 5307, 5310, or 5311, 49 C.F.R. 
Part 387 is modified by 49 U.S.C. § 31138(e)(4) which reduces the 
amount of insurance required of such recipients to the highest amount of 
any state in which the transit provider operates. 

(2) To the extent that the Contractor is engaged in interstate commerce and 
not within a defined commercial zone and is not a unit of government 



05/27/2015  Page 30 of 35 

(defined as Federal Government, a state, any political subdivision of a 
state or any agency established under a compact between states), the 
Contractor agrees to comply with U.S. FMCSA regulations, Subpart  B, 
“Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations,” at 49 CFR Parts 390 
through 396. 

b. Driver Qualifications.  The Contractor agrees to comply with U.S. FMCSA’s 
regulations, “Commercial Driver’s License Standards, Requirements, and Penalties,” 
49 C.F.R. Part 383. 

c. Substance Abuse Rules for Motor Carriers.  The Contractor agrees to comply with 
U.S. FMCSA’s regulations, “Drug and Alcohol Use and Testing Requirements,” 49 
C.F.R. Part 382, which apply to transit providers that operate a commercial motor 
vehicle that has a gross weight rating over 26,000 pounds or is designed to transport 
sixteen (16) or more passengers, including the driver. 

 
 Section 28. Substance Abuse. To the extent applicable, the Contractor agrees to comply with 
the following Federal substance abuse regulations: 
  a. Drug-Free Workplace. U.S. OMB Guidance, “Goverernmentwide Requirements for 
Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance).” 2 C.F. R. Part 182, U.S. DOT regulations, 
“Governmentwide Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Financial Assistance), 49 C.F.R. Part 32, 
that implement the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, 41 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq. 
  b. Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use.  FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol 
Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 49 C.F.R. Part 655, that implement 49 U.S.C. § 
5331. 
 Section 29. Seat Belt Use. In accordance with Executive Order No. 13043, “Increasing Seat Belt 
Use in the United States,” April 16, 1997, 23 U. S. C. § 402 note, the Contractor is encouraged to adopt 
and promote on-the-job seat belt use policies and programs for its employees and other personnel that 
operate company-owned, rented, or personally operated vehicles, and to include this provision in any 
third party contracts, third party subcontracts, or subagreements involving the Project. 
 
 Section 30. Text Messaging While Driving.   In accordance with Executive Order No. 13513, 
Federal Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving October 1, 2009, 23 U.S.C.A. § 402 
note, and DOT Order 3902.10, Text Messaging While December 30, 2009, the Grantee is encouraged 
to comply with the term of the following Special Provision.  
 
a. Definitions. As used in this Special Provision: 
(1) “Driving” means operating a motor vehicle on a roadway, including while temporarily stationary 
because of traffic, a traffic light, stop sign, or otherwise. “Driving does not include being in your vehicle 
(with or without the motor running) in a location off the roadway where it is safe and legal to remain 
stationary.  
(2) “Text Messaging” means reading from or entering data into any handheld or other electric device, 
including the purpose of short message service texting, e-mailing, instant messaging, obtaining 
navigating information, or engaging in any other form of electronic data retrieval or electronic data 
communication. The term does not include the use of a cell phone or other electronic device for the 
limited purpose of entering a telephone number to make an outgoing call or answer an incoming call, 
unless the practice is prohibited by State or local law.  
b. Safety. The Grantee is encouraged to: 
(1) Adopt and enforce workplace safety policies to decrease crashes caused by distracted drivers 
including policies to ban text messaging while driving – 
(a) Grantee-owned or Grantee-rented vehicles or Government-owned, leased or rented vehicles; 
(b) Privately-owned vehicles when on official Project related business or when performing any work for 
or on behalf of the Project; or 
(c) Any vehicle, on or off duty, and using an employer supplied electronic device.  
(2) Conduct workplace safety initiatives in a manner commensurate with the Grantee’s size, such as: 



05/27/2015  Page 31 of 35 

(a) Establishment of new rules and programs or re-evaluation of existing programs to prohibit text 
messaging while driving; and 
(b) Education, awareness, and other outreach to employees about the safety risks associated with 
texting while driving.  
(3) Include this Special Provision in its subagreements with its subrecipients and third party contracts 
and also encourage its subrecipients, lessees, and third party contractors to comply with the terms of 
this Special Provision, and include this Special Condition in each subagreement, lease, and third party 
contract at each tier financed with Federal assistance provided by the Federal Government.  
 
 Section 31. Protection of Sensitive Security Information. To the extent applicable, the 
Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. § 40119(b) and implementing U.S. DOT regulations, 
“Protection of Sensitive Security Information,” 49 C.F.R. Part 15, and with 49 U.S.C. § 114(s) and 
implementing U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Transportation Security Administration 
regulations, “Protection of Sensitive Security Information,” 49 C.F.R. Part 1520. 
 
 Section 32.  Disputes, Breaches, Defaults, or Other Litigation. The Contractor agrees that 
FTA and the Department have a vested interest in the settlement of any dispute, breach, default, or 
litigation involving the Project.  Accordingly: 
  a. Notification to the Department.  The Contractor agrees to notify the Department in 
writing of any current or prospective major dispute, breach, default, or litigation that may affect the 
Federal/State Government's interests in the Project or the Federal/State Government's administration 
or enforcement of Federal/State laws or regulations.  If the Contractor seeks to name the Federal/State 
Government as a party to litigation for any reason, in any forum, the Contractor agrees to inform the 
Department in writing before doing so.  In turn, the Department shall be responsible for notifying FTA. 
  b. Federal/State Interest in Recovery.  The Federal/State Government retains the right 
to a proportionate share, based on the percentage of the Federal/State share awarded for the Project, 
of proceeds derived from any third party recovery, except that the Contractor may return any liquidated 
damages recovered to its Project Account in lieu of returning the Federal/State share to the 
Department. 
  c. Enforcement.  The Contractor agrees to pursue all legal rights provided within any 
third party contract. 
  d. FTA and Department Concurrence.  The FTA and the Department reserve the right 
to concur in any compromise or settlement of any claim involving the Project and the Contractor. 
  e. Alternative Dispute Resolution.  The Department encourages the Contractor to use 
alternative dispute resolution procedures, as may be appropriate. 
  
 Section 33.  Amendments/Revisions to the Project. The Contractor agrees that a change in 
Project circumstances causing an inconsistency with the terms of this Agreement for the Project will 
require an amendment or revision to this Agreement for the Project signed by the original signatories 
or their authorized designees or successors.  The Contractor agrees that a change in the fundamental 
information submitted in its Application will also require an Amendment to its Application or this 
Agreement for the Project.  The Contractor agrees that the project will not incur any costs 
associated with the amendment or revision before receiving notification of approval from the 
division.  The Contractor agrees that any requests for amendments and or revisions will be 
submitted in accordance with the policies and procedures established by FTA and the 
Department. 
  
 Section 34.  Information Obtained Through Internet Links. This Agreement may include 
electronic links/Web site addresses to Federal/State laws, regulations, and directives as well as other 
information.  The Department does not guarantee the accuracy of information accessed through such 
links.  Accordingly, the Contractor agrees that information obtained through any electronic link within 
this Agreement does not represent an official version of a Federal/State law, regulation, or directive, 
and might be inaccurate.  Thus, information obtained through such links is neither incorporated by 



05/27/2015  Page 32 of 35 

reference nor made part of this Agreement.  The Federal Register and the Code of Federal Regulations 
are the official sources for regulatory information pertaining to the Federal Government. 
  
 Section 35. Severability. If any provision of the FTA Master Agreement or this Agreement for the 
Project is determined invalid, the remainder of that Agreement shall not be affected if that remainder 
would continue to conform to the requirements of applicable Federal/State laws or regulations. 
 Section 36.  Termination of Agreement.   
  a. The Department of Transportation.  In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance 
with any of the provisions of this Agreement, the Department may suspend or terminate the Agreement 
by giving the Contractor thirty (30) days advance notice. Any failure to make reasonable progress on 
the Project or violation of this Agreement for the Project that endangers substantial performance of the 
Project shall provide sufficient grounds for the Department to terminate the Agreement for the Project.  
In general, termination of Federal and State assistance for the Project will not invalidate obligations 
properly incurred by the Contractor before the termination date to the extent those obligations cannot 
be canceled.  If, however, the Department determines that the Contractor has willfully misused 
Federal/State assistance by failing to make adequate progress, failing to make reasonable and 
appropriate use of Project property, or failing to comply with the terms of this Agreement for the Project, 
the Department reserves the right to require the Contractor to refund the entire amount of Federal and 
State assistance provided for the Project or any lesser amount as the Department may determine.  
Expiration of any Project time period established for the Project does not, by itself, constitute an 
expiration or termination of the Agreement for the Project.  The Department, before issuing notice of 
Agreement termination, shall allow the Contractor a reasonable opportunity to correct for 
noncompliance.  Upon noncompliance with the nondiscrimination section (Section 8) of this Agreement 
or with any of the said rules, regulations or orders, this Agreement may be cancelled, terminated, or 
suspended in whole or in part and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for contracts in accordance 
with procedures authorized in Executive Orders No. 11246 and No. 11375, and such other sanctions 
may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in the said Executive Order or by rule, regulation or 
order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. In addition to the Department’s rights 
of termination described above, the Department may terminate its participation in the Project by 
notifying and receiving the concurrence of the Contractor within sixty (60) days in advance of such 
termination. 
  b. The Contractor.  The Contractor may terminate its participation in the Project by 
notifying and receiving the concurrence of the Department sixty (60) days in advance of the termination.  
  



05/27/2015  Page 33 of 35 

  Section 37. Contract Administrators. All notices permitted or required to be given by one Party 
to the other and all questions about this Agreement from one Party to the other shall be addressed and 
delivered to the other Party’s Contract Administrator.    The name, postal address, street address, 
telephone number, fax number, and email address of the Parties’ respective initial Contract 
Administrators are set out below.  Either Party may change the name, postal address, street address, 
telephone number, fax number, or email address of its Contract Administrator by giving timely written 
notice to the other Party. 

For the Department: 
IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY ANY OTHER MEANS 
Name: MS MYRA FREEMAN Name: MS MYRA FREEMAN 
Title: FINANCIAL MANAGER Title: FINANCIAL MANAGER 
Agency: NCDOT/PTD Agency: NCDOT/PTD 
MSC: 1550 MSC Street 

Address: 
TRANSPORTATION BLDG 
1 S WILMINGTON ST RM 524 

City/Zip: RALEIGH NC 27699-1550 City: RALEIGH NC 
    
Phone: 919-707-4672   
Fax: 919-733-2304   
Email: MSFREEMAN1@NCDOT.GOV   
 

For the Contractor: 
IF DELIVERED BY US POSTAL SERVICE IF DELIVERED BY ANY OTHER MEANS 
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  
Agency:  Agency:  
Postal 
Address: 

 Street 
Address: 

 

City/Zip:  City:  
    
Phone:    
Fax:    
Email:    
 
 Section 38. Federal Certification Regarding Lobbying. The Contractor certifies, by signing this 
Agreement, its compliance with Subsection 6d of this Agreement. 
 Section 39. Federal Certification Regarding Debarment. The Contractor certifies, by signing this 
Agreement, its compliance with Subsection 6b of this Agreement. 
  Section 40. Federal Certification Regarding Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use. As 
required by FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit 
Operations,” at 49 CFR part 655, subpart I, the Contractor certifies, by signing this Agreement, that it 
has established and implemented an alcohol misuse and anti-drug program, and has complied with or 
will comply with all applicable requirements of FTA regulations, “Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and 
Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations,” 49 CFR part 655, and Section 28 of this Agreement. 
 
 Section 41. Ethics Acknowledgement Policy on Gifts. 
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any State Employee 
of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do business with 
the State.  By execution of any response in this procurement, you attest, for your entire organization 
and its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or 
promised by any employees of your organization.” 
  



05/27/2015  Page 34 of 35 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed by the Department, an agency of the State 
of North Carolina, and the Contractor by and through a duly authorized representative, and is effective the 
date and year first above written.   
 

  MOORE COUNTY 
   

CONTRACTOR’S FEDERAL TAX ID NUMBER:  

CONTRACTOR’S FISCAL YEAR END: JUNE 30, 2017 

                

BY:  

 

TITLE: CHAIRPERSON 

 

(SEAL) 

 

ATTEST:  

TITLE:  

 

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

BY:  

 

TITLE: DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR TRANSIT 

 

ATTEST:  

TITLE: SECRETARY 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



05/27/2015  Page 35 of 35 

Attachment  
 

Certification Regarding Lobbying 
(for bids and/or awards) 

 
 

The Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to 
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal 
loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, 
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for 
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an 
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this 
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 
Standard Form-LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions. 

(3) The Contractor shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under grants, 
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or 
entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
 
Contractor’s Authorized Representative: __________________________________________ 
 
 
Title: ________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 



June 2016 

Grant Addendum: Iran Divestment Act 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA COUNY OF WAKE 

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION and  

___Moore County 

May it be known that the undersigned parties, for good consideration, do hereby agree to make the 
following changes and / or additions that are outlined below; these additions shall be made valid as if they 
are included in the original stated contract.  
 

Pursuant to G.S. 147-86.59 (effective no later than 30 days from October 1, 2015), any person identified 
as engaging in investment activities in Iran, determined by appearing on the Final Divestment List created 
by the State Treasurer pursuant to G.S. 147-86.58, is ineligible to contract with the State of North 
Carolina or any political subdivision of the State. The Iran Divestment Act of 2015, G.S. 147-55 et seq. 
requires that each vendor, prior to contracting with the State, certify that the contracting party meets the 
requirements of the Iran Disinvestment Act. The State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List can be found on 
the State Treasurer’s website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and will be updated every 180 
days, effective February 26, 2016.  

 By execution of this Agreement each Party certifies that neither it nor its Agents or 
Contactors/Subcontractors 1) are on the Final Divestment List of entities that the State Treasurer has 
determined engages in investment activities in Iran; 2) shall not utilize on any contract with the State 
agency any subcontractor that is identified on the Final Divestment List; and 3) that the undersigned are 
authorized by the Parties to make this Certification.  

 During the term of this Agreement, should the Parties receive information that a person is in violation of 
the Act as stated above, the Department will offer the person an opportunity to respond and the 
Department will take action as appropriate and provided for by law, rule, or contract. Should this Act be 
voided by NC General Statute, this Agreement will remain valid; however this certification will no longer 
be required.  
 

No other terms or conditions of the above mentioned contract shall be negated or changed as a result of 
this here stated addendum.  
 

Contractor’s Authorized Representative: ___________________________________________ 

 

Title: _______________________________  Date: __________________________ 

 

A signed copy of this document must be returned to NCDOT. 



 
 
Moore County 
Vendor Number 30233  Contract #17-CT-062 

 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ELIGIBILITY 

Under the Iran Divestment Act 

 
 
Pursuant to G.S. 147-86.59, any person identified as engaging in investment activities in 
Iran, determined by appearing on the Final Divestment List created by the State Treasurer 
pursuant to G.S. 147-86.58, is ineligible to contract with the State of North Carolina or 
any political subdivision of the State.  The Iran Divestment Act of 2015, G.S. 147-55 et 

seq.* requires that each vendor, prior to contracting with the State certify, and the 
undersigned on behalf of the Vendor does hereby certify, to the following: 
 
1. that the vendor is not now and was not at the time of the execution of the Contract 

dated DATE identified on the Final Divestment List of entities that the State 
Treasurer has determined engages in investment activities in Iran;  

2. that the vendor shall not utilize on any contract with the State agency any 
subcontractor that is identified on the Final Divestment List; and 

3. that the undersigned is authorized by the Vendor to make this Certification. 
 
 
Vendor: ___________________________ 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________    __________________________ 
       Signature                                                                   Date 
 
       _______________________________________    __________________________ 
       Printed Name                                                            Title 

 

 

 
The State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List can be found on the State 

Treasurer’s website at the address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and will be 
updated every 180 days.  For questions about the Department of State 
Treasurer’s Iran Divestment Policy, please contact Meryl Murtagh at 

Meryl.Murtagh@nctreasurer.com or (919) 814-3852. 
 
 
*  Note: Enacted by Session Law 2015-118 as G.S. 143C-55 et seq., but has been 

renumbered for codification at the direction of the Revisor of Statutes. 
 

file:///C:/Users/tkhoneycutt/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/BPSPI60A/www.nctreasurer.com/Iran


APPENDIX A

NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

PROJECT NUMBER: 17-CT-062
APPROVED BUDGET SUMMARY

EFFECTIVE DATE 7/1/2016

PROJECT SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: FY2017 COMMUNITY TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM

I.  TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES
36233.74.17.1 $246,333

               PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE JULY 01, 2016 - JUNE 30, 2017
36233.74.17.3 $63,900

               PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE JULY 01, 2016 - JUNE 30, 2017

II.  TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING
TOTAL FEDERAL STATE LOCAL

ADMINISTRATION - 36233.74.17.1 100% 80% 5% 15%
AGREEMENT # $246,333 $197,066 $12,316 $36,951

TOTAL FEDERAL STATE LOCAL
CAPITAL I - 36233.74.17.3 100% 80% 10% 10%

AGREEMENT #  $63,900 $51,120 $6,390 $6,390

TOTAL $310,233 $248,186 $18,706 $43,341

DEPARTMENT - 4521 ADMINISTRATION - 

DEPARTMENT - 4523 CAPITAL I - 



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET

PROJECT: 17-CT-062
SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY

WBS: 36233.74.17.1

   DEPARTMENT 4521 - ADMINISTRATION                                                                 
APPROVED 

BUDGET
G121  SALARIES AND WAGES - FULL TIME 111,905
G181  Social Sec. Contrib. 8,561
G182  Retirement Contrib. 7,912
G183  Hosp. Ins. Contrib. 25,200
G185 Unemp. Comp. Contrib 717
G186  Workers Comp Cont. 4,000
G189  Other Frng Benefits 4,000
G196  Drug & Alcohol Test Contract 480
G211  Janitorial Supplies 750
G212  Uniforms 4,000
G261  Office Sup & Mat. 1,500
G311  Travel 600
G312  Travel Subsis. 2,000
G321  Telephone Service 1,500
G325  Postage 500
G341  Printing & Reprod 500
G371  Mrktng.Paid Adv 4,070
G372  Promotional Items 500
G381  Comp Prog Ser 15,500
G395  Training-Employ Edu. 2,000
G452  Insurance-Vehicles 40,000
G481  Central Services 9,438
G491  Dues and Subscript 700

    TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 246,333$      

TITLE - OBJECT

Approved Admin Budget
Page 2 of 4



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET
SALARY AND WAGE DETAIL

PROJECT: 17-CT-062
SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY

SQ NO POSITION NO %
FTE 

RATE
BUDGET 
AMOUNT 

DEPT. 4521 OBJECT CODE 121
01 Division Leader 1 100% 47,640$        
02 Office Assistant IV 1 100% 28,815$        
03 Lead Driver 1 50% 13,716$        
04 Program Manager 1 40% 21,734$        

TOTAL - OBJECT CODE 121 111,905$      

DEPT. 4521 OBJECT CODE 125
01 01 100% -$           -$                  

-$                  
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

TOTAL - OBJECT CODE 125 -$                  

DEPT. 4521 OBJECT CODE 126
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  
-$                  

TOTAL - OBJECT CODE 126 -$                  

TOTAL DEPT. 4521 SALARIES AND WAGES 111,905$      

Approved Salary and Wage Detail
3 of 4



NORTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION DIVISION

APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET

PROJECT: 17-CT-062
SPONSOR: MOORE COUNTY
WBS: 36233.74.17.3

   DEPARTMENT 4523 - CAPITAL I                                                                 
APPROVED 

BUDGET
G548  Lift-Equip Conver Van Rpl 58,500
G553  Repeater Station 4,550
G591 Veh Lettering/Logos 850

        TOTAL CAPITAL 63,900$        

OBJECT - TITLE

Approved Capital Budget
Page 4 of 4



MCTS, Memorandum of Understanding 

  Agenda Item:         

         Meeting Date: July 19, 2016 
 

MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Debra Ensminger 

   Planning and Transportation Director 

 
DATE:  July 8, 2016   

 
SUBJECT: Approval of Memorandum of Understanding for Moore County 

Transportation Services (MCTS) 

 

PRESENTER:  Debra Ensminger 

   
 

REQUEST: 

Request to approve the memorandum of understanding between MCTS and the Department of Aging. 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Moore County Transportation Services (MCTS) provides transportation services to clients of the 
Department of Aging.  This Memorandum of Understanding sets forth the terms of service and rates 
between each agency.  The memorandum term is from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

Operate under the terms of the adopted Memorandum. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 

No financial impact. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 

Make a motion to approve the Memorandum of Understanding between Moore County 
Transportation Services and the Department of Aging. 
 

SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

Memorandum of Understanding 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.D.



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE 

 

 
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING is entered into the 1st day of July, 2016, 

between the Moore County Department of Aging (“AGING”) and Moore County Transportation 
Services (“MCTS”) 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 

WHEREAS, AGING receives grants and local funds to pay for transportation services for 
AGING’s clients; and 

 
WHEREAS, MCTS provides transportation services within the County of Moore and the 

surrounding areas. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, the parties 

understand and agree as follows: 
 

1. AGING will utilize MCTS as the primary transportation vendor for transportation of 
AGING’s clients. 
 

2. AGING will comply with MCTS policies and procedures for scheduling and cancelling 
trips. 

 
3. AGING will pay MCTS at the rate of $1.63 per mile not to exceed $219,963.00. 

 
4. In the event that a scheduled client is a No-Show, AGING will be charged the client’s pro 

rata share for the scheduled trip.  The definition of a No-Show is a client is scheduled for 
pickup by MCTS; the client, for any reason other than medical circumstances for self and 
family, is either not at the appointed address or refuses the scheduled trip; and, MCTS 
was not notified 24 hours prior to the scheduled pickup. 
 

5. AGING will be responsible to review invoices and notify MCTS of any discrepancies 
within ten (10) days of the date of each monthly invoice. After ten (10) days, if no 
discrepancies are reported to MCTS, all charges will be deemed accurate and will be the 
responsibility of AGING. 
 

6. AGING will remit payment to MCTS for transportation services within fifteen (15) days 
of the date of each monthly invoice. 
 

7. MCTS will insure that all drivers of legal age and licensed to operate the specific vehicle 
used in transporting clients. 
 



8. MCTS will insure all vehicles transporting clients will have at least the minimum level of 
liability insurance appropriate for the type of vehicle. 
 

9. MCTS is compliant with and adheres to all applicable Federal and State laws. 
 

10. MCTS will invoice AGING monthly for services rendered. 
 

11. The term will be from July 1, 2016, through June 30, 2017. 
 

12. This Memorandum of Understanding is subject to the availability of funds. 
 

13. This Memorandum of Understanding may be terminated by either party upon thirty (30) 
days written notice to the other. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Memorandum of Understanding 

as of the date first written above. 
 
 
    
Terri Prots  Debra Ensminger 
Aging Director   MCTS Director 
 
 
  
Nick Picerno 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
CERTIFICATE OF PREAUDIT COMPLIANCE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 
 
 
  
Finance Officer 
 



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.E.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text





clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.F.





clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.G.





 Agenda Item:   
        Meeting Date:  July 19, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Sheriff Neil Godfrey   
 
DATE: June 24, 2016  
 
SUBJECT: Contract Amendment for Inmate Food Services 
 
PRESENTER:  Lieutenant William Flint 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
 We are requesting that the Board of Commissioners approve an Amendment to the contract 
with Aramark Correctional Services allowing for an increase in the amount not to exceed $269,000. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
 Moore County entered into an operating agreement with Aramark Correctional Services on 
June 19, 2012 for the management of food service operations in the Moore County Detention Center.  
During FY 2016, our average daily population increased to 152 inmates.  In addition, the Consumer 
Price Index (CPI) warranted an increase of 2.67% for the cost of food and provisions.  
 
                                                         Population                Price per Meal 
  

100-119 $1.769 
120-139 $1.597 
140-159 $1.482 
160-179 $1.393 
180-199 $1.329 

  
Juvenile  $1.825 

Staff  $1.769 
 
 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
 If approved, Aramark Correctional Services will be paid the change in price per meal 
effective July 1, 2016. 
  
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
 
 Sufficient funding for Food and Provisions has been included in the FY 2017 budget. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.H.



  
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
 The Sheriff is recommending that the Board approve this amended contract with Aramark 
Correctional Services, LLC. 
 
MOTION: 
 
 I motion to amend the food services contract with Aramark Correctional Services, LLC 
increasing the amount not to exceed amount to $269,000 and to authorize the chairman to sign the 
amended contract. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Copy of the Amended Contract 
 

 
 



COUNTY OF MOORE CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. 5 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
THIS AMENDMENT No. 5 is entered into this ____ day of __________, 2016 by and between 
County of Moore  (the “County”) and Aramark Correctional Services, LLC , a Delaware 
limited liability company, with principal offices at the Aramark Tower, 1101 Market Street, 
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19107 (“Aramark”). 
 

WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS,  the parties entered into an Operating Agreement dated June 19, 2012, which was 
for the management of the food service operation of the Moore County Sheriff’s Office 
Detention Center (as amended to date, the “Agreement”);  
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the provisions of the Agreement as follows, effective 
July 1, 2016 and to incorporate additional terms. 

NOW, THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual promises in the 
Agreement and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged, the parties agree as set forth below. Capitalized terms used but not 
defined in this Amendment have the meanings ascribed to such terms in the Agreement. 

1.  Term:  In accordance with Paragraph 6 of the Agreement, the parties agree that the 
Agreement shall be extended for an additional twelve months, commencing on July 1, 2016 and 
continuing through June 30, 2017. 
 
2. Price Per Meal:  In accordance with Paragraph 3.B of the Agreement, the price per 
meal charged to County by Aramark shall be changed as a result of changes in the Consumer 
Price Index.  This pricing is set forth on Attachment A and shall be effective from July 1, 2016 
and continuing through June 30, 2017, and shall supersede in all respects the price per meal set 
forth in the Agreement or in any other prior agreements between the parties. 
 
3. Sum Not To Exceed:  Aramark shall receive from the County a sum not to exceed Two 
Hundred Sixty Nine Thousand Dollars ($269,000) for the 2016-2017 fiscal year.  
 
4. Effect of Amendment :  Except as hereinabove provided, the Agreement is hereby in all 
other respects ratified and confirmed. 
 
 

[Signatures on Following Page] 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 

The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract 
Amendment No. 5 to be executed by their duly authorized officers or agents.  This agreement is 
effective as of the date first written above. 

 

COUNTY OF MOORE  ARAMARK 

 

 

    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  By:   
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Title:   
 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 
 

 

PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 

This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

  
Finance Officer 
 
 
  



Attachment A 
County of Moore 

Effective July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 

 
 
           Population                     Price per Meal 
  

100-119 $1.769 
120-139 $1.597 
140-159 $1.482 
160-179 $1.393 
180-199 $1.329 

  
Juvenile  $1.825 

Staff  $1.769 
 





clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. I.07/19/2016































































































































































MOORE COUNTY
TAX SETTLEMENT OF June 30, 2016

FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 

SUMMARY TAX SETTLEMENT
CURRENT YEAR TAX - 2015-2016 as of June 30, 2016

Real/Personal Taxes Real/Personal Taxes RP & MV* MV Only **
County, General, Late County, General, Late County, General, Late DMV - State System

ALS & Fire Districts ALS & Fire Districts ALS & Fire Districts County, ALS, & Fire
including Levy, & Municipals including Levy, Real/Personal Motor Vehicle Tax

Afterlists & Discoveries Afterlists & Discoveries & Motor Vehicles Valuation & Levy

Summary - Page 1 Summary - Page 2 Summary - Page 4 Summary - Page 14

Total Valuation - Main Levy 14,689,204,613 21,508,337,298 16,334,809,851 1,309,716,805
Utilities 284,933,542 356,688,844 0 0
Afterlists/Discoveries 50,954,891 62,532,374 0 0
Total Valuation 15,025,093,046 21,927,558,516 16,334,809,851 1,309,716,805

Gross Levy Billed 56,940,881 81,167,526 61,613,702 4,672,821
Total Adj, Releases, Refunds -917,243 -1,001,361 -917,243 0
Adjusted Levy 56,023,638 80,166,165 60,696,458 4,672,821

Gross Collections 56,608,918 80,737,068 61,281,739 4,672,821
Less Relief/Refunds -759,224 -787,316 -759,224 0
Net Collections 55,849,694 79,949,752 60,522,515 4,672,821

Balance Uncollected at 6/30/16 173,944 216,413 173,944 0

Collection Percentage 6/30/16 99.6895% 99.7300% 99.7134% 100.0000%

*Motor Vehicle Value has been added in to account for the collection for DMV collection of taxes.

** Motor Vehicle Taxes for the current fiscal year are collected by the state of North Carolina.  The State began collections for MV taxes 
effective with Fiscal Year 2014/2015.  Since that time the Tax Administrator is tasked with collections of the prior year MV taxes only.
The column you see above for DMV "MV Only" is for informational purposes only.

Summary











clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. J.07/19/2016









clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.K.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text





















































































  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:   
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM:  Randy Gould, PE, Director of Public Works   
 
DATE:  April 26, 2016   
 
SUBJECT:  Transfer of Former Seven Lakes Well Site #12 Back to Landowner  
 
PRESENTER: Randy Gould 
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the Well Transfer Agreement between the County of Moore and Mr. Loyd Edwards Auman, 
Jr. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Per an agreement in 1991, Mr. Auman leased a parcel of land to the County of Moore for the purpose 
of drilling and maintaining a public well (Seven Lakes Well #12).  Moore County Public Utilities 
(MCPU) discontinued use of the well in 2015.  The original agreement causes the well site property 
lease to terminate upon the County’s discontinued use of the public well.  Mr. Auman is willing to 
accept the well for his private use for the purpose of irrigation.  The county attorney’s office has 
prepared the attached Release of Liability, Assumption of Risk, and Indemnification Agreement on 
the transfer of the well.  MCPU has informed NC DENR of the discontinued use of the well and it 
has been deemed inactive by the State. 
 
 

 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
Approve the transfer agreement and transfer the well to Mr. Auman’s ownership. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
No cost to the county will be realized for the transfer of the well.  Transferring the well to Mr. 
Auman will actually save MCPU the cost of properly abandoning the well, estimated at $1,250.   
 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Make a motion to approve the transfer agreement and authorize the Chairman to sign the agreement. 
 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
Well Transfer Agreement 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII.L.07/19/2016

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text





















clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. M.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text





clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. N.07/19/2016



FN 16-0266 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE 

 
 
This Contract is made the 2nd day of August, 2016, between the County of Moore, a political 

subdivision of the State of North Carolina (the “County”), and Southeastern Emergency Equipment 
Company, an entity duly formed under the laws of the State of North Carolina (the “Seller”). 

 
1. Description of Goods   

 
The Seller will transfer and deliver to the County, and the County, subject to the conditions set forth 
in this Contract, will take delivery and accept a Fold-Out Shelter Trailer meeting the County’s 
specifications (the “Goods”), as provided for in Attachment 1, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein. 
 
Seller agrees that all Goods must fully conform to this Contract and failure to adhere to any portion, 
including but not limited to, quantity, quality, and time of performance, will constitute a breach. 

 
2. Time of Delivery 

 
The Seller will deliver the Goods covered by this Contract to the County on or before October 31, 
2016.  Delivery will be made to the Rick Rhyne Public Safety and Detention Center, which is located 
at 302 S. McNeill Street, Carthage, NC.  The parties mutually agree that time is of the essence. 
 

3. Payment 
 
The County will pay the Seller $87,775.00, which includes delivery.  Payment will occur within 30 
days of delivery of the Goods.  The payment amount does not include taxes and registration fees, 
which the County is responsible for. 
 

4. Inspection 
 

The County will have the right to inspect and test the Goods prior to acceptance. 
 
5. Risk of Loss and Title 
 

The risk of loss will pass to the County upon delivery of the Goods.  In addition, title to the Goods 
will pass to the County upon delivery. 
 

6. Dealer Emblems 
 
Decals or markings of any type pertaining to advertising of the Seller are not allowed. 
 

7. Service Requirements 
 

The Goods must be properly serviced and in first class operating condition when delivered.  The 
Seller is responsible for servicing each vehicle, in addition to any prior factory servicing, as follows: 
 
a. Complete lubrication; 
b. Check all fluid levels to ensure they are filled to manufacturer’s recommended capacity; 



 

FN 16-0266 Page 2 of 8 

c. Tires inflated to the correct pressure; 
d. Check to ensure operation of all mechanical and electrical features; 
e. Check to ensure there are no defects in the appearance of the Goods; and 
f. Thorough cleaning, including washing, if necessary. 
 

8. Product Recall 
 
In the event of any recall notice, technical service bulletin, or other important notification affecting 
the Goods, notice will be provided to the County as provided for under Section 16 of this Contract 
and the notice will include the Vehicle Identification Number (VIN) or other relevant identification 
method of the Goods affected. 
 

9. Waiver 
 
The failure by one party to require performance of any provision of this Contract will not affect that 
party's right to require performance at any time thereafter or to enforce other remedies available to it 
by law or under this Contract.  In addition, no waiver of any breach or default of this Contract will 
constitute a waiver of any subsequent breach or default or a waiver of the provision itself. 

 
10. Warranties 
 

The Seller represents and warrants that: 
 
a. It is a limited liability company, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the State 

of North Carolina, and is qualified to do business in North Carolina; 
b. It has the requisite corporate power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations 

under this Contract; 
c. The Goods comply with all requirements set forth in this Contract; 
d. The Goods are free of defects in title, claims, liens, labor, material or fabrication; 
e. The Goods are suitable for the purposes intended; and 
f. The Goods are of merchantable quality. 

 
11. Default 

 
In the event the Seller defaults by one of the following, the County may, by written notice to the 
Seller, cancel all or any part of this order or exercise any other remedy allowed under law: 
 
a. Non-delivery, as required; 
b. Not providing adequate assurance of performance; or 
c. Breaches any term or condition of this Contract, 

 
12. Assignment 

 
This Contract is not assignable by either party, by operation of law or otherwise. 

 
13. Indemnification 

 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Seller will indemnify and hold harmless the County, its 
officials, agents, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses, direct, 
indirect, or consequential (including but not limited to fees and charges of engineers or architects, 
attorneys, and other professionals and costs related to court action or arbitration) arising out of or 



 

FN 16-0266 Page 3 of 8 

resulting from this Contract or the actions of the Seller, its officials, employees, or contractors under 
this Contract or under contracts entered into by the Seller in connection with this Contract.  This 
indemnification will survive the termination of this Contract. 

 
14. Iran Divestment Act Certification.   

 
The Seller certifies that: (i) the Seller is not listed on the Final Divestment List created by the State 
Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. § 143C-6A-4 (the “Final Divestment List”), and (ii) the Seller will not 
utilize any subcontractor performing work under this Purchase Order which is listed on the Final 
Divestment List. The Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the 
address www.nctreasurer.com/Iran and should be updated every 180 days. 
 

15. Governing Law 
 
The validity of this Contract and any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the 
parties to this Contract, are governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  All actions relating 
to this Contract will be brought in the General Court of Justice in Moore County, North Carolina. 
 

16. Severability 
 
If any provision of this Contract is held to be void, illegal, unenforceable, or in conflict with any law, 
the validity of the remaining portions and provisions of this Contract will not be affected. 
 

17. Notices 
 
All notices which may be required by this Contract or any rule of law will be effective when received 
by certified mail sent to the following addresses: 
 

COUNTY: MOORE COUNTY PUBLIC SAFETY 
 ATTN:  BRYAN PHILLIPS, DIRECTOR 
 302 S. MCNEILL STREET 
 P.O. BOX 40 
 CARTHAGE, NC  28327    
 
SELLER: SOUTHEASTERN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT 

ATTN:  CARLA BAKER, PRESIDENT 
P.O. BOX 1097 
YOUNGSVILLE, NC  27596 

 
18. Non-Exclusive Agreement 
 

The County and Seller acknowledge that this is a non-exclusive agreement.  The County may 
purchase like or similar Goods from other sellers and the Seller may sell like or similar Goods to 
other buyers. 
 

19. Modification 
 
This Contract can be modified or rescinded only by written agreement of the Parties. 

 



 

FN 16-0266 Page 4 of 8 

20. Entire Agreement 
 
This Contract and Attachment 1 constitute the entire understanding between the parties and 
supersedes all prior understandings and agreements, whether oral or written, relating to the subject 
matter hereof. 
 

21. Headings 
 
Subject headings are for convenience only and will not affect the construction or interpretation of any 
provision. 
 
 
The parties have expressed their agreement to these terms by causing this Contract to be executed by 

their duly authorized officers or agents.  This agreement is effective as of the date first written above. 
 
COUNTY OF MOORE  Attest: 
 
 
    
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman  Laura M. Williams 
Moore County Board of Commissioners  Clerk to the Board 
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
SOUTHEASTERN EMERGENCY EQUIPMENT Attest: 
 

 

    
By:   By:   
Title:   Title:   
 
Date:    Date:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE 
 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 

 

  
Finance Officer 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0266 Page 5 of 8 

SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
Quantity General Description Price 

(each) 

Total 

    
1 Fold-Out Shelter Trailer (FORTS), Model FGM15 $59,975 $59,975 
    
1 Mobilizer trailer with storage cabinets, Model MOB02 $27,800 $27,800 
    

   $87,775 

 
A. The specifications for the Fold-Out Shelter Trailer identified above are as follows: 
 

1. Exterior Dimensions - Opened; 19’ 6” L x 17’ W x 8’6” H 
2. Interior Dimensions - Opened; 16’ L x 16’ 2” W x 7’ 5” H 
3. Exterior Dimensions - Closed; 19’ 6” L x 30” W x 8’ 6” H 
4. Useable Space (Interior): 259 sq. ft. 
5. Space when open: 332 sq. ft. 
6. Space when closed: 49 sq. ft. 
7. Features: Wall mount 1.5 Ton Air Conditioner with thermostat control panel inside of unit. 

a. Electrical Panel Rated 125AMP, with five (5) 110v tamper resistant outlets; 
b. Florescent lighting fixtures, two (2) four lamp fixtures, each provides 136 watts total; 
c. Single hung aluminum window with one-eighth inch (1/8”) clear tempered glass; 
d. Fully insulated construction; 
e. Extrusions at corner wall and roof connections are interlock design to add structural strength; 
f. Interlocking extrusions are equipped with weather-stripping to help prevent moisture 

intrusion; 
g. Patented hinged extrusions to facilitate opening and closing unit; 
h. Core Leveling System, with locking casters and forklift pockets for transport; 
i. Floor Leveling System with nine (9) leveling arms; 
j. Heavy-duty roof, floor, and wall finishes; 
k. Kitchen connection plugs (water inlet, water outlet); 
l. Integrated Storage Cabinets; 
m. Tool Box – tools for set-up, with level; 
n. Repair Kit – paint and patch material; 
o. Rated for wind speeds up to 130 mph (with proper anchorage); roof live loads up to 55 lbs. 

per square ft.; 
p. Transport: Shipping weight is approximately 3600 lbs.; and 
q. Anchorage: Cast aluminum Earth Anchoring System. 

8. Structure. 
a. Core.  A center core structure comprising of a rectangular box structure of heavy duty 

extruded aluminum 0.156 inch thick alloy 6063-T6. Components are bolted and welded 
connections creating a box beam configuration. At Roof location anchors for lifting (if 
ordered); forklift pockets and six inch (6”) locking casters to allow easy movement and 
transport. Four (4) built-in bevel geared leveling jacks at base with eight-inch (8”) by eight-
inch (8”) welded plates. 

b. Panels.  Roof, wall and floor, consisting of composite aluminum panels, with expanded 
polystyrene core, pressure laminated. 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0266 Page 6 of 8 

Roof panels, three inch (3”) in depth; facings 0.024 aluminum, core one (1) pound density 
expanded polystyrene; Thermoplastic Roof Finish (TPO); “R” value 15.00. Wall panels, three 
inch (“3”) in depth; facings 0.024 aluminum, core one (1) pound density expanded 
polystyrene; “R” value 13.90. Floor panel, four (4”) inch in depth, facings 0.024 aluminum, 
core two (2) pound density expanded polystyrene, with ¼” AC grade plywood substrate; “R” 
value 18.56.  Acoustical; transmission of sound for expanded polystyrene is an STC of 51. 

c. Framing/Extrusions/Sheet/Fasteners.  Panels are framed with aluminum extrusions as 
required. All extrusions are alloy 6063-T6 aluminum only, with minimum thickness 0.09 to 
0.18 inches as required. Extrusion framing shall be configured to interlock between the roof 
and exterior wall panels to create a water and wind barrier at the interconnection and further 
to create a unified structure for strength. All aluminum facing minimum type 3105-H25; Core 
PCF (1) or (2) ASTM C-578-83 branded EPS, Adhesive Ashland 2020 ISO Grip. 
 
All fasteners to be 2024-14 or 7075-T73 alloy, non-magnetic stainless steel. SAE grade 5, 
steel (min) or cadmium plated or other corrosion resistance material complying with 5.1.1C, 
2005 Aluminum Design Manual, the Aluminum Association, Inc. All aluminum components 
insulated from dissimilar metals or ground contact to prevent electrolysis. 
 

d. Door Unit.  Aluminum door, thirty-six inch (36”) width, eighty-inch (80”) height; insulated 
solid core with thermally broken extruded aluminum frame. “R” value of 9.55. 

e. Window Unit.  Aluminum frame, single hung glass pane, utilizing one-eighth inch (1/8”) 
clear tempered glass; design pressure rated for plus 35 PSF to negative 35 PSF; U factor 1.08; 
solar heat gain coefficient 0.71, with visible transmittance of 0.75. 

f. Anchorage System.  Seven inch (7”) anchors of die cast aluminum; three-sixteenth inch 
(3/16”) galvanized steel cable; load capacity per anchor of 3,000 lbs., requires four (4) 
anchors per unit. 

g. Floor Support/Level System.  Three inch (3”) by three inch (3”) by 0.90 steel box beams, 
G90 galvanized, painted, grey polyester, with one-half inch (1/2”) SAE grade 5 threaded 
adjustment rods and support plates. 

h. Air Conditioning/Heat Pump System.  Wall-mounted 1.5 ton air conditioner cooling, 10,800 
Btuh, 60Htz, heating and cooling system, rotary compressor, green refrigerant R-410A (HFC) 
non-ozone depleting in compliance with 2010 EPA requirements. Complies with efficiency 
requirements of ANSI/ASHRAE/IESNA 90.1-2077. 
 
Certified to ANSI/ARI Standard 390-2003 for SPVU; Intertek ETL listed to Standard for 
Safety Heating and Cooling Equipment ANSI/UL 1995/CSA 22.2 No. 236 – US Third Ed. 
 

i. Electrical Supply/Lighting/Data Connections.  120/240 Volt rated electric, 125 amp, single-
phase convertible load center. Includes 100amp Breaker for permanent power connections for 
shore power/generator. Power provided to utility outlets, lighting, reverse cycle air 
conditioning unit and optional kitchen unit.  Florescent lighting fixtures two (2) four lamps 
each fixture provides 136 watts total. 
 
One (1) data Port for phone and Internet connections. Data port = CAT5e 
 

j. Structural Performance. 
Roof panel; transverse load and concentrated load test, loads to 80 PSF with two (2) times 
safety factor, per ASTM E-72-05, section 11.3.1.1. 
 
Diaphragm / Racking load test, loads to 5,000 pounds per ASTM E-72-05, Section 11.3.1.1. 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0266 Page 7 of 8 

Impact, cyclic pressure and wind loading, loads to design pressure of +43/-70 per TAS 201, 
TAS 202, TAS 203 and ASTM E72. 
 
Uplift resistance test, loads to design pressure of +43/-70 per ASTM E72. 
 

k. Wall Panels. 
Transverse Load Test, load pressure to negative 56.53, per ASTM E72-05, Section 11.3.1.1; 
 
Diaphragm/Racking Load Test, loads to 6000 pounds per ASTM E72-095, Section 11.3.1.1; 
 
Compression test, loads to 16,000 pounds, per ASTM E72-05, Section 11.3.1.1; 
 
Tension test, loads to 5000 pounds per ASTM E72-05, Section 11.3.1.1; and 
 
Impact, cyclic pressure, static wind loading, loads to design pressure of +43/-70 per TAS 201, 
TAS 202, TAS 203, and ASTM 72. 

 
l. Finishes: 

Roof covering: Fleece back membrane (polyolefin based, thermoplastic, heat-weldable 
membranes, polyester reinforced. Thickness 0.045 inch, UL Class “A” and FM Class 1-90 
classifications available. Energy Star: initial solar reflectance, solar spectrum reflectometer 
white 0.87 / tan 0.68; CRRC: ASTM C1549 initial solar reflectance , white 0.79, tan 0.71; 
LEED thermal emittance, ASTM E408, white 0.95, tan 0.95; SRI (solar reflectance index) 
ASTM E1980, white 110, tan 88 reinforced fabric membrane meeting or exceeding 
requirements of ASTM 06878. 
 
Wall Finish: ACRA-LASTIC 2700 high built acrylic elastomeric coating; VOC compliant. 
 
Floor Coverings: Tough-ply, 0.050 inch thick nickel plate covering; polyolefin based 
thermoplastic with polyester reinforced membrane. 
 

m. Approvals/Compliance: 
ICC (International Code Council) 
ESR-1599 Roof and Wall panels. 
 
State of Florida Approvals for roof and wall panels, impact and non-impact, FL 5500, FL 
7561, and FL 12225 
 
State of California Approval for roof panels, wall panels, roof systems and wall systems. 
FBH3, FBH4, FBH5, SPA 269-4, and SPA 269-5. 
 
Compliant with 2012 International Building Code, 2012 International Residential Code, 
ASCE-7-10, 2010 Aluminum Design Manual. 
 
Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Listed UL 1715 (Interior) 5N46 
Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Listed Class “B” (Exterior) 4N08, 
Electric per National Electric Code 
All electric devices are UL Listed 
Energy Star – Roof Coating rated. 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

FN 16-0266 Page 8 of 8 

n. Fire Compliance. 
The FORTS Unit Panels are compliant with the following: 
 

UL 1715 (UBC 17-5) Room Corner Test. 
 
Fire test of Internal Finish Materials as classified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. 
File No. R15413. 
 
Class “B” (Full) Exterior Fire Resistances per ASTM E108-91A. Three classes of fire test 
exposures, spread of flame, intermittent flame and burning Brands. 
 
Classified by Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., File No. R 15373. 
 
Class “A” Spread of Flame for exterior fire resistance, per ASTM E108-07A, Southwest 
Research, Department of Fire Technology. 
 
UBC 26-3 Room Fire Test Standard. 15 minutes interior. Southwest Research, 
Department of Fire Technology. 

 
B. The specifications for the Mobilizer trailer identified above, which is designed to transport the Fold-

Out Shelter Trailer, are as follows: 
 
1. Dimensions: 26’ L x 94” W 
2. Trailer Weight: 2700 lbs. 
3. Weight with FORTS unit: Approximately 6600 lbs. 
4. GVWR: 10,000 lbs. 
5. Independent Torsion Axles 
6. Electric Braking System 
7. 2-5/16” Trailer Hitch Ball, & Pintle Hitch Ring 
8. Additional Spare Tire 
9. Tie Down Cables 
10. Includes (4) 51” W x 42” H x 22” D Storage Cabinets 
11. Includes (2) 84” W x 33” H x 22” D Storage Cabinets 







































































  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:        
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Scot Brooks   
 
DATE: June 28, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: Richmond County Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement  
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve the attached Resolution Approving the Mutual Aid Agreement for Disasters and Other 
Related Emergencies Between Richmond County and Moore County and the attached Agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This MOU allows for Moore County to assist and/or receive assistance directly with Richmond 
County. It serves as the legal document that allows one jurisdiction to assist another in their time of 
need during emergency and disaster operations. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
The agreement will be submitted to the Richmond County Director of Emergency Services upon 
signing and shall be in effect immediately upon their receipt and signature completion.  An original 
copy shall be maintain with the Clerk to the Board. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The Department of Public Safety will follow the current finance policies in terms of approval and 
financial commitment. The Director of Public Safety can approve up to $5000.00 and the County 
Manager can approve up to $50,000.00. All requests above and beyond these levels will be sent to the 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for approval. State and Federal reimbursement may be 
applicable when a local, state, and/or federal declaration occurs. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Approve the attached Resolution Approving the Mutual Aid Agreement for Disasters and Other 
Related Emergencies Between Richmond County and Moore County and the attached Agreement, 
and authorize the Chairman to sign the same. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Resolution Approving the Mutual Aid Agreement for Disasters and Other Related 
Emergencies Between Richmond County and Moore County 

2. Mutual Aid Agreement for Disasters and Other Related Emergencies Between Richmond 
County and Moore County 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. O.07/19/2016



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
COUNTY OF MOORE 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE  
AGREEMENT FOR DISASTERS AND OTHER RELATED EMERGENCIES 

BETWEEN RICHMOND COUNTY AND MOORE COUNTY 
 

WHEREAS, the County of Moore and the County of Richmond desire to enter into an 
interlocal agreement concerning mutual aid and assistance; and 
 

WHEREAS, in the event of an emergency or local disaster, each party is able to call 
upon the other for assistance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the assistance to be provided will not be to the detriment of the providing 
county.  
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Moore County Board of 
Commissioners approves the Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement for Disasters and Other 
Related Emergencies between Richmond County and Moore County, and authorizes the 
Chairman to execute the same. 
 

Adopted this 19th day of July, 2016. 
 
 
   
 Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
 Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
  
Laura M. Williams 
Clerk to the Board 



FN 16-0229 

 
MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

FOR DISASTERS AND OTHER RELATED EMERGENCIES BETWEEN 
RICHMOND COUNTY AND MOORE COUNTY 

 
 
This Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement is entered into by and between the County of Moore, a 
political subdivision of the State of North Carolina, and the County of Richmond, a political subdivision 
of the State of North Carolina. 
 
WHEREAS, the safety of the citizens of the State of North Carolina is of the utmost importance to all 
levels of state and local government; 
 
WHEREAS, the jurisdictions of Richmond County and Moore County seek to enter a Mutual Aid and 
Assistance Agreement in order to provide for the sharing of resources, personnel, and equipment in the 
event of a local disaster or other emergency; 
 
WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) have 
recognized the importance of written mutual aid agreements between all levels of government to facilitate 
reimbursement; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the North Carolina General Statutes, Local Governments are allowed to enter 
into mutual aid and assistance agreements, which may include provisions for the furnishing and 
exchanging of supplies, equipment, facilities, personnel, and services during a natural or human-made 
disaster and/or other emergency; now 
 
THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION I. 
DEFINITIONS 

 
A. “Agreement” shall mean this document, the “Mutual Aid Agreement for Disasters and Other 

Emergencies.” 
 

B. “Aid and Assistance” shall include, but not be limited to, personnel, equipment, facilities, 
services, supplies, and other resources.  

 
C. “Authorized Representative” shall mean an individual who has been authorized in writing by this 

Agreement, to request, offer, or provide assistance under the terms of this Agreement.  
 

D. “Disaster or other emergency” shall mean the occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or 
severe damage, injury, loss of life or property resulting from an intentional, accidental, or 
unintended release of any substance in or material in any form or quantity which poses an 
unreasonable risk to the safety and health and to the property when released, weather related 
incidents, explosions, fires, collapses, or any other incident which directly affects public safety.  

 
E. “Provider” means a party to this Agreement that has received a request to furnish aid and 

assistance to a recipient.  
 

F. “Recipient” means a party to this Agreement receiving aid and assistance from another party.  
 



FN 16-0229 2 

SECTION II. 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE PARTIES 

 
A. Provision of Aid and Assistance – Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, 

the parties shall provide each other with aid and assistance in the event of a local disaster or 
emergency. The parties acknowledge that each party’s foremost responsibility is to its own 
citizens and this Agreement shall not be construed to impose an absolute obligation on any party 
to this agreement to provide aid and assistance simply because another party has requested it. 
When aid and assistance have been requested, a party may deem itself unable to respond and shall 
so inform the party making the request and that determination shall be nonreviewable or subject 
to challenge by the requesting party. 

 
B. Procedures for Requesting Assistance – Requests for assistance shall be made by the Authorized 

Representative of a party to the Authorized Representative of the other party. Such request must 
indicate that it is made pursuant to this Agreement. Such request may be made by telephone, to be 
followed as soon as practicable by a written confirmation of that request.  

 
C. Designation of Authorized Representative – Each party to this Agreement shall designate an 

Authorized Representative. Such designation shall be communicated, in writing, to the County 
Manager or his designee of the other party upon the execution of this Agreement. Such 
designation may be amended at any time by the County Manager or his designee.  

 
D. Supervision and Control – The Provider shall designate supervisory personnel amongst its 

employees sent to render aid and assistance to the Recipient. Recipient shall provide necessary 
credentials to the Provider’s personnel authorizing them to operate on behalf of the Recipient. 
Recipient shall assign work tasks to Provider’s supervisory personnel, and unless specifically 
instructed otherwise, Recipient shall have the responsibility for coordination between Provider’s 
supervisory personnel and Recipient’s personnel. Based upon such assignments set forth by 
Recipient, Provider’s supervisory personnel shall have the authority to: 

 
1. Assign work and establish work schedules for Provider’s personnel;  
2. Maintain daily personnel time records, material records, and a log of equipment hours;  
3. Report work progress to Recipient at regular intervals as specified by Recipient. 

 
E. Period of Service; Renewability; Recall – Unless agreed otherwise, the duration of the Provider’s 

assistance shall be for an initial period of twenty-four (24) hours, starting from the time of arrival. 
Thereafter, assistance may be extended in increments agreed upon by the Authorized 
Representatives of Provider and Recipient. Provider’s personnel, equipment, and other resources 
shall remain subject to recall by Provider to provide for its own citizens if circumstances so 
warrant. Provider shall make a good faith effort to provide at least eight (8) hours advance 
notification to Recipient of Provider’s intent to terminate such assistance, unless such notice is 
not practicable, in which case as much notice as is reasonable under the circumstances shall be 
provided.  

 
SECTION III. 

REIMBURSEMENT 
 

A. Recipient shall reimburse Provider for the following documented expenses incurred by Provider 
as a result of extending aid and assistance to Recipient:  

 



FN 16-0229 3 

1. Equipment – Provider shall be reimbursed by Recipient for the use of its equipment during 
the period of assistance according to established FEMA equipment rates.  

2. Material and Supplies – Provider shall be reimbursed for all materials and supplies furnished 
by it during the period of assistance and which materials and supplies are neither returned nor 
replaced. The measure for reimbursement for materials and supplies shall be determined in 
accordance with FEMA and State of North Carolina reimbursement policies. 

 
B. In the discretion of the Recipient, upon receiving an invoice from the Provider detailing all costs 

and expenses incurred by the Provider or the Provider’s personnel during the period of assistance, 
the Recipient may reimburse the Provider, in part or in full, for expenses not otherwise provided 
for above in Section III(A)(1) or (2).  

 
C. The Recipient shall not be responsible for reimbursing Provider for the costs of any damage 

caused by the negligence, willful and wanton misconduct, intentional misuse, or recklessness of 
Provider’s personnel. Provider’s personnel shall use reasonable care at all times in the use and 
control of all materials and supplies used by them during the period of assistance. 

 
D. Record Keeping – Recipient shall provide information, directions, and assistance for record 

keeping to Provider’s personnel; Provider shall maintain records and invoices for reimbursement.  
 

E. Billing and Payment – Provider shall send an invoice for reimbursable costs and expenses, 
together with appropriate documentation as required by Recipient, as soon as practicable after 
said costs and expenses are incurred, but not later than forty-five (45) days following the period 
of assistance. Recipient shall pay the bill, or advise of any disputed items, not later than forty-five 
(45) days following the billing date.  

 
F. Inspection of Records – Provider agrees that it shall make its records regarding costs and 

expenses for assistance provided under this Agreement available for audit and inspection upon 
request by the Recipient, State of North Carolina, and the federal government, and shall maintain 
such records for at least seven (7) years after the date of final payment under this Agreement.  

 
SECTION IV. 

PROVIDER’S EMPLOYEES 
 

A. Rights and Privileges – Whenever Provider’s employees are rendering aid and assistance pursuant 
to this Agreement, such employees shall remain the responsibility of the Provider and retain the 
same powers, duties, immunities, and privileges they would ordinarily possess if performing their 
duties within the geographic limits of the Provider.  

B. Workers’ Compensation – Recipient shall not be responsible for reimbursing any amounts paid or 
due as benefits to Provider’s employees due to personal injury or death occurring during the 
periods of time such employees are engaged in the rendering of aid and assistance under this 
Agreement. It is mutually understood that Recipient and Provider shall be responsible for 
payment of such workers’ compensation benefits only to their own respective employees.  

 
SECTION V. 

NONDISCRIMINATION 
 
In accordance with all applicable local, State, and Federal constitutional, statutory, and administrative 
nondiscrimination provisions, the parties to this Agreement shall not discriminate against any employee 
or the region for employment on account of race, creed, color, sex, national origin, disability, Vietnam 
Era Veteran status, or marital status. 



FN 16-0229 4 

 
SECTION VI. 

AMENDMENTS 
 
This Agreement may be modified at any time upon the mutual written consent of the parties. Additional 
municipalities may become parties to this Agreement upon the acceptance and execution of this 
Agreement. 
 

SECTION VII. 
DURATION OF AGREEMENT 

 
A. Term – This Agreement shall be for a term of five (5) years from the date of execution by both 

parties, unless the Agreement is renewed or terminated as set forth in this section.  
 

B. Renewal – This Agreement may be extended for an additional five (5) year term by written 
agreement of the parties hereto.  

 
C. Termination – Any party may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice. A 

termination shall not affect the obligation of any party to reimburse the other for the costs and 
expenses of rendering aid and assistance incurred prior to the effective date of termination.  

 
SECTION VIII. 

HEADINGS 
 
The headings of various sections and subsections of this Agreement have been inserted for convenient 
reference only and shall not be construed as modifying, amending, or affecting in any way the express 
terms and provisions of this Agreement. 
 

SECTION IX. 
SEVERABILITY 

 
Should any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or other part of this Agreement be adjudged by any 
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or invalidate the 
remainder of this Agreement. In the event that parties to this Agreement have entered into other aid and 
assistance agreements, those parties agree that, to the extent a request for aid and assistance is made 
pursuant to this Agreement, those other aid and assistance agreements are superceded by this Agreement. 
 

SECTION X. 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
This Agreement shall take effect upon its execution by both parties. 
 
 
 
 

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING TWO PAGES.] 
 
 
 
 
 



FN 16-0229 5 

COUNTY OF RICHMOND 
 
 
  
By:   
Title:   
 
Date:   
 
 
 
   
By:    
Title:    
 
Date:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE: 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
       
Finance Officer 
 
Date:      



FN 16-0229 6 

COUNTY OF MOORE 
 
 
  
Bryan Phillips, Director 
Moore County Public Safety 
 
Date:   
 
 
 
   
Nick J. Picerno, Chairman 
Moore County Board of Commissioners 
 
Date:   
 
 
PREAUDIT CERTIFICATE: 
This instrument has been preaudited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 
 
       
Finance Officer 
 
Date:      
 



  Agenda Item:         
         Meeting Date:        
 
MEMORANDUM TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:     
    
FROM: Scot Brooks   
 
DATE: June 28, 2016   
 
SUBJECT: North Carolina Statewide Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement  
 
 
REQUEST: 
Approve for the County Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding with North Carolina 
Emergency Management as approved by the County Attorney. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This MOU allows for Moore County to assist and/or receive assistance with any of the other 
approved jurisdictions who have signed the agreement. It serves as the legal document that allows 
one jurisdiction to assist another in their time of need during emergency and disaster operations. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
The agreement will be submitted to the NC Division of Emergency Management upon signing and 
shall be in effect immediately upon their receipt and signature completion. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT STATEMENT: 
The Department of Public Safety will follow the current finance policies in terms of approval and 
financial commitment. The Director of Public Safety can approve up to $5000.00 and the County 
Manager can approve up to $50,000.00. All requests above and beyond these levels will be sent to the 
Chairman of the Board of Commissioners for approval. State and Federal reimbursement may be 
applicable when a local, state, and/or federal declaration occurs. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
Approve for the County Manager to sign the Memorandum of Understanding with North Carolina 
Emergency Management as approved by the County Attorney. 
 
SUPPORTING ATTACHMENTS: 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. P.07/19/2016



1 

 

NORTH CAROLINA STATEWIDE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE 

AGREEMENT 
Revision – August 2015 

  
THIS AGREEMENT IS ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE NORTH CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY, AND ITS DIVISION OF EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT OF THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA AND BY EACH OF THE 
ENTITIES THAT EXECUTES AND ADOPTS THE UNDERSTANDINGS, 
COMMITMENTS, TERMS, AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN:  
  
WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina is geographically vulnerable to a variety of natural 
disasters;   
  
WHEREAS, Chapter 166A of the North Carolina General Statutes, entitled the North Carolina 
Emergency Management Act, recognizes this vulnerability and provides that its intended 
purposes are to:  
  
(1) Reduce vulnerability of people and property of this State to damage, injury, and loss of life 
and property;  
  
(2) Prepare for prompt and efficient rescue, care, and treatment of threatened or affected persons;  
  
(3) Provide for the rapid and orderly rehabilitation of persons and restoration of property; and  
  
(4) Provide for cooperation and coordination of activities relating to emergency and disaster 
mitigation, preparedness, response, and recovery;  
  
WHEREAS, in addition to the State, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has 
recognized the importance of the concept of coordination between the State and local 
governments;  
  
WHEREAS, under Chapter 166A and other chapters of the North Carolina General Statutes, 
entities entering into mutual aid and assistance agreements may include provisions for the 
furnishing and exchanging of supplies, equipment, facilities, personnel and services; and  
  
WHEREAS, the entities which have chosen to become signatories to this Agreement wish to 
provide mutual aid and assistance amongst one another at the appropriate times;   
  
THEREFORE, pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.72, these entities agree to enter into this Agreement for 
reciprocal emergency management aid and assistance, with this Agreement embodying the 
understandings, commitments, terms, and conditions for said aid and assistance, as follows:  
  
 



2 

 

 
Section I. DEFINITIONS  
"Agreement" means this document, the North Carolina Statewide Emergency Management 
Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement.  
  
"Aid and assistance" includes personnel, equipment, facilities, services, and supplies.  
  
"Authorized Representative" means a party's employee who has been authorized, in writing by 
that party, to request, to offer, or to otherwise provide assistance under the terms of this 
Agreement. The list of Authorized Representatives for each party executing this Agreement shall 
be attached to the executed copy of this Agreement. (In the event of a change in personnel, 
unless otherwise notified, the presumption will be that the successor to that position will be the 
authorized representative.)  
 
"Disaster declaration" means a gubernatorial declaration that the impact or anticipated impact of 
an emergency constitutes a Type I, II, III disaster as defined in G.S. 166A-19.21(b)  
  
"Emergency" means an occurrence or imminent threat of widespread or severe damage, injury, 
or loss of life or property, resulting from any natural or man-made accidental, military, or 
paramilitary cause.  
  
"Local Agency" means a county agency charged with coordination of all emergency 
management activities for its geographical limits pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.15.  
  
"Party" means a governmental entity which has adopted and executed this Agreement.  
  
"Provider" means the party which has received a request to furnish aid and assistance from 
another party in need (the "Recipient").  
  
"Recipient" means the party setting forth a request for aid and assistance to another party (the 
"Provider").  
  
Section II. INITIAL RECOGNITION OF PRINCIPLE BY ALL PARTIES; 
AGREEMENT PROVIDES NO RIGHT OF ACTION FOR THIRD PARTIES  
As this is a reciprocal contract, it is recognized that any party to this Agreement may be 
requested by another party to be a Provider. It is mutually understood that each party's foremost 
responsibility is to its own citizens. The provisions of this Agreement shall not be construed to 
impose an unconditional obligation on any party to this Agreement to provide aid and assistance 
pursuant to a request from another party. Accordingly, when aid and assistance have been 
requested, a party may in good faith withhold the resources necessary to provide reasonable and 
adequate protection for its own community, by deeming itself unavailable to respond and so 
informing the party setting forth the request.  
  
Given the finite resources of any jurisdiction and the potential for each party to be unavailable 
for aid and assistance at a given point in time, the parties mutually encourage each other to enlist 



3 

 

other entities in mutual aid and assistance efforts and to enter into such agreements accordingly. 
Concomitantly, the parties fully recognize that there is a highly meritorious reason for entering 
into this Agreement, and accordingly shall attempt to render assistance in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement to the fullest extent possible.  
  
Pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.60 and as elaborated upon in Section X of this Agreement, all 
functions and activities performed under this Agreement are hereby declared to be governmental 
functions. Functions and activities performed under this Agreement are carried out for the benefit 
of the general public and not for the benefit of any specific individual or individuals. 
Accordingly, this Agreement shall not be construed as or deemed to be an Agreement for the 
benefit of any third parties or persons and no third parties or persons shall have any right of 
action under this Agreement for any cause whatsoever. All immunities provided by law shall be 
fully applicable as elaborated upon in Section X of this Agreement.  
  
Section III. PROCEDURES FOR REQUESTING ASSISTANCE  
Mutual aid and assistance shall not be requested unless the resources available within the 
stricken area are deemed inadequate by Recipient. When Recipient becomes affected by a 
emergency and deems its resources inadequate, it may request mutual aid and assistance by 
communicating the request to Provider, indicating the request is made pursuant to this 
Agreement. The request shall be followed as soon as practicable by a written confirmation of that 
request, including the transmission of a proclamation of local state of emergency under G.S. 
166A-19.22, and a completed form describing recipient’s projected needs in light of the 
emergency. All requests for mutual aid and assistance shall be transmitted by the party's 
Authorized Representative or to the Coordinator of the Local Agency as set forth below.  
  
A. METHOD OF REQUEST FOR MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE: Recipient shall set forth 
requests as follows:  
  
(i) REQUESTS ROUTED THROUGH THE RECIPIENT'S LOCAL AGENCY: Recipient may 
directly contact the Local Agency, in which case it shall provide the Local Agency with the 
information in paragraph B of this Section (Section III). The Local Agency shall then contact 
other parties on behalf of Recipient to coordinate the provision of mutual aid and assistance. 
Recipient shall be responsible for the costs and expenses incurred by any Provider in providing 
aid and assistance pursuant to Section VII of this Agreement.  
  
(ii) REQUESTS MADE DIRECTLY TO PROVIDER: Recipient may directly contact Provider's 
authorized representative, setting forth the information in paragraph B of this Section (Section 
III). All communications shall be conducted directly between Recipient and Provider. Recipient 
shall be responsible for the costs and expenses incurred by any Provider in providing aid and 
assistance pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement as noted in Section VII of this 
Agreement. Provider and Recipient shall be responsible for keeping Local Agencies advised of 
the status of response activities, in a timely manner.  
  
(iii) RECORD OF REQUESTS TO BE PROVIDED: A record of the request for assistance shall 
be provided by the Recipient to the Director of the Division of Emergency Management in the 



4 

 

NC Department of Public Safety, in a timely manner.  
 
B. REQUIRED INFORMATION: Each request for assistance shall include the following 
information, in writing or by any other available means, to the extent known:  
  
1. Stricken Area and Status: A general description summarizing the condition of the community 
or emergency area (i.e., whether the emergency and/or disaster declaration is imminent, in 
progress, or has already occurred) and of the damage sustained to date;  
  
2. Services: Identification of the service function(s) for which assistance is needed and the 
particular type of assistance needed;  
  
3. Infrastructure Systems: Identification of the type(s) of public infrastructure system for which 
assistance is needed (water and sewer, storm water systems, streets) and the type of work 
assistance needed;  
  
4. Aid and Assistance: The amount and type of personnel, equipment, materials, and supplies 
needed and a reasonable estimate of the length of time they will be needed;  
  
5. Provider's Traveling Employee Needs--Unless otherwise specified by Recipient, it is mutually 
understood that Recipient will provide for the basic needs of Provider's traveling employees. 
Recipient shall pay for all reasonable out-of-pocket costs and expenses of Provider's traveling 
employees, including, without limitation, transportation expenses for travel to and from the 
stricken area. Further, Recipient shall house and feed Provider's traveling employees at its 
(Recipient's) sole cost and expense. If Recipient cannot provide such food and/or housing at the 
emergency area, Recipient shall specify in its request for assistance that the Provider’s traveling 
employees be self-sufficient.  
  
6. Facilities: The need for sites, structures, or buildings outside Recipient's geographical limits to 
serve as relief centers or staging areas for incoming emergency goods and services; and  
  
7. Meeting Time and Place: An estimated time and a specific place for a representative of   
Recipient to meet the personnel and resources of any Provider.  
  
C. STATE AND FEDERAL ASSISTANCE: Recipient shall be responsible for coordinating 
requests for state or federal assistance with its (Recipient's) Local Agency.  
  
Section IV. PROVIDER'S ASSESSMENT OF AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES AND 
ABILITY TO RENDER ASSISTANCE  
When contacted by the Recipient/Local Agency, Provider's authorized representative shall assess 
Provider's own local situation in order to determine available personnel, equipment, and other 
resources. If Provider's authorized representative determines that Provider has available 
resources, Provider's authorized representative shall so notify the Recipient/Local Agency 
(whichever communicated the request). Provider shall complete a written acknowledgment, 
whether on the request form received from Recipient or on another form, regarding the 



5 

 

assistance to be rendered (or a rejection of the request) and shall transmit it by the most efficient 
practical means to the Recipient/Local Agency for a final response. Provider's acknowledgment 
shall contain the following information:  
 
1. In response to the items contained in the request, a description of the personnel, equipment, 
and other resources available;  
  
2. The projected length of time such personnel, equipment, and other resources will be available 
to serve Recipient, particularly if the period is projected to be shorter than one week (as provided 
in the "Length of Time for Aid and Assistance" section [Section VI] of this Agreement.)  
  
3. The estimated time when the assistance provided will arrive at the location designated by the 
Authorized Representative of the Requesting Party; and  
  
4. The name of the person(s) to be designated as Provider's supervisor (pursuant to the 
"Supervision and Control" section [Section V] of this Agreement.)  
Where a request has been submitted to the Local Agency, the Local Agency shall notify 
Recipient's authorized representative and forward the information from Provider. The 
Recipient/Local Agency shall respond to Provider's written acknowledgment by signing and 
returning a copy of the form to Provider by the most efficient practical means, maintaining a 
copy for its file.  
  
Section V. SUPERVISION AND CONTROL  
Provider shall designate one of its employees sent to render aid and assistance to Recipient as a 
supervisor. As soon as practicable, Recipient shall assign work tasks to Provider's supervisor, 
and unless specifically instructed otherwise, Recipient shall have the responsibility for 
coordinating communications between Provider's supervisor and Recipient. Recipient shall 
provide necessary credentials to Provider's personnel authorizing them to operate on behalf of 
Recipient.  
  
Based upon such assignments from the Recipient, Provider's supervisor shall:  
  
(1) have the authority to assign work and establish work schedules for Provider's personnel. 
Further, supervisor shall retain direct supervision and control of Provider's personnel, equipment, 
and other resources. Provider should be prepared to furnish communications equipment 
sufficient to maintain communications among its respective operating units, and if this is not 
possible, Provider shall notify Recipient accordingly;  
  
(2) maintain daily personnel time records, material records, and a log of equipment hours;  
  
(3) report work progress to Recipient at mutually agreed upon intervals.  
  
Section VI. LENGTH OF TIME FOR AID AND ASSISTANCE; RENEWABILITY; 
RECALL  
Unless otherwise provided, the duration of Provider's assistance shall be for an initial period of 



6 

 

seven days, starting from the time of arrival. Thereafter, assistance may be extended in daily or 
weekly increments as the situation warrants, for a period agreed upon by the authorized 
representatives of Provider and Recipient.  
  
As noted in Section II of this Agreement, Provider's personnel, equipment, and other resources 
shall remain subject to recall by Provider to provide for its own citizens if circumstances so 
warrant. Provider shall make a good faith effort to provide at least twenty-four (24) hours 
advance notification to Recipient of Provider's intent to terminate mission, unless such notice is 
not practicable, in which case as much notice as is reasonable under the circumstances shall be 
provided.  
  
Section VII. REIMBURSEMENTS  
Except as otherwise provided below, it is understood that Recipient shall pay to Provider all 
documented costs and expenses incurred by Provider as a result of extending aid and assistance 
to Recipient. The terms and conditions governing reimbursement for any assistance provided 
under this Agreement shall be in accordance with the following provisions, unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by Recipient and Provider. Recipient shall be ultimately responsible for 
reimbursement of all eligible expenses.   
  
A. Personnel-- During the period of assistance, Provider shall continue to pay its employees 
according to its then prevailing ordinances, rules, and regulations. Recipient shall reimburse 
Provider for all direct and indirect payroll costs and expenses including travel expenses incurred 
during the period of  
assistance, including, but not limited to, employee retirement benefits as provided by Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). However, as stated in Section IX of this Agreement, 
Recipient shall not be responsible for reimbursing any amounts paid or due as benefits to 
Provider's personnel under the terms of the North Carolina Workers' Compensation Act (Chapter 
97 of the North Carolina General Statutes).  
  
B. Equipment-- Recipient shall reimburse the Providers for the use of equipment during the 
period of assistance according to either a pre-established local or state hourly rate or according to 
the actual replacement, operation, and maintenance expenses incurred. For those instances in 
which costs are reimbursed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), the 
FEMA-eligible direct costs shall be determined in accordance with 44 C.F.R. 206.228. Provider 
shall pay for all repairs to its equipment as determined necessary by its on-site supervisor(s) to 
maintain such equipment in safe and operational condition. At the request of Provider, fuels, 
miscellaneous supplies, and minor repairs may be provided by Recipient, if practical. The total 
equipment charges to Recipient shall be reduced by the total value of the fuels, supplies, and 
repairs furnished by Recipient and by the amount of any insurance proceeds received by 
Provider.  
  
C. Materials And Supplies—Recipient  shall reimburse Provider for all materials and supplies 
furnished and that are used or damaged by Recipient during the period of assistance, except for 
the costs of equipment, fuel and maintenance materials, labor, and supplies, which shall be 
included in the equipment rate established in subsection B of this section (Section VII), 



7 

 

Recipient will not be responsible for costs where such damage is caused by gross negligence, 
willful and wanton misconduct, intentional misuse, or recklessness of Provider's personnel. 
Provider's personnel shall use reasonable care under the circumstances in the operation and 
control of all materials and supplies used during the period of assistance. The measure of 
reimbursement shall be determined in accordance with 44 C.F.R. 206.228. In the alternative, the 
parties may agree that Recipient will replace, with like kind and quality as determined by 
Provider, Provider’s materials and supplies used or damaged in a reasonable time. If such an 
agreement is made, it shall be reduced to writing and transmitted to the North Carolina Division 
of Emergency Management.  
  
D. Record Keeping-- Recipient and North Carolina Division of Emergency Management 
personnel shall provide information, directions, and assistance for record-keeping to Provider's 
personnel. Provider shall maintain records and submit invoices for reimbursement by Recipient 
or the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management using the format used or required by 
FEMA publications, including 44 C.F.R. part 13 and applicable Office of Management and 
Budget (OMB) Circulars.  
  
E. Payment; Other Miscellaneous Matters as to Reimbursements-- The reimbursable costs and 
expenses with an itemized notice shall be forwarded as soon as practicable after the costs and 
expenses are incurred, but not later than sixty (60) days following the period of assistance, unless 
the deadline for identifying damage is extended in accordance with 44 C.F.R. part 206. Recipient 
shall pay the bill or advise of any disputed items, not later than sixty (60) days following the 
billing date. These time frames may be modified in writing signed by both parties by mutual 
agreement. This shall not preclude Provider or Recipient from assuming or donating, in whole or 
in part, the costs and expenses associated with any loss, damage, or use of personnel, equipment, 
and resources provided to Recipient.  
 
Section VIII. RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF PROVIDER'S EMPLOYEES  
Pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.60 whenever Provider's employees are rendering aid and assistance 
pursuant to this Agreement, such employees shall retain the same powers, duties, immunities, 
and privileges they would ordinarily possess if performing their duties within the geographical 
limits of Provider.  
  
Section IX. PROVIDER'S EMPLOYEES COVERED AT ALL TIMES BY PROVIDER'S 
WORKERS' COMPENSATION POLICY  
Recipient shall not be responsible for reimbursing any amounts paid or due as benefits to 
Provider's employees under the terms of the North Carolina Workers' Compensation Act, 
Chapter 97 of the General Statutes, due to personal injury or death occurring during the period of 
time such employees are engaged in the rendering of aid and assistance under this Agreement. It 
is mutually understood that Recipient and Provider shall be responsible for payment of such 
workers' compensation benefits only to their own respective employees. Further, it is mutually 
understood that Provider will be entirely responsible for the payment of workers' compensation 
benefits to its own respective employees pursuant to G.S. 97-51.  
  
 



8 

 

Section X. IMMUNITY  
Pursuant to G.S. 166A-19.60 all activities performed under this Agreement are hereby declared 
to be governmental functions. Neither the parties to this Agreement, nor, except in cases of 
willful misconduct, gross negligence, or bad faith, their personnel complying with or reasonably 
attempting to comply with this Agreement or any ordinance, order, rule, or regulation enacted or 
promulgated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement shall be liable for the death of or 
injury to persons or for damage to property as a result of any such activity.  
  
Section XI. PARTIES MUTUALLY AGREE TO HOLD EACH OTHER HARMLESS 
FROM LIABILITY  
To the extent allowed by applicable law, each party (as indemnitor) agrees to protect, defend, 
indemnify, and hold the other party (as indemnitee), and its officers, employees and agents, free 
and harmless from and against any and all losses, penalties, damages, assessments, costs, 
charges, professional fees, and other expenses or liabilities of every kind and arising out of or 
relating to any and all claims, liens, demands, obligations, actions, proceedings, or causes of 
action of every kind in connection with or arising out of indemnitor's negligent acts, errors 
and/or omissions. Indemnitor further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense 
for, and defend any such claims, etc. at indemnitor's sole expense and agrees to bear all other 
costs and expenses related thereto. To the extent that immunity does not apply, each party shall 
bear the risk of its own actions, as it does with its day-to-day operations, and determine for itself 
what kinds of insurance, and in what amounts, it should carry. Each party understands and agrees 
that any insurance protection obtained shall in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep, 
and save harmless the other parties to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the 
extent that each party does not purchase insurance, it shall not be deemed to have waived its 
governmental immunity by law.  
  
Section XII. ROLE OF THE DIVISION OF EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT  
Pursuant to GS 166A-19.12(19) and under this agreement, the responsibilities of the North 
Carolina Division of Emergency Management are: (1) to serve as the central depository for 
executed Agreements, to maintain a current listing of entities with their authorized 
representatives and contact information, and to provide this listing to each of the entities on an 
annual basis; (2) to coordinate the provision of mutual aid and assistance to a requesting party, 
pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement; (3) to keep a record of all requests for assistance 
and acknowledgments; (4) to report on the status of ongoing emergency or disaster-related 
mutual aid and assistance as appropriate; and (5) if the parties so designate, to serve as the 
eligible entity for requesting reimbursement of eligible costs from FEMA and provide 
information, directions, and assistance for record keeping pursuant thereto.   
  
Section XIII. AMENDMENTS  
Manner-- This Agreement may be modified at any time upon the mutual written consent of the 
Recipient and Provider.  
  
Addition of Other Entities--Additional entities may become parties to this Agreement upon: (1) 
acceptance and execution of this Agreement; and (2) sending an executed copy of the Agreement 
to the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management.  



9 

 

 
Section XIV. INITIAL DURATION OF AGREEMENT; RENEWAL; TERMINATION  
This Agreement shall be binding for not less than one (1) year from its effective date, unless 
terminated upon at least sixty (60) days advance written notice by a party as set forth below. 
Thereafter, this Agreement shall continue to be binding upon the parties in subsequent years, 
unless canceled by written notification served personally or by registered mail upon the Director 
of North Carolina Division of Emergency Management, which shall provide copies to all other 
parties. The withdrawal shall not be effective until sixty (60) days after notice thereof has been 
sent by the Director of the North Carolina Division of Emergency Management to all other 
parties. A party's withdrawal from this Agreement shall not affect a party's reimbursement 
obligations or any other liability or obligation under the terms of this Agreement incurred prior 
to withdrawal hereunder. Once the withdrawal is effective, the withdrawing entity shall no 
longer be a party to this Agreement, but this Agreement shall continue to exist among the 
remaining parties.  
  
Section XV. HEADINGS  
The headings of various sections and subsections of this Agreement have been inserted for 
convenient reference only and shall not be construed as modifying, amending, or affecting in any 
way the express terms and provisions of this Agreement.  
 
Section XVI. SEVERABILITY: EFFECT ON OTHER AGREEMENTS  
Should any clause, sentence, provision, paragraph, or other part of this Agreement be adjudged 
by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or 
invalidate the remainder of this Agreement. Each of the parties declares that it would have 
entered into this Agreement irrespective of the fact that any one or more of this Agreement's 
clauses, sentences, provisions, paragraphs, or other parts have been so declared invalid. 
Accordingly, it is the intention of the parties that the remaining portions of this Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect without regard to the clause(s), sentence(s), provision(s), 
paragraph(s), or other part(s) invalidated.  
  
In the event that parties to this Agreement have entered into other mutual aid and assistance 
contracts, for example pursuant to Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General Statutes, those 
parties agree that to the extent a request for mutual assistance is made pursuant to this 
Agreement, those other mutual aid and assistance contracts are superseded by this Agreement.  
  
Section XVII. EFFECTIVE DATE  
This Agreement shall take effect upon its approval by the entity seeking to become a signatory to 
this Agreement and upon proper execution hereof.  
  
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties have caused this North Carolina Statewide 
Emergency Management Mutual Aid and Assistance Agreement to be duly executed in its name 
and behalf by its Chief Executive Officer, who has signed accordingly with seals affixed and 
attested with concurrence of a majority of its governing board, as of the date set forth in this 
Agreement.  



10 

 

  
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIVISION  
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY  
  
  
BY: _____________________________________   WITNESS:  
Frank L. Perry, Secretary      
Department of Public Safety        ___________________________  
Date: _____________________  
  
  
BY: _____________________________________   WITNESS:  
Michael A. Sprayberry, Director     
Emergency Management Division       ___________________________  
Date: _____________________  
  
  
BY: _____________________________________   WITNESS:  
Chief Executive Officer – Local Government Unit   
Printed Name and Title _____________________   ___________________________  
________________________________________  
Name of Unit: _________________  
Date: ___________________  
  
  
APPROVED AS TO PROCEDURES:  
  
  
BY: ____________________________________  
Office of General Counsel 
Department of Public Safety  
Date: _____________________  
  
  
  
  
  
N.C. STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID AND ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT  
  
List of Authorized Representatives to Contact for Emergency Assistance  
Name of Unit:   
_______________________________________________  
And Mailing Address:  
_______________________________________________  
_______________________________________________  



11 

 

Date: ____________________________  
===================================================================  
I. PRIMARY REPRESENTATIVE:  
Name: _____________________________________________________________________  
Title: ______________________________________________________________________  
Day Phone: (___) __________________  Night Phone: (___) _________________  
Fax: (    _) ________________________  Cell Phone: (___) __________________  
===================================================================  
II. FIRST ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE:  
Name: _____________________________________________________________________  
Title: ______________________________________________________________________  
Day Phone: (___) __________________  Night Phone: (___) _________________  
Fax: (   _) ________________________  Cell Phone: (___) __________________  
===================================================================  
III. SECOND ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE:  
Name: _____________________________________________________________________  
Title: ______________________________________________________________________  
Day Phone: (___) __________________  Night Phone: (___) _________________  
Fax: (    _) ________________________  Cell Phone: (___) ___________________  
  
  



clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. Q.











clerktoboard
Typewritten Text

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. R.













 Agenda Item:   
        Meeting Date:  July 19, 2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM:   J. Wayne Vest, County Manager  
  
DATE:   July 19, 2016  
  
SUBJECT: Article 46 Sales Tax/Potential Voter Referendum 
 
PRESENTER:  J. Wayne Vest, County Manager 
 
REQUEST: 
To consider making a motion to: 

 Direct the Moore County Board of Elections to move forward to conduct an Advisory 
Referendum on the on the question of whether to levy a local sales and use tax in Moore 
County. The election shall be held in accordance with the procedures of G.S. 163-287.  

 To approve the Advisory Referendum and direct the Moore County Board of Elections to 
conduct this Advisory Referendum on the Tuesday, November 8, 2016 Ballot. 

 To specify the proceeds to be deposited in the General Fund of the County and be used to pay 
for the Moore County Public School System major capital building projects.   

 
BACKGROUND: 

 The proposed local sales and use tax is covered under Article 46 of Chapter 105 of North 
Carolina General Statues, referred to as Article 46. 

 Article 46 is a One Quarter Cent (¼ of 1%) point of sale, sales tax. 
 Article 46 tax requires voter approval   
 Article 46 allows an additional ¼ of 1% local sales and use tax on transactions subject to the 

general state rate of sales and use tax pursuant to G.S. 105-164.4.   
 Article 46 will be distributed based upon point of sale to the counties that enact this Article. 
 Article 46 revenue will not be shared with municipalities within these counties.   
 As of October 2014, 27 NC counties are authorized to levy the additional ¼ of 1% Article 46 

tax. 
 A voter referendum was held on March 15, 2016 and did not pass. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
If approved, there will be an estimated $2.2 million dollars in additional revenues to the General 
Fund annually to be used to pay for the Moore County Public School System major capital building 
projects. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 

 Upon direction from the Board of Commissioners, the Article 46 initiative will be added to 
the November 8, 2016 ballot.   

 If approved by Moore County voters, collections would begin on April 1, 2017 with the 4th 
quarter of the FY16/17 Moore County budget year.   

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
VIII. S.

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text



 The election shall be held in accordance with procedures of G.S. 163-287.  The Ballot 
Question - The form of the question to be presented on a ballot for a special election 
concerning the levy of the tax authorized for this Article shall be: 
 

“[  ] FOR   [  ] AGAINST 
Local sales and use tax at the rate of one-quarter percent (0.25%) in addition to all other State and 
local sales and use taxes.   
 

 The potential uses and allocations of funds generated by the Article 46 sales and use tax will 
be used only for financing and constructing public schools.  “A county shall use funds to 
supplement and not to supplant or replace existing funds or other resources for public school 
construction.” (G.S. 105-538b) 

 An initiative to inform and educate voters will begin immediately if the Board of 
Commissioners approve adding Article 46 sales and use tax to the November 8th Ballot. 

 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
To consider making a motion to: 

1.  To direct the Moore County Board of Elections to move forward to conduct an Advisory 
Referendum on the question of whether to levy a local sales and use tax in Moore County. 

2. To adopt a resolution calling for a special Advisory Referendum concerning the levy of a one-
quarter cent (1/4 cent) County Sales and Use Tax and direct the Moore County Board of 
Elections to conduct the special Advisory Referendum on the Tuesday, November 8, 2016 
Ballot. 

3. To specify the proceeds from the ¼ cent sales tax be deposited in the General Fund of Moore 
County and used to pay for the Moore County School System major capital building projects. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
PowerPoint Presentation October 20, 2015 
Resolution  



 

 

RESOLUTION CALLING A SPECIAL ADVISORY REFERENDUM CONCERNING THE LEVY OF A ONE‐

QUARTER CENT (1/4 cent) COUNTY SALES AND USE TAX AND SPECIFYING THE PROCEEDS 

FROM THE ONE‐QUARTER CENT (1/4 cent) COUNTY SALES AND USE TAX IF PASSED IN THE 

SPECIAL ADVISORY REFERENDUM TO BE VOTED ON NOVEMBER 8, 2016  

WHEREAS, the General Assembly has enacted the “One‐Quarter Cent (1/4 of 1 cent) County Sales and 

use Tax Act,” Article 46 of Chapter 105 of the North Carolina General Statutes, which authorizes 

counties to levy a local sales and use tax; and 

WHEREAS, in order to levy the local sales and use tax, the County of Moore must conduct an Advisory 

Referendum in accordance with the provisions of North Carolina General Statues Section 163‐287; and 

WHEREAS, on July 19, 2016 the Moore County Board of Commissioners, by Resolution, called a special 

Advisory Referendum to be held, between the normal time the polls are open, on Tuesday, November 8, 

2016; and 

WHEREAS, the revenue from the potential Sales and Use Tax will generate an estimated $2,200,000 per 

year to the General Fund; and 

WHEREAS, if supported, the proceeds from the local Sales and Use Tax, if supported by the Advisory 

Referendum on Tuesday, November 8, 2016, will be collected according to Article 46 of Chapter 105 of 

the North Carolina General Statues, deposited in the General Fund of Moore County, and used to pay for 

the Moore County Public School System’s major capital building projects.   

WHEREAS, Accordingly, SCC (Sandhills Community College) will not receive any additional allocation of 

funds in the annual funding formula if the Advisory Referendum for the additional one‐quarter percent 

(1/4%) Article 46 of Chapter 105 Sales and Use Tax collected is supported by the voters on November 8, 

2016. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Moore County Board of Commissioners for the County of 

Moore: 

Section 1.    In accordance with  the North Carolina General Statutes, a special advisory referendum 

is hereby called to be held between the normal time the polls are open, on Tuesday, November 8, 

2016, at which there shall be submitted to the qualified voters of the County of Moore the question 

set forth in Section 3 of this Resolution. 

Section 2.  The Moore County Board of Elections shall conduct said Referendum. 

 

 



 

Section 3.  The ballot question shall be in the following format: 

    ‘[   ]  FOR      [    ]  AGAINST 

Local sales and use tax at the rate of one‐quarter percent (0.25%) in addition to all other State and 

local sales and use taxes.’ 

   

Section 4.  The Clerk to the Board of Commissioners is authorized and directed to transmit a 

certified copy of this Resolution to the Moore County Board of Elections within three (3) days after 

the passage hereof. 

Section 5.  The Board of Elections shall publish legal notice of the special advisory referendum in 

accordance with the North Carolina General Statutes Section 163‐287.  

Section 6.  If the Advisory Referendum is supported on November 8, 2016 the proceeds from the 

additional one‐quarter percent (1/4%) Article 46 of Chapter 105 Sales and Use Tax collected shall be 

deposited in the County of Moore’s General Fund to pay for the Moore County Public School 

System’s major capital buildings projects.  

Section 7.  This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage. 

 

Adopted this 19th day of July 2016. 

 

              ___________________________________ 
              Nick Picerno, Chairman 
              Moore County Board of Commissioners 
_______________________________ 
Laura M. Williams, Clerk to the Board 



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Agenda Item:
Article 46 Sales and Use Tax/Potential Voter Referendum



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Request:
To consider making a motion to direct the County Board of
Elections to conduct an advisory referendum on the
question of whether to levy a local sales and use tax in
Moore County. The election shall be held in accordance with
the procedures of G.S. 163‐287.



Funding Opportunities
With a number of capital projects on the horizon, opportunities to increase revenue
and allow for funding of capital needs while, at the same time, maintaining or
reducing property tax were explored

• Schools
‐Capital Project List

• County
‐Courts, Parks & Recreation, County General

• Public Safety/Emergency Management
‐Advanced Life Support Projects

PROJECTS RELATED TO:

Article 46, One‐Quarter Cent (¼ cent) Local Sales and Use Tax was identified as a 
potential opportunity



Fiscal Year 2016 Budget
KEY POINTS REGARDING EACH FUND

Fund 100:  General Fund

General Fund Revenues
Source FY16 Budget

Property Tax $55,023,789
Sales Tax ($14.7m for article 39, 40, 42) $15,700,000
Other Taxes $652,000
Interest $145,000
Departmental Fees $7,446,433
Grants $10,819,086
Transfers In $10,000
Total Revenues ‐ GF $89,796,308



Fiscal Year 2016 Budget
KEY POINTS REGARDING EACH FUND

Fund 200:  Advance Life Support: EMS

ALS Fund Revenues
Source FY16 Budget

Property Tax $2,349,115
Property Taxes (Prior years) $20,000
Fees and Other Revenue $3,230,000
Appropriated Fund Balance $833,355
Total Revenues $6,432,470



Sales Tax (Article 39, 40 & 42)

$12,739,334

$13,266,500

$13,940,827

$14,700,000

$13,426,848

$14,320,071

$14,868,248

$11,500,000

$12,000,000

$12,500,000

$13,000,000

$13,500,000

$14,000,000

$14,500,000

$15,000,000

$15,500,000

2013 2014 2015 2016

Budget

Actual



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting
Background:

• The proposed local sales and use tax is covered under Article 46 of Chapter 105 of 
North Carolina General Statues, referred to as Article 46.

• Is a One Quarter Cent (¼ cent) point of sale, sales tax.
• Requires voter approval  
• Allows an additional .25% local sales and use tax on transactions subject to the 

general state rate of sales and use tax pursuant to G.S. 105‐164.4 
• Will be distributed based upon point of sale to the counties that enact this Article.
• Revenue is not shared with municipalities within these counties  
• As of October 2014, 27 NC counties are authorized to levy the additional .25% 

Article 46 tax



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Financial Impact:

If approved by voters, there will be an estimated $2.2 million dollars in additional 
revenues to the General Fund annually



Sales Tax (Article 39, 40 & 42)

$12,739,334

$13,266,500

$13,940,827

$14,700,000

$13,426,848

$14,320,071

$14,868,248

$11,500,000

$12,000,000

$12,500,000

$13,000,000

$13,500,000

$14,000,000

$14,500,000

$15,000,000

$15,500,000

2013 2014 2015 2016

Budget

Actual



Sales Tax including Article 46 in FY17
(FY14 & FY15 Actuals, FY16 & FY17 Budget)

$14,320,071 $14,868,248 $14,700,000 $14,700,000

$2,200,000

$2,000,000

$4,000,000

$6,000,000

$8,000,000

$10,000,000

$12,000,000

$14,000,000

$16,000,000

$18,000,000

2014 2015 2016 2017

Article 46

Art 39, 40, 42



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Implementation Plan:

• Upon direction from the Board of Commissioners, the Article 46 initiative will be 
added to the March 15, 2016 ballot.

• If approved by Moore County voters, collections would begin on July 1, 2016 with 
the beginning of the FY16/17 Moore County budget year.



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting
Implementation Plan:  Important Dates

• 10/20/2015:  BOC considers adding measure to March 15, 2016 ballot
• 11/17/2015:  BOC considers adopting resolution supporting Article 46 and 

potentially determines how funds will be allocated
• 03/15/2016:  Voters cast vote For or Against
• 03/22/2016:  Election results certified
• 03/23/2016 to 03/31/2016:  BOC must provide 10 days public notice of intent to 

adopt a resolution to levy the tax, BOC must adopt resolution to levy the tax, BOC 
must send certified copy of resolution along with certified copy of election results 
to Secretary of Department of Revenue

• 03/31/2016:  Last day to send letter to Secretary of Revenue notice of intent to 
levy the ¼ cent tax

• 07/01/2016 :  First day Article 46 becomes effective 



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Implementation Plan:  Continued

The election shall be held in accordance with procedures of G.S. 163‐287.  The Ballot 
Question ‐ The form of the question to be presented on a ballot for a special election 
concerning the levy of the tax authorized for this Article shall be:

“[  ] FOR [  ] AGAINST
Local sales and use tax at the rate of one‐quarter percent (0.25%) in addition to all 
other State and local sales and use taxes.”



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Implementation Plan:  Continued

• The potential uses and allocations of funds generated by the Article 46 sales and 
use tax will be an agenda item as directed by the Board of Commissioners

• An initiative to inform and educate voters will begin immediately if the Board of 
Commissioners approve adding Article 46 sales and use tax to the March 16, 2015 
Ballot 



Facts on Local Option Sales Tax

• All counties must contact their local Board of Elections and the State Board of
Elections in order to have the advisory referendum included on the ballot during a
regularly scheduled election. An advisory referendum may be held only on the
same date as a county or statewide general election, the primary election in even‐
numbered years, or in any other election during which all precincts in a county are
open.

• A Board of County Commissioners is not obligated to levy the tax even if the
majority of those voting in a referendum vote in support of a levy.

• A County may not stipulate the use of the money on the ballot. A County Board of
Commissioners may adopt a resolution that stipulates how they plan to use the
revenues.



Facts on Local Option Sales Tax (continued)

• Legislation specifies how the question must be presented on the ballot:

Ballot Question. – The form of the question to be presented on a ballot for a special 
election concerning the levy of the tax authorized by this Article shall be:

‘[  ] FOR  [  ] AGAINST
Local sales and use tax at the rate of one‐quarter percent  (0.25%) in addition to all 
other State and local sales and use taxes.’

• The sales tax may become effective on the first day of any calendar quarter so
long as the county gives the Secretary of Revenue at least 90 days’ advance
notice. For example, if a referendum is held in November during the general
election and passes, the earliest a county could begin collecting the revenue
would be April 1 of the following year, provided it adopts a resolution levying the
tax and forwards it to the Department of Revenue prior to December 31.



Facts on Local Option Sales Tax (continued)

• If the Board of Commissioners wishes to levy the tax, it must provide 10 days public
notice of its intent to adopt a resolution to levy the tax. After it adopts the
resolution, it must send a certified copy of the resolution along with a certified
copy of the election results of the referendum to Lyons Gray, Secretary of the
Department of Revenue, P.O. Box 25000, Raleigh, NC 27640. (A model resolution
has been prepared by the NCACC.).

• The sales tax is not restricted or earmarked and can therefore be used for any
allowed use by counties.

• There are no restrictions on resubmitting the sales tax option to the voters again
after an unsuccessful referendum.



Facts on Local Option Sales Tax (concluded)

• Similar to an election for a general obligation bond, a county may spend money
to educate the public on issues related to the sales tax referendum. However, a
county may not spend money advocating for or against the sales tax.

• The Board of Commissioners may approve resolutions in support of the passage
of a referendum for the sales tax. A County Commissioner may publicly endorse
and support the sales tax. A County may not reimburse any expenses incurred
by an elected official while the official is advocating either for or against the tax
measure.

• The local‐option sales tax does not apply to unprepared food (i.e. groceries) or
gas purchases. There is no local sales tax on gas purchases.



October 20, 2015
Regular Board of Commissioners 

Meeting

Recommendation Summary:

To consider making a motion to direct the County Board of Elections to conduct an 
advisory referendum on the question of whether to levy a local sales and use tax in 
Moore County.  The election shall be held in accordance with the procedures of G.S. 
163‐287.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 07/12/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Town of Carthage Planning Board ETJ Members 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint two extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) members to the Town of Carthage Planning Board. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
At a regular meeting on June 20, 2016, the Town of Carthage Board of Commissioners voted to 
reappoint Max Muse and Bob Hunt as ETJ members of the Town’s Planning Board.  The Town 
Board has made request for the County Commissioners to make these appointments. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Max Muse and Bob Hunt as ETJ members of the Town of Carthage 
Planning Board for terms expiring June 30, 2019. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.A.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  07/19/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 07/12/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / NCACC Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint voting delegate to the annual conference of the NC Association of County Commissioners. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The NCACC annual conference will be held in Winston-Salem August 11-14.  During the business 
session on Saturday, August 13, scheduled from 2:15-4:45 p.m., each county will be entitled to one 
vote on items that come before the membership.  Counties are requested to designate one voting 
delegate prior to the annual conference. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will submit required information to the NCACC. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to appoint a voting delegate to the NCACC annual conference to be held August 11-
14, 2016. 
 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.B.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  7/19/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 6/29/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Board of Health 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Appoint member to the Board of Health. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The current term of service for at-large Board of Health member Betty Goodridge expires this month.  
Ms. Goodridge would like to continue service for another term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointment and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Betty Goodridge to the Board of Health for a three-year term expiring 
July 31, 2019. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.C.



  Agenda Item:   
         Meeting Date:  7/19/2016 
 
MEMORANDUM TO THE MOORE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:  
       
FROM: Laura M. Williams, Clerk 
  
DATE: 6/29/2016 
  
SUBJECT: Appointments / Voluntary Agricultural District Board 
 
 
 
REQUEST: 
 
Reappoint five members to the Voluntary Agricultural District Board. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The terms for the following members of the VAD expire July 31, 2016:  Sandy Stewart, Matt 
Wimberly, Tony Chriscoe, Tim Priest, Harry Huberth.  Each is recommended for reappointment to an 
additional three-year term. 
 
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN: 
 
Clerk will make notification of appointments and update record. 
 
RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY: 
 
Make a motion to reappoint Sandy Stewart, Matt Wimberly, Tony Chriscoe, Tim Priest, and Harry 
Huberth to the Voluntary Agricultural District Board for three-year terms expiring July 31, 2019. 

clerktoboard
Typewritten Text
IX.D.


	AGENDA
	V.A. 6/21 MINUTES
	V.B. BUDGET AMENDMENTS
	V.C. DIGITAL LEARNING INVOICES
	V.D. TAX RELEASES/REFUNDS
	V.E. VAD ORDINANCE REVISIONS
	V.F. LEPC BYLAWS REVISIONS
	V.G. MOU FOR COMM TRAILER
	V.H. VAC TRUCK CONTRACT
	VI.A. CALL TO: EC DEV INCENTIVE
	VI.B. PUBLIC HEARING: PINESAGE SOLAR
	VIII.A. URGENT REPAIR GRANT
	VIII.B. BUILDING INSPECTIONS
	VIII.C. CTP GRANT
	VIII.D. MOU WITH AGING
	VIII.E. DSS MOU WITH MCTS
	VIII.F. SANDHILLS TRANSPORTATION
	VIII.G. RIGHT TRANSPORTATION
	VIII.H. ARAMARK AMENDMENT
	VIII.I. TAX SETTLEMENT
	VIII.J. CHARGE OF TAX LEVY
	VIII.K. BIOSOLIDS CONTRACT
	VIII.L. SEVEN LAKES WELL SITE
	VIII.M. EMS MGMT & CONSULTANTS
	VIII.N. HOMELAND SECURITY GRANT
	VIII.O. RICHMOND MUTUAL AID
	VIII.P. STATEWIDE MUTUAL AID
	VIII.Q. SCC FUNDING FORMULA
	VIII.R. SOLID WASTE ORDINANCE
	VIII.S. ARTICLE 46
	IX.A. APPTS/CARTHAGE ETJ
	IX.B. APPTS/NCACC DELEGATE
	IX.C. APPTS/BOARD OF HEALTH
	IX.D. APPTS/VOLUNTARY AG



